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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
PART |
Note About Forward-Looking Statements

” ” o ” o " ow T

When used in this Report, the words “anticipatébélieves,” “could,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “expects’ “intends,” “may,” “plans”

“potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “wil 1,” “would” or similar expressions and negatives tifose terms are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. These are statements thaer&édafuture periods and include statements abaufuture results, sources of
revenue, our continued growth, our gross margireket trends, our product development, technoldgiezelopments, the features, benefits
and performance of our current and future produtts, ability of our products to address a varietyrarkets, the anticipated growth of
demand for connectivity worldwide, our growth stgies, future price reductions, our competitivaustaour dependence on our senior
management and our ability to attract and retaiy kersonnel, dependency on and concentration ofimtiibutors, our employee relations,
current and potential litigation, the effects ofugonment regulations, our compliance with laws agglilations, our expected future operating
costs and expenses and expenditure levels forngsaad development, selling, general and admiaiste expenses, fluctuations in operating
results, fluctuations in our stock price, our paymef dividends, our future liquidity and cash ngeour credit facility, future acquisitions of
and investments in complimentary businesses anexiected impact of various accounting policies ands adopted by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board. Forwelooking statements are subject to risks and umadeties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. These risks anceutainties include, but are not limited to, fad@ffecting our quarterly results, our ability
to manage our growth, our ability to sustain orr@ase profitability, demand for our products, otnilay to compete, our ability to rapidly
develop new technology and introduce new prodectsability to safeguard our intellectual propertyends in the networking industry and
fluctuations in general economic conditions, anel isks set forth throughout this Report, includingler Item 1“Business” and under

Item 1A/Risk Factors.” These forward-looking statementgak only as of the date hereof. We expressly disaay obligation or
undertaking to release publicly any updates orsmris to any forward-looking statements containeickim to reflect any change in our
expectations with regard thereto or any changeviergs, conditions or circumstances on which any statement is based.

This Report also contains estimates and other médion concerning our industry, including marketesand growth rates, which are based on
industry publications, surveys and forecasts, idirlg those generated by Gartner and Cisco SystiEmsThis information involves a number
of assumptions and limitations, and you are cawtébnot to give undue weight to these estimateseTinelustry publications, surveys and
forecasts generally indicate that their informatioas been obtained from sources believed to bahieli The industry in which we operate
subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk tlua variety of factors, including those desatibeder Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

The Gartner Report described herein, or the "GartReport,” represent data, research opinion or \pents published, as part of a syndica
subscription service, by Gartner and are not repreations of fact. The Gartner Report speaks édis afriginal publication date (and not as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) areldpinions expressed in the Gartner Report areexiip change without notice.

Iltem 1. Business

Business Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvilmgktechnology for service providers and entergrisdur technology platforms deliver
highly-advanced and easily deployable solutionsdpaeal to a global customer base, particularlynider-networked markets. Our
differentiated business model, combined with onoirative proprietary technologies, enables us ¢albdown traditional barriers such as high
product and network deployment costs to offer sohst with disruptive price-performance characteristWe have become an attractive
alternative to traditional high touch, high-cosbyiders, resulting in the progressive adoptionwftechnology platforms.

Our technology platforms for service providers daaarrier-class network infrastructure for fixedeless broadband, wireless backhaul
systems and routing. Our technology platforms faerprises enable wireless local area network (W) #frastructure, video surveillance
products, and machine-to-machine communicationsb&lleve that our products are highly differenthtieie to our proprietary software
protocol innovation, firmware expertise, and hardnw@design capabilities. This allows our portfolionheet the demanding

performance requirements of video, voice and dapdiations at prices that are often a fractiothoise offered by our competitors.

As a core part of our strategy, we have developaddel for marketing and selling high product voasito service providers and enterprises.
This model is driven by a large, growing and highihgaged community of service providers, distribsitealue added resellers, systems
integrators and corporate information technolody'{}' professionals who we refer to as the
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Ubiquiti Community or our Community. The Ubiquito@munity is a critical element of our businesststyg as it enables us to drive:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetmmnt. We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.solttions benefit from the active engagement betwtbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produaldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption wf products. This approach significantly reducesdmyvelopment costs and time to
market.

e Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&dts far more efficiently and cost-effectivétan is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saldsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiVord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

e Self-sustaining product support.The engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community tenabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.

By reducing the cost of development, sales, margedind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.

Our revenues were $572.5 million , $320.8 milliovd &353.5 million in the fiscal years ended Jung2804 , 2013 and 201 Zespectively. W
had net income of $176.9 million , $80.5 milliorda$1.02.6 million in the fiscal years ended June2®14 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. In
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to theeéil years ended June 30, 2014 , 2013 and 201&cab2014 , fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 ,
respectively.

Industry Overview

Internet traffic worldwide has grown rapidly in et years, driven by an increase in the numbesefs) increasing mobility of those users anc
high bandwidth applications, such as video, autlmjd-based applications, online gaming and soabdorking. According to Cisco Visual
Networking Index, global Internet protocol, or tRffic is expected to increase from 30,734 petafydr PB, per month in 2011 to 110,282
per month in 2016, representing a 29% compoundamrowth rate, or CAGR, over that period. Wiredwwrking solutions have traditional
been used to address increasing consumer and esedvpndwidth needs. However, the high initialisdpequirements and ongoing operating
costs and long market lead times associated wittlibg and installing infrastructure for wired neivks has severely limited the widespread
deployment of these networks in underserved anénpetietrated markets. Wireless networks are entgegiran attractive alternative for
addressing both the broadband access needs ofsendest and underpenetrated markets in both emeagitigleveloped countries.

Underserved and underpenetrated markefBhere exists a significant market opportunitypath emerging and developed economies. In
“unconnected” emerging markets, the lack of anldistaed network infrastructure and the high inilaployment costs associated with
traditional wired network infrastructure build-odtave encouraged adoption of wireless networkifrgstructure. In “under-connected”
markets, bandwidth demand exceeds either the &laitapacity from existing infrastructure or théoedable supply of new infrastructure,
resulting in an attractive market opportunity fdreless systems to bolster connectivity. Additibnale believe there is a large market
opportunity in connected markets serving custorttextswant to deploy reliable, scalable and custablz wireless networks and whose
primary buying criterion is based on price-perfont@ characteristics.

Increasing use of the unlicensed spectrt. In the absence of affordable broadband acce$eilicensed spectrum, the number of users of th
unlicensed RF spectrum has increased for commumnsa¢quipment, as well as consumer devices suchrdiess phones, baby monitors and
microwave ovens. This increasing use of unliced®edpectrum has made providing high quality wirelestworking more challenging due to
increasing congestion in the unlicensed spectrum.
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Government incentives for broadband accesSovernments around the world are increasinglintakoth regulatory and financial steps to
expand access to broadband networks and increagdetality of advanced broadband services to coressmand businesses.

To provide robust wireless networks that meet teepperformance needs of service providers anerprises, vendors of wireless networking
solutions must address the problems facing incutrd@ations:

» Poor performance. To deliver high performance, wireless networksodutions need to satisfy diverse performance requénts for
video, voice and data. The challenges of operatiriige unlicensed RF spectrum, including spectromerand interference resulting
from the proliferation of devices, often resultifficulty establishing network connections andeliable or poor performance.
Additionally, the performance and reliability ofisting wireless networking solutions decline rapids the number of subscribers and
range of service delivery increases. Lack of hardvead software integration between products, telcigies and vendor devices can
diminish network performance significantly and e&se the complexity of network management, integrand expansion.

» High cost of ownershif. Existing alternative solutions, such as fibetHe-premises, cable, digital subscriber line, ot. D8orldwide
interoperability for microwave access, or WiMAX, ETand traditional backhaul, provide high capadiigh performance broadband
access; however, these solutions can be extrerostlycand often do not meet the demanding priaéspmance requirements of
underserved markets.

« Complexity. Existing alternative solutions are often diffictd deploy and manage and require skilled empleyedigh cost
consultants to install and operate. In additionstexg enterprise solutions often offer a largeiefgrof features and functionalities that
enterprise customers may find overwhelming or uassary.

e Lack of product support and custorr-driven featuresProduct support and feedback for alternative sepgliwvireless networking
solutions is often costly and ineffective. Existingeless solutions are not accompanied by dyngmuduct support to assist customers
in efficiently setting up and troubleshooting theatworks. Additionally, alternative suppliers gally lack an effective mechanism to
communicate with their end-users and incorporagdifack from usage into product roadmaps.

Limitation of existing solutions. Existing service provider wireless networkinghealogies have been developed to satisfy the isorga
demand for broadband access, support mobility aoige the performance and reliability demandeaistomers. According to Gartner,
aggregate end-user spending on wireless netwoddagment for Enterprise WLAN, wireless broadbaodeas and long-term evolution, or
LTE, solutions, is expected to grow from $10.4ibillin 2012 to $41.3 billion in 2017, representm@AGR of 32%. However, these existing
solutions based upon wired, satellite or cellub@hhologies, often fail to meet the price-perforomrequirements of fixed wireless networking
in emerging markets, rural markets, or price-sargsinarkets, which in turn has led to low penetraf wireless broadband access and large
populations of unaddressed users in these are#isinvitie enterprise, existing WLAN deployments aften relatively complex and costly,
providing customers with a large number of nonigaltfeatures and functionalities at a high coste@ the growth in Internet connected
devices, and the consumer’s desire for constamtegdivity, there exists growing demand for WLAN @@dns that provide critical features at
significantly lower cost than existing solutions.

Our Solutions

Our products and solutions enable both serviceigens and enterprises to deploy the infrastrucimrdigh performance, scalable and reliable
wireless networks cost effectively. Our wirelessamrking solutions offer the following key benefits

» High performance proprietary technology solution Our proprietary products and solutions includentperformance radios, antenn
software, communications protocols and managenoeia that have been designed to deliver carriereauterprise class wireless
broadband access and other services primarilyemuticensed RF spectrum. Our radios and antemréash incorporate our innovative
proprietary technologies and firmware, are desigmadifield tested to deliver carrier-class netwspkeds, throughput, range and
coverage, while simultaneously meeting the vargiagormance requirements of video, voice and daffid. Our products and
solutions overcome significant performance chakkenguch as dynamic spectrum noise, device inteder@utdoor obstacles and
unpredictable levels of video, voice and data perémce. Importantly, we are able to utilize theduiiti Community to validate the
effectiveness of our end user experience and foauslevelopment efforts on those features and ifmmality that are critical to their
requirements.

e Price disruptive offering. Our products and solutions have been designeddble service providers and enterprises to defiggr
performance to their users at highly disruptive@oints. The deployment and operation of ourtgwia
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require a fraction of the capital expenditures, lenpentation expenses and network maintenance abtsse associated with existing
solutions.

Integrated and easy to deploy and mane. Our integrated products and solutions reducedneplexity associated with the installati
management and expansion of wireless networks.iléidich of our product families, products are basefirmware that is built on a
common codebase. This allows us to offer commotufea and functionality and leads to consistenbilisaacross each product
family. The integration between our products isigiesd to enable service providers and enterprsegliver wireless broadband acc
and other services that have high performance ctaistics without significant management, deplogtreosts or upgrade complexity.

Scalable communit-led approach Purchasing our proprietary products and solutemables immediate access to the Ubiquiti
Community, including current and historical troudileoting and technical information as well as Ipeattices and deployment advice
for our end users. Product support from our Commguisiself-sustaining and scales efficiently, wgttowth and relevance driven by the
size and engagement of our customer base. Thialdealommunity-led approach to customer supportritaries to the substantially
lower total cost of ownership of our products aallisons relative to incumbent providers. Additilpaour Community provides an
effective channel for product feedback from ourteoeer base.

We are growing our intellectual property portfaihelp protect the development of our proprietftware, hardware and complete solutit
We believe that protecting the innovation and tetbgy underlying our comprehensive wireless netwaylsolutions is key to ensuring our
continued ability to provide customers with diffetiated value

Our Strategy

Our goal is to disrupt the market for communicagiéechnology with innovative solutions that providading performance at prices that are a
fraction of those of alternative solutions. Keymeénts of our strategy include the following:

Continue to deliver high performance characteristiat disruptive price pointsWe intend to expand the market opportunity foviee
providers by continuing to provide products andiSohs with disruptive pric@erformance characteristics. We also intend to recplae
market and displace high-priced alternative sohdim enterprise markets. We believe that we catasuour disruptive strategy
through our unique business model, focusing orfdatires and functionalities most critical to castos and avoiding the fringe
features, which add both cost and complexity.

Leverage our technologies and business model ireadnt markets We intend to continue to leverage our technologies business
model to target other large and growing marketswheabelieve are ripe for disruption such as videweillance, machine-to-machine
communications, routing and licensed microwave g® backhaul markets. For the enterprise marketntkoduced our enterprise
WLAN product, UniFi, in fiscal 2011 and have exgeged strong adoption by a largely new customes.BA® believe we are well
positioned to gain traction in these new addressatalrkets and will continue to accelerate our imtion in these products. Similarly,
we intend to drive adoption of UniFi Video, ourédBmera management system, airFiber, our outdoetess backhaul radio platform,
EdgeMAX, our advanced routing technology and mEr, machine-to-machine communication platform.

Maintain and extend our technological leadersh. We intend to continue to develop innovative soha for our target markets. We
believe that our continued focus on developing gachnologies with customer-driven feedback fromthiquiti Community will
allow us to deliver products and solutions withrdiiive price-performance characteristics thatspecifically targeted to our markets.
In addition, we believe our continued innovatiokéy to the value our products and solutions preyahd is a critical component to
achieving user lock-in.

Continue to grow our powerful user communityWe believe our differentiated business model, pedday the Ubiquiti Community,
provides us with a significant and sustainable ostitipe advantage over competitors. The Ubiquitir@ounity facilitates streamlined
and efficient product development coupled withghhi efficient sales and distribution model thdbwak us to avoid the costs associ:
with expensive direct and channel organizationg §éif-sustaining product support aspect of theyuibiCommunity simplifies the
deployment process and provides a highly effeatbad-time support system for customers.

Continue to sell to our existing customend/e plan to continue to provide our customers withhtperformance, reliable, and cost-
effective integrated products and solutions. Irtipalar, we believe our use of differentiated piefary protocols and the scalability of
our products positions us to grow with our custasrees they build out their networks. Furthermorejntend to cross-sell
complementary solutions to our existing customieos.example, we
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believe customers of our airMAX solutions can bérsfnificantly from the incremental deploymentafr EdgeMAX and airFiber
products.

Our Technology and Products

We offer products and solutions based on our petgmy technology with disruptive price-performabaracteristics across multiple markets.
Utilizing low cost hardware, consumer chipsets mmbvative software and firmware, we build pricafpemance solutions to address both
service providers and enterprises. In addition,tecihnology allows us to design our products faeeaf manufacture. Our focus on cost
efficiency, robust product design and high perfanoeadrives the development of our technology, petsland solutions.

Technology Platforms
Our current major service provider and carrier gohs include:
Base Station/Backhaul/Customer Premise Equipn“CPE")/Bridge—airMAX

We offer end-to-end solutions that incorporate pnaprietary RF technology, antenna design and fianewechnologies. These technologies
simplify the adoption and use of our products aravige our products and solutions with performadiearacteristics usually found only in the
carrier-class wireless networking solutions andeasignificant performance, reliability, scalalyiland ease-of-use challenges in the unlicense
RF spectrum.

In September 2009, we introduced our airMAX platiovhich includes proprietary protocols developedibywhich contain advanced
technologies for minimizing signal noise. Theseppietary protocols help our products deliver cardlass wireless networking performance
for video, voice and data applications. airMAX Ideto support a wireless network that can scalataireds of clients per base station over
long distances while maintaining low latency anghhihroughput. Unlike most systems using 802.1Adsted protocols, which are primarily
designed for indoor networks, our airMAX systems agroprietary Time Division Multiple Access, dDWA, protocol to manage the sendi
and receiving of data over the network to maxinsizd¢ime efficiency. airMAX incorporates smart poli, which is a feature that improves the
scalability of a wireless network by predicting th@ce and data requirements of an applicatiomgtgiaven time and allocating the required
bandwidth. airMAX also improves scalability by gig priority to active client hardware over idleetlt hardware to reduce perceived latency
on large networks. airMAX provides users with tihdity to seamlessly switch operating frequenciesdal time to overcome noise and
interference due to changes in the operating enwiemt.

A majority of our airMAX products and solutions clverage multiple input multiple output, or MIM@&chnology, which relates to the use of
multiple antennas at both the transmitter and veced improve performance. Most of our radios esgphultiple independent transmitters and
receivers to create independent communication eiamsing the same frequency spectrum. We use eddaray signal processing
techniques to combine our radios’ communicatioranaels into a single, higher data rate channel.approach to MIMO technology
effectively doubles the capacity of our radios wkempared to traditional radios. Each of our stéoraantennas is dual polarized with
radiation patterns that are optimized for MIMO penfiance. Our high performance outdoor antennadesmigned to amplify signal power,
resulting in stronger signals and better link dqyaknd to block noise. Our design produces a bsit@al-to-noise ratio for each channel and
simplified signal processing to combine the chasinghich in turn effectively doubles the throughpfibur antennas, when compared to sii
input single output devices. Our devices suppatibua encryption protocols including: WEP, WPA, WHKIP, WPA-AES, WPA2, WPA2-
TKIP and WPA2-AES.

Network Routing Platfor—EdgeMAX

In September 2012, we announced EdgeMAX, a disrepiiice-performance software and systems routiaifiogpm. We believe the initial
product, the EdgeRouter Lite, is the world’s fsab-$100 router capable of over 1 million packetsgecond processing performance.
EdgeMAX is powered by our full-featured EdgeOS apieg system that includes advanced QoS, firewdghhamic routing and VPN
functionality. Since the initial launch we haveroduced a full series of routers and switchesdlatess our core markets.

Point-to-point Wireless Backhaul—airFiber

In March 2012, we introduced airFiber, a point-tofp radio system. Components of the airFiber pevdacluding the radio, were designed to
provide low latency with high throughput. Our abEr product uses an integrated split antenna ahobal positioning system to
simultaneously send data packets from each sitieedink. We engineered proprietary communicatiostqcols so that airFiber does not su
from the traditional packet overhead associatet Wii-Fi based standards. We
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believe airFiber will be considered a compellingalative to wired backhaul as airFiber is notlgagsisceptible to vandalism, copper theft,
fiber optic damage because only the endpoints teebd secured. airFiber does not require physidedstructure such as laying cable or fiber,
and by utilizing unlicensed spectrum, customerseaehsignificantly faster deployment.

Our current major enterprise solutions include:

Enterprise WLAUniFi

In January 2011, we released our UniFi Enterprisé&VBystem, which is a scalable Wi-Fi solutionttirecludes Wi-Fi certified hardware with
a software based management controller, targetiteggrise customers. UniFi hardware utilizes MIM@Hnology, works with 802.11a/b/g/n
and ac standards and uses a single cable forrdatntission and power-over-Ethernet. Unlike otmemprise Wi-Fi systems that utilize a
costly hardware Wi-Fi switch, UniFi uses a virtaahtroller that allows for on-site management onote management through the cloud,
allowing customers to deploy UniFi in both indooidaoutdoor applications. Each UniFi access pointtmmanaged centrally with the UniFi
Controller software, which we provide free of ctar@he UniFi Controller enables enterprise WLAN @agers to centrally configure and
administer a UniFi network and individual accesmfsowithout any special training and through secagcess from any web browser. The
UniFi platform provides automatic UniFi access paiaetection, firmware updates, real-time statug) toading, advanced security options and
“zero handoff roaming”, our proprietary innovatifar seamless roaming for mobile devices.

Video Surveillance—UniFi Video

In August 2011, we introduced our line of UniFi ¥@H.264 megapixel IP cameras and our UniFi Videnagement software controller. The
H.264 cameras use a single cable for data tranemiaad power-over-Ethernet. UniFi Video, our maragnt controller software, can be usec
to manage multiple UniFi Video H.264 IP camerasvall as manage digital video recorder devices. Uiileo software is available for
download at no cost on our website and only manbidpéguiti Network camera devices. Similar to ounert network management products,
UniFi Video can be accessed securely from any welvéer, provides detailed statistical reporting addanced analytics and provides a
management console with multiple views, versatilimera settings and customizable event recordings.

Machine-To-Machine Communication—mFi

In June 2012, we announced availability of mFi,ehhincludes hardware sensors, power devices, andgeaent software that allows device:
to be monitored and controlled remotely via WifFor example, mFi allows users to manage and mottigar building temperature and power

consumption. The management controller softwale Isased and can be accessed from any browselylocdhrough the cloud. mFi software

allows management to create rules to control nuosedevices.

The table below summarizes information about oadpct platforms:

Bands of
Name Target Applications Operation (GHz) MSRP
Service Provider Products
airMAX Base station/Backhaul/CPE/Bridge 0.9/ 2/ 3/ 5/10 $39 - $399
EdgeMAX Routing/Switching N/A $99 - $369
airFiber Wireless Backhaul 5/24 $999 - $1,498()
Enterprise Products
UniFi WLAN 2/5 $69 - $489
UniFi Video IP Video Surveillance N/A $99 - $469
mFi Machine-To-Machine Communication 2/5 $8 - $99

(1) MSREP listed is for one airFiber unit only, lisitypically sold in pairs.

The Ubiquiti Community

We established the Ubiquiti forum, wiki and newsgeto foster a large, growing and engaged onlamaraunity of service providers and
distributors, customers and employees among otfieesUbiquiti Community powers our business modeldeilitating rapid introductions ai
development of customer-oriented products. The WlbiGommunity provides best practices, adviceyltdleshooting and product feedback. It
also acts as a source of product support and dvivelsmarketing.
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The following describes the key aspects of ouranable business model that are powered by theuitb@ommunity:

» Rapid customer and commun-driven product developmentWe seek to identify features and products that@rare expected to be,
needed or desired by the majority of customershat product. We rely on the Ubiquiti Communityaasignificant source of requests
for features that we translate into new producagdand designs.

e Scalable sales and marketing moc. We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to drive marlkatareness and demand for our products anc
solutions. This community-propagated viral markgtmables us to reach underserved and underpeuetnatrkets far more efficiently
and cost effectively than is possible through tradal sales models. For example, there have bey instances where members of
Ubiquiti Community, who happen to be on online fosunot affiliated with us, have strongly recommehttet users of other wireless
networking solutions try our products and solutidfe also hold conferences as an effective wagttoduce and promote our produ
and solutions to the global Ubiquiti Community. Example, in 2012 and 2013, we held our Ubiquitirild&onference at locations in
the United States, Brazil, Argentina, Hungary, RasShina and India.

» Self-sustaining product supportOur service providers and IT professionals, whihesiastically support each other through the
Ubiquiti forum, as well as other blogs and onlimeups, have fostered a large, scalable and, weugelself-sustaining mechanism for
rapid product support and dissemination of infoioratThe members of the Ubiquiti Community resptmdser questions posted on
our forum in a rapid manner. These responses arertited by other members of the Ubiquiti Commutatiielp ensure that the users
are receiving the best possible answers. Top ass@@ommon questions are stored in the Ubiquitivdeks Community Knowledge
Base. In addition, our internal customer suppagtaization provides feedback on critical produsties, and augments the information
in the Ubiquiti Community.

Research and Development

Our research and development organization is ressiplerfor the design, development and testing ofpsaducts. Our engineering team has
deep expertise and experience in networking arehaatdesign, and we have a number of personnelavifstanding experience with netw
architecture and operation. We have developedrardd to continue to develop our technology in pgroperating with a relatively flat
reporting structure that relies on individual cdmitors or small development teams to develop,ardtobtain feedback for our products. Our
products and solutions benefit from the active gegaent between the Ubiquiti Community and our neteand development personnel
throughout the product development cycle, resulitingapid introduction and adoption of new produ@sir research and development
personnel evaluate the input from service provid@rprofessionals and enterprises and responigetio needs by modifying our products or
developing new products based on the input received

As of June 30, 2014 , our research and developtaant consisted of 216 full time equivalent emplayéecluding contractors, located in the
United States, Taiwan, China, Lithuania, Polandyiaaand elsewhere. Our research and developmemnatpns work on product development
and new versions of our existing products. Ouraeseand development expenses were $34.0 milk21.0 million and $16.7 million for
fiscal 2014 , fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 , respett. We expect that the number of our researchdavelopment personnel will continue to
increase over time and that our research and davelot expenses will also increase.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We retain contract manufacturers to manufactunetrobthe quality of and ship our products. We maiity utilize contract manufacturers
located in China. Our relationships with contraemafacturers allow us to conserve working capitaduce manufacturing costs and minimize
delivery lead times while maintaining high prodgatlity and the ability to scale quickly to handiereased order volume. We make
substantially all of our purchases from our corttraanufacturers on a purchase order basis. Ourammhanufacturers are not required to
manufacture our products for any specific periothany specific quantity. We expect that it wotdéte approximately three to six months to
transition manufacturing, quality assurance ang@hg services to new providers.

Our internal manufacturing organization consistsugiply chain managers, logistics employees anttatiors who supervise the manufacture
of our products at contract manufacturer sitestastiengineers. We rely on our contract manufargwaed our internal quality assurance
resources to implement quality assurance prograsigided to achieve high product quality and reliigbWe believe that our low warranty
expenses and product return rate to date refleigralevel of product quality. We tightly integrater research and development efforts with
our supplier selection process. Once product matwiag quality
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reaches a satisfactory level, we move into fullsspaoduction at the same contract manufacturer ¥ite also evaluate and utilize other
suppliers for components from time to time.

We rely on third party components and technologlyuibd and operate our products, and we rely oncoutract manufacturers to obtain the
components, subassemblies and products necessaing fmanufacture of our products. While componants supplies are generally available
from a variety of sources, we and our contract rfeturers currently depend on a single or limitadhber of suppliers for several compone
for our products. We and our contract manufacturgsson purchase orders rather than long-termraotg with these suppliers. The majority
of our product revenues are dependent upon thesal®ducts that incorporate components from Qaralm Atheros, Inc. ("Qualcomm
Atheros"). We are party to a non-exclusive liceageeement with Qualcomm Atheros whereby we liceestain technology that we
incorporate into our products. The current terrowfamended license agreement with Qualcomm Athexpises on September 1, 2014. This
agreement automatically renews for successive eaeperiods unless the agreement is terminateditigmvnotice of nonrenewal at least 90
days prior to the end of its then-current term. dgpend on this license agreement to modify andicedirmware that Qualcomm Atheros
provides with the chipsets with our proprietaryrfiware. While our agreement with Qualcomm Atherosaias effective, in accordance with
the current terms of the agreement, either party teaminate the agreement without cause at theoétite annual contract term.

We do not stockpile sufficient chipsets to cover time it would take to re-engineer our productestgace the Qualcomm Atheros chipsets
which comprise the raw materials for our produdehgs. If we need to seek a suitable second sdiarcQualcomm Atheros in our products,
there can be no assurance that we would be ablect@ssfully source our chipsets on suitable teifrasall. In any event, our use of chipsets
from multiple sources may require us to signifitamodify our designs and manufacturing processesxtommodate these different chipsets

Sales and Distribution

Historically, we have not employed a direct satasd, nor do we plan to in the future. We sell praducts and solutions globally to service
providers and enterprises primarily through ouergive network of distributors, and, to a lesséemtx original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMs”") and direct customers. During fiscal 202e sold our products to over 100 distributors, GEid direct customers (collectively,
“customers”) in over 60 countries. In fiscal 201fs¢cal 2013 and fiscal 2012 , Flytec Computers tepresented 13% , 13% and 16% of our
revenues, respectively. In fiscal 2012 , Strealavafireless Inc. represented 10% of our revenuesh&deno other customer or distributor that
accounted for more than 10% of our revenues iafi2014 , fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 .

A substantial majority of our sales are made ttrihistors outside the United States and we antieiigat non-U.S. sales will continue to be a
significant portion of our revenues. Sales in Stterica accounted for 19% , 21% and 25% of ouenees in fiscal 2014 , fiscal 2013 and
fiscal 2012 , respectively. Sales in Europe, thddié# East and Africa accounted for 43% , 40% , &b of our revenues in fiscal 2014 , fiscal
2013 and fiscal 2012 , respectively. We do not levevisibility on the location or extent of pursies of our products by individual network
operators and service providers from our distrilgitbhformation regarding financial data by geodiapareas is set forth in ltem 7 and Item 15
of this Form 10-K. See Note 13 of Notes to Consdéd Financial Statements under Item 15.

Although we publish a manufacturer's suggested paiae, or MSRP, for our products, our distribtgdave control of pricing to the ultimate
purchaser. Historically, we have not provided ostributors with any substantial sales trainingrmarketing materials; however, currently, we
are expanding our product education offerings fsiridbutors, as well as increasing marketing supg@ur agreements with our distributors do
not limit their ability to carry products that cortp with ours. Our distribution agreements gengfalve a one year term, subject to automatic
renewal unless cancelled by one of the parties.dributors typically provide us with purchaseéers for delivery within 60 days, which we
use to forecast future demand and estimate deisivedtory builds.

We have initiated a training program for our distitors and other interested individuals so thay ttes educate and train others on the effe
deployment and use of our products and solutiossofAlune 30, 2014 , Ubiquiti had 243 certifiednteas across our various product platforms
with over 6,700 integrators, resellers and othtarésted individuals having completed the certiftcaprocess.

The goal is for those completing the certificatocess to in turn educate and train service peygidnd enterprise customers on the effective

deployment and use of our products and solutioresoffér the training program to distributors anbestinterested individuals in different
languages throughout the world.
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Backlog

Our sales are primarily made through standard @selorders for delivery of products. As we allowtomers to cancel or change orders with
limited advance notice prior to shipment and beeamsne orders remain in backlog due to concernstdbe credit worthiness of the custor
we do not consider backlog to be firm and do ndielse our backlog information is a reliable indizabf our ability to achieve any particular
level of revenue of financial performance.

Competition

The markets for networking solutions for serviceyiers, enterprise WLAN, video surveillance, migewe backhaul and machine+tmachine
communications technology are highly competitivd are influenced by the following competitive fastoamong others:

» total cost of ownership and return on investmeabeisited with the solutior
« simplicity of deployment and use of the solutic

« ability to rapidly develop high performance integihsolutions

« reliability and scalability of the solutior

» market awareness of a particular bri

» ability to provide secure access to wireless neltgy

» ability to offer a suite of products and solutic

» ability to allow centralized management of the Sols; an

» ability to provide quality product suppc

We believe we compete favorably with respect teéhfactors. Although we are a recent entrant irvitieo surveillance, microwave backhaul,
routing and machine-to-machine communication markee believe our products compete favorably is¢hgroduct categories. We have beel
successful in rapidly developing high performantegrated solutions because we use individual ibutors and small, experienced
development teams that focus on the key needsd#rearved and underpenetrated markets. Our prodandtsolutions are designed to mee
price-performance characteristics demanded by wstomers to achieve a strong overall return orr theestment. Our products are designed
to operate in growing networks without degradatioperformance or operational complexity.

In the integrated radio market, our competitordude Cambium Networks, TP-Link and Mikrotikls. metembedded radio market, our
competitors include Mikrotikls and Senao Netwotksthe backhaul market, our competitors include Giam Networks, Ceragon Networks,
DragonWave and Mikrotikls. In the CPE market, campetitors include Cambium Networks, Mikrotikls,dRus Wireless and TP-LINK
Technologies. In the antenna market, we primaoiypete with PCTEL, ARC, ITELITE and Radio Waves.the enterprise WLAN market,
we primarily compete with Aerohive Networks, AruRatworks, Ruckus Wireless and Cisco. In the videweillance market, we primarily
compete with Axis Communications, Mobotix and Vgt In the microwave backhaul market, we primacidynpete with Cambium
Networks, DragonWave, SAF Tehnika and Trango. érttachin-to-machine communications market, we primarily pete with
AlertMe.com, EnergyHub and Motorola. We expectéased competition from other established and emgrpmpanies if our market
continues to develop and expand. As we enter nerkets® we expect to face competition from incumtsard new market participants.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, &@érk and trade secret laws, as well as confidéptimocedures and contractual restrictic
to establish and protect our proprietary rightseSehlaws, procedures and restrictions provide kamiyed protection and the legal standards
relating to the validity, enforceability and scagfeprotection of intellectual property rights anecertain and still evolving. Furthermore,
effective patent, trademark, copyright and tradeeteprotection may not be available in every couimt which our services and products are
available. We seek patent protection for certaiowfkey concepts, components, protocols, processsther inventions.

As of June 30, 2014 , we had 14 issued patenteityhited States, six issued patents in foreigmt@s and over 80 pending U.S. and foreign
patent applications. These patent applicationseétavarious features embedded in certain of oodyxts, including the integration of
components in a microwave system and certain pagnce improvements to radio receivers, and cetgaimologies in developments. We
have filed, and will continue to file, patent aggliions in the United States and other countriesrevtwve believe there to be a strategic
technological or business reason to do so. Anynpaissued to us now or in the future may be chgd, invalidated or circumvented and may
not provide sufficiently broad protection or mayt poove to be enforceable in actions against atlegi&ingers.
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As of June 30, 2014 , we owned U.S. trademark tragiisns in Ubiquiti, Ubiquiti Networks, the beawglo, UBNT, airMAX, airOS, airFiber,
airGrid, UniFi, mFi, EdgeMAX, NanoBeam, NanoStatidfanoBridge, and a number of trademark applicatemd registrations in the United
States and other countries.

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our eyegl® and contractors and with parties with whondwéusiness in order to limit access to
and disclosure of our proprietary information. Vot be certain that the steps we have takerprellent unauthorized use or reverse
engineering of our technology. Moreover, others iimagpendently develop technologies that are coithgetvith ours or that infringe on our
intellectual property. The enforcement of our ilgefual property rights also depends on the suazfessr legal actions against infringers and
counterfeiters, but these actions may not be sefidegven when our rights have been infringed.

Employees

As of June 30, 2014 , we employed 312 full timeiegjent employees, which included 216 in researchd@evelopment, 40 in sales, general
and administrative and 56 in operations. We algaga a number of temporary employees and conssitdnhe of our employees are
represented by a labor union or is a party to Ectve bargaining agreement. We consider ourigglatwith our employees to be good.

Corporate Information

We incorporated in the State of California in 2@83Pera Networks, Inc. and we commenced our cupparations in 2005 and changed our
name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. at that time. Im8w2010, Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., a California corgtion, changed its state of organization t
Delaware by merging with and into Ubiquiti Netwoyksc., a Delaware corporation. Our executive effiare located at 2580 Orchard
Parkway, San Jose, California 95131, and our telepmumber is (408) 942-3085. Our website addezasviv.ubnt.com. The information on,
or that can be accessed through, our website igarbof this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the words"Ws,”
whole.

our” and “Ubiquiti” refer to Ubiquiti Néworks, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 13 in our Notes to Consolidated FafalrStatements included under Part IV, Item 1 report for financial information abc
our geographic areas.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&gports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forikh 8nd amendments to reports fi
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Séesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchangd,Aae filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"). Such reportsather information filed by the Company with BEC are available free of charge on
the Company'’s website at http://ir.ubnt.com/sen.when such reports are available on the SEC welidite public may read and copy any
materials filed by the Company with the SEC at$i#C’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NBnRd580, Washington, DC 20549.
The public may obtain information on the operatdnhe Public Reference Room by calling the SEC-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains
an Internet site that contains reports, proxy aforination statements and other information regaydsuers that file electronically with the
SEC at_www.sec.govThe contents of these websites are not incorpdiato this filing. Further, the Company’s referes to the URLSs for
these websites are intended to be inactive texéfi@tiences only.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statements &na subject to risks and uncertainties that coaltse actual results to differ materially
from those projected. These risks and uncertaimmigsade, but are not limited to, the risk facteeg forth below. These risks and uncertainties
are not the only ones we face. If any event reladdtiese known or unknown risks or uncertaintisally occurs, our business prospects,
results of operation, and financial condition cobddmaterially adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Fluctuations in our operating results could causkda market price of our common stock to decline.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate signifitta due to a variety of factors, many of which atgside of our control and are difficult or
impossible to predict. We expect our operating lteswuill continue to fluctuate. You should not rayn our past results as an indication of our
future performance. If our revenues or operatirsylts fall below the expectations of investorseusities analysts, or below any estimates w
may provide to the market, the price of our comraloares would likely decline substantially, whiclukcbhave a material adverse impact on
investor confidence and employee retention. Ourmomstock has experienced substantial price vityasince our initial public offering. In
addition, the stock market as a whole has expegntajor price and volume fluctuations that haveciéd the stock price of many technolc
companies in ways that may have been unrelatdte®etcompanies’ operating performance.

Factors that could cause our operating resultstouk price to fluctuate include:

» varying demand for our products due to the findrania operating condition of our distributors ahdit customers, distributor invent:
management practices and general economic conglition

» shifts in our fulfillment practices including in@sing inventory levels as part of efforts to desecaur delivery lead time

» failure of our contract manufacturers and suppliensmeet our demar

e success and timing of new product introductionsi®yand our competito

* increased warranty cos

e announcements by us or our competitors regardiodymts, promotions or other transactis

» costs related to legal proceedings or respondimgpt@rnment inquirie

e our ability to control and reduce product costs]

* expenses of our entry into new markets, suchded surveillance, wireless backhaul, and mackeagachine communicatior

In addition, our business may be subject to sedisprethough our recent growth rates and timirfigoduct introductions may have masked
seasonal changes in demand.

We have limited visibility into future sales, whiahakes it difficult to forecast our future operatqresults.

Because of our limited visibility into end custont'gmand and channel inventory levels, our abititpdcurately forecast our future revenues i
limited. We sell our products and solutions glop#édl network operators, service providers and athgimarily through our network of
distributors. We do not employ a direct sales fo8ales to our distributors have accounted foripedirof our revenues. Our distributors do
not make long term purchase commitments to usdambt typically provide us with information aboutarket demand for our products. We
endeavor to obtain information on inventory levaatsl sales data from our distributors. This infoiorahas been generally difficult to obtain

a timely manner, and we cannot always be certainttfe information is reliable. If we over forecdsmand, we may not be able to decrease
our expenses in time to offset any shortfall ineraves. If we under forecast demand, our abilifylfdll sales orders will be compromised and
sales to distributors may be deferred or lost altiogyr.

We are subject to risks associated with our disttirs’ inventory management practices.

Our distributors purchase and maintain their owentories of our products, and we do not contreirtmventory management. Distributors
may manage their inventories in a manner that casigaificant fluctuations in their purchases frquarter to quarter, and which may not be ir
alignment with the actual demand of end custormmarstir products. If some distributors decide tochase more of our products than are
required to satisfy their customers’ demand in panticular quarter, because they do not accuré&edcast demand or otherwise, they may
reduce future orders until their inventory leveadalign with their customers’ demand. If some disttors decide to purchase less of our
products than are required to satisfy their custshtmand in any particular quarter, because tleegot accurately forecast demand or
otherwise, sales of our products may be deferrédsbaltogether.

If our forecasts of future sales are inaccurate, wigay manufacture too many or not enough produc

We may over or under forecast our customers’ acteaiand for our products or the actual mix of aadpcts that they will ultimately
demand. If we over-forecast demand, we may buitex inventory which could materially adverselyeffour operating results. If we under-
forecast demand, we may miss opportunities forssabel may impair our customer relationships, wiimhld materially adversely affect our
operating results.
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The lead times that we face for the procuremegbaiponents and subsequent manufacturing of ouptedre usually much longer than the
lead time from our customers’ orders to the expmkdtdivery date. This increases the risk that wg manufacture too many or not enough
products in any given period.

We may decide to increase or maintain higher levelsnventory.

With the use of third party logistics and warehagsproviders, we may decide to increase or maittajher levels of inventory of finished
products or components, which may expose us teaerrisk of carrying excess or obsolete inventbgcisions to increase or maintain hig
inventory levels are typically based upon uncertaiacasts or other assumptions. If the assumptanghich we base these decisions turn ou
to be incorrect, our financial performance coulffesuand we could be required to write-off the vahf excess products or components
inventory.

We rely on a limited number of distributors, and @hges in our relationships with our distributors a@hanges within our distributors may
disrupt our sales.

Although we have a large number of distributoraiumerous countries who sell our products, a limitechber of these distributors represent a
significant portion of our sales. One or more of major distributors may suffer from a declinelieir financial condition, decrease in demand
from their customers, or a decline in other aspefttieir business which could impair their abilitypurchase and resell our products. Any
distributor may also cease doing business witht asatime with little or no notice. The terminatiof a relationship with a major distributor,
either by us or by the distributor, could resulaitemporary or permanent loss of revenues. Wernotke successful in finding other suitable
distributors on satisfactory terms, or at all, #imd could adversely affect our ability to selldertain geographic markets or to certain network
operators and service providers.

We may not be able to enhance our products to keape with technological and market developments levluiffering competitive prices.

The market for our wireless broadband networkingment is emerging and is characterized by raggtiriological change, evolving industry
standards, frequent new product introductions &dt groduct life cycles. Our ability to keep paeehis market depends upon our ability to
enhance our current products, and continue to dp\aatd introduce new products rapidly and at coitipeprices. Our ability to compete
successfully will depend in large measure on otlitalo maintain a technically skilled developmetd engineering staff, to successfully
innovate, and to adapt to technological changesadrmdnces in the industry. Development and deligehedules for our products are difficult
to predict. We may fail to introduce new versiofi®ar products in a timely fashion. If new releasésur products are delayed, our
distributors may curtail their efforts to marketigsromote our products and our users may switcmhopeting products.

The markets in which we compete are highly competit

The networking, enterprise WLAN, video surveillanaéreless backhaul and machine-to-machine comnatinits markets in which we
primarily compete are highly competitive and arftu@nced by competitive factors including:

» our ability to rapidly develop and introduce newthperformance integrated solutic

» the price and total cost of ownership and returineastment associated with the soluti
» the simplicity of deployment and use of the solusi

» the reliability and scalability of the solutio

» the market awareness of a particular br

» our ability to provide secure access to wireless/aeks;

e our ability to offer a suite of products and sajut

* our ability to allow centralized management of sleéutions; an

e our ability to provide quality product suppt

New entrants seeking to gain market share by intiond) new technology and new products may also ritakere difficult for us to sell ou
products, and could create increased pricing prestuaddition, broadband equipment providersystesm integrators may also offer wireless
broadband infrastructure equipment for free oraas @f a bundled offering, which could force ugeduce our prices or change our selling
model to remain competitive.

If there is a shift in the market such that netwoplerators and service providers begin to use dlnsévork solutions that only operate with
other equipment from the same vendor, we couldapee a significant decline in sales because mdyrts would not be interoperable.
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We expect competition to continuously intensifyoffser established and new companies introduce megupts in the same markets that we
serve or intend to enter, as these markets comgeli@ur business will suffer if we do not maintair competitiveness.

A number of our current or potential competitors ke longer operating histories, greater brand recdgpn, larger customer bases ar
significantly greater resources than we ¢

As we move into new markets for different typegqfiipment, our brand may not be as well-known esritbents in those markets. Potential
customers may prefer to purchase from their exjstumppliers rather than a new supplier, regardiépsoduct performance or features. We
expect increased competition from other establigmetlemerging companies if our market continuatet@lop and expand. As we enter new
markets, we expect to face competition from incuntlaed new market participants.

Many of these companies have significantly grefit@ncial, technical and other resources than wartbare better positioned to acquire and
offer complementary products and technologies.

Industry consolidation and other arrangements ancongpetitors may adversely affect our competitigsrigecause it may be more difficult to
compete with entities that have access to theirbioed resources. These combinations may also affstomers’ perceptions regarding the
viability of companies our size and, consequeraffect their willingness to purchase our products.

The complexity of our products could result in unfeseen delays or expenses caused by undetectedtdefebugs.

Our products may contain defects and bugs whenalheintroduced, or as new versions are releasechde focused, and intend to focus in
the future, on getting our new products to marketkly. Due to our rapid product introductions, &t and bugs that may be contained in ou
products may not yet have manifested. We havedmést experienced, and may in the future experjedefects and bugs. If any of our
products contains material defects or bugs, orélébility, quality or compatibility problems, waay not be able to promptly or successfully
correct these problems. The existence of defedtsigs in our products may damage our reputatiordésrdpt our sales. If any of these
problems are not found until after we have commeémmemmercial production and distribution of a newduct, we may be required to incur
additional development costs, repair or replaceroesis and claims.

Security vulnerabilities in our products, servicasd systems could lead to reduced revenues andndaigainst us

The quality and performance of some of our prodaotsservices may depend upon their ability to stéthd cyber attacks. Third parties may
develop and deploy viruses, worms and other malgcgnftware programs, some of which may be desitmattack our products, systems, or
networks. Some of our products and services algalve the storage and transmission of users' aggbmers' proprietary information which
may be the target of cyber attacks. Hardware aftd/iare that we produce or procure from third paréso may contain defects in manufac
or design, including bugs and other problems, whimhid compromise their ability to withstand cylagtacks.

We may have experienced cyber attacks in the aadtmay experience cyber attacks in the futurea Assult, unauthorized parties may have
obtained, and may in the future obtain, accessit@ystems, data or our users' or customers' Qatasecurity measures may also be breache
due to employee error, malfeasance, or otherwisied parties may also attempt to induce employessts, or customers to disclose sensitive
information in order to gain access to our datawrusers' or customers' data. Any such breacimauthorized access could result in
significant legal and financial exposure, damageuoreputation, and a loss of confidence in theisty of our products and services. Because
the techniques used to obtain unauthorized acdiessdle or degrade service, or sabotage systemgelieequently, and often are not
recognized until launched against a target, we bgaynable to anticipate these techniques or toemeht adequate preventative measures.

The costs to us to eliminate or alleviate secunitinerabilities can be significant, and our effddsaddress these problems may not be
successful and could result in interruptions, delagssation of service and loss of existing oemtidl customers that may impede our sales,
manufacturing, distribution or other critical furmts, as well as potential liability to the compaiife risk that these types of events could
seriously harm our business is likely to increas®a expand the web-based products and services¢haffer.

Our business and prospects depend on the strend@iibuo brand.

Maintaining and enhancing our brand is criticaékpanding our base of distributors and end custendintaining and enhancing our brand
will depend largely on our ability to continue tevélop and provide products and solutions thatesddthe price-performance characteristics
sought by end customers and the users of our ptednd services, particularly in
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developing markets which comprise a significant papur business. If we fail to promote, maintaimd protect our brand successfully, our
ability to sustain and expand our business and eet® markets will suffer.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide our gimeers with valuable feedback that is importantdor research and development
processes

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide ragidd substantive feedback on the functionality dfettveness of our products. The
insights, problems and suggestions raised by theuitbCommunity enable our engineers to quicklgalwe issues with our existing products
and improve functionality in subsequent productasks. If the members of the Ubiquiti Communityemerbecome less engaged or otherwise
ceased providing valuable, timely feedback, owsrimtl research and development costs and our eimatket could increase, which could
cause us to incur additional expenses or make roglupts less attractive to customers.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to generate awaess of, and demand for, our products.

We believe a significant portion of our growth tatel has been driven by the diverse and activelgaged Ubiquiti Community, and our
business model is predicated on the assumptiorthtatibiquiti Community will continue to providedbe benefits. We do not have a direct
sales force and we engage in limited marketing ediperes. Although the Ubiquiti Community is centi@the success of our business, the
interactions within the Ubiquiti Community, and peipation levels, are largely outside of our cohtAny negative information about us or
products in the Ubiquiti Community, whether or npatified, could quickly and materially decrease ttemand for our products.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide netvkooperators and service providers with supportnstall, operate and maintain our
products.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide asarate and other information to network operatorssardice providers for the installation,
operation and maintenance of our products. Becaes#o not generate or control all of the informatpyovided through the Ubiquiti
Community, inaccurate information regarding theafliation, operation and maintenance of our proglagould be promulgated through forum
postings by members of the Ubiquiti Community.

Although we moderate and review many forum postiogsarn of reported problems and assess the angof advice provided by the
Ubiquiti Community, we may not devote sufficiemh or resources to adequately monitor the qualitytaquiti Community information.

Inaccurate information in the Ubiquiti Communityubd lead to poor customer experiences or dissatisfawith our products, which could
negatively impact our reputation and diminish aales.

We may fail to effectively manage the challenges@sated with our growth.

Over the past several years we have expanded,aatithee to expand, our product offerings, the nundfeustomers we sell to, our transac
volumes, the number of our facilities, and the namdff contract manufacturers that we utilize todure our products. Failure to effectively
manage the increased complexity associated wishetkpansion, particularly in light of our lean mgement structure, would make it difficult
to conduct our business, fulfill customer orders] aursue our strategies. We may also need teasercosts to add personnel, upgrade or
replace our existing reporting systems, as weilmgsove our business processes and controls asili of these changes. If we fail to
effectively manage any of these challenges we csuiiiér inefficiencies, errors and disruptions ur business, which in turn would adversely
affect our operating results.

We rely on a limited number of contract manufactueeto produce our products.

We retain contract manufacturers, located primanilZhina, to manufacture our products. Any sigmifit change in our relationship with these
manufacturers could have a material adverse effectur business, operating results and financiadlition. Our reliance on contract
manufacturers for manufacturing our products casemt significant risks to us because, among otiregs, we do not have direct control over
their activities. We significantly depend upon contract manufacturers to:

e assure the quality of our produ

* manage capacity during periods of volatile dem

» qualify appropriate component suppli

e ensure adequate supplies of components and ma|

» deliver finished products at agreed upon pricessamhedules; ar
» safeguard materials and finished go
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The ability and willingness of our contract manufaers to perform is largely outside our control.

We believe that our orders may not represent amabfmrtion of our contract manufacturers’ totaflers and, as a result, fulfilling our orders
may not be a priority in the event our contract ofaoturers are constrained in their capacity. if ahour contract manufacturers experiences
problems in its manufacturing operations, or iflveee to change or add additional contract manufaxstuour ability to ship products to our
customers would be impaired.

We rely upon a limited number of suppliers, ancciéin be costly and time consuming to use componémsn other suppliers.

We purchase components, directly or through outraohmanufacturers, from third parties that areaseary for the manufacture of our
products. Shortages in the supply of componentstar supply disruptions may not be predictedriretio design-in different components or
qualify other suppliers. Shortages or supply disans may also increase the prices of componerdggamarket conditions. While many
components are generally available from a variégoarces, we and our contract manufacturers ctlyrdapend on a single or limited number
of suppliers for several components for our proslugbr example, we currently rely upon Qualcommefdls as a single-source supplier of
certain components for some of our products, adgigraiption in the supply of those components waidphificantly disrupt our business.

We and our contract manufacturers generally relghmrt-term purchase orders rather than long-temmtracts with the suppliers of
components for our products. As a result, eveoifigonents are available, we and our contract matwrgrs may not be able to procure
sufficient components at reasonable prices to ildproducts in a timely manner. We may, therefbesunable to meet customer demand fo
our products, which would have a material adveffgeton our business, operating results and firucondition.

Risks Related to Our International Operations

Our business is susceptible to risks associateth wjierations outside of the United States.

We have operations in China, Lithuania, Polandwaai, United States and elsewhere. We also selstadlaitors in numerous countries
throughout the world. Our operations outside oflimited States subject us to risks that we genedalinot face in the United States. These
include:

« the burdens of complying with a wide varietyfafeign laws and regulations, and the risks of nompliance
» fluctuations in currency exchange ra

» increasing labor costs, especially in Ch

« difficulties in managing the geographically remp&rsonne

» the complexities of foreign tax systems and chamg#seir tax rates and ruls

» limited protection and enforcement regimes forllatgual property rights in some countr

* increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexity; ar

» political, social and economic instability in sojoesdictions

Our third party logistics and warehousing provideirs China and elsewhere may fail to safeguard anctarately manage and report our
inventory.

We use third party logistics and warehousing prersdocated in China to fulfill the majority of oworldwide sales. We also rely on our third
party logistics and warehousing providers to sadeduand manage and report on the status of odupts at their warehouse and in transit.
These service providers may fail to safeguard ooduyrcts, fail to accurately segregate and repariroeentory, or fail to manage and track the
delivery of our products, which could have a matesdverse effect on our operating results andhfirz condition.

To the extent that we develop some of our own maetiiring capacity, we will be subject to variousks associated with such activities.

We have begun to invest in developing some of eumr manufacturing capacity, for example to suppartproduct development and
prototyping. To the extent that we may invest id arpand these manufacturing capabilities, anckagingly rely upon such activities, we will
face increased risks associated with:

» bearing the fixed costs of these activil
» directly procuring components and mater
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» regulatory and other compliance requireme

e exposure to casualty loss and other disrupt

e quality control

* labor relations; ar

» our limited experience in operating manufacturiagilfties

Since these activities would be conducted in Chéoaye of these risks may be more significant dubddess predictable legal and political
environment.

Our business may be negatively affected by politeeents and foreign policy responses.

Geopolitical uncertainties and events could caaseatje or disruption to international commerce &edgtobal economy, and thus could have
a material adverse effect on us, our supplierssiicg providers, manufacturing vendors and custepiecluding our channel partners. The
foreign policies of governments may be volatiled amay result in rapid changes to import and expaytiirements, customs classifications,
tariffs, trade sanctions and embargoes that mayepteaus from offering products or providing sergde particular entities or markets or may
create delays and inefficiencies in our supply khBor example, political unrests and uncertairitidsastern Europe and Middle East may |
to disruptions in commerce in those regions, whichild in turn impact our sales to those regionsttiermore, if the U.S. government impo
new sanctions against certain countries or entisiesh sanctions could sufficiently restrict ouiligbto market and sell our products and may
materially adversely affect our results of openatio

Our ability to introduce new products and suppomioexisting products depends on our ability to magegeographically dispersed research
and development teams.

Significant parts of our research and developmpetations are conducted in geographically dispeesdities. Our success depends on the
effectiveness of our research and developmentitiesiviWe must successfully manage these geogralphitispersed teams in order to meet
our objectives for new product introduction, prodgeality and product support. It can be diffiddteffectively manage geographically
dispersed research and development teams. If Wi féd so, we could incur unexpected costs ondeila product development.

Our contract manufacturers, logistics centers andrtain administrative and research and developmepgrations are located in areas like
to be subject to natural disasters.

The manufacturing or shipping of our products & onmore facilities may be disrupted because @anufacturing and logistics contractors
all located in southern China. Our principal exaaubffices are located in California. The riskseafithquakes, extreme storms and other
natural disasters in these geographic areas ardicamt. Any disruption resulting from these ev&nbuld cause significant delays in product
development or shipments of our products until veeable to shift our development, manufacturingpgistics centers from the affected
contractor to another vendor, or shift the affe@dchinistrative or research and development aigt#/tb another location.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

We have limited ability to obtain and enforce inkettual property rights, and may fail to most eftaely obtain and enforce such rights.

Our success can depend significantly upon ourlattielal property rights. We rely on a combinatidmpatent, copyright, trademark, trade se
laws, and contractual rights to establish, mainsaid protect these intellectual property rightsphivhich afford only limited protection. Our
patent rights, and the prospective rights sougbuinpending patent applications, may not be megmiror provide us with any commercial
advantage and they could be opposed, contestednorented or designed around by our competitokeateclared invalid or unenforceable in
legal proceedings. In addition, patents may nasfeed from any of our current or future patentliappons. Any failure of our patents or ott
intellectual property rights to adequately protaaet technology might make it easier for our contpedito offer similar products or
technologies.

Confidentiality agreements with our employees,fgses, independent contractors and others mayffaotieely prevent disclosure of our tra
secrets, and may not provide an adequate remetig ievent of unauthorized use or disclosure otraate secrets. We may also fail or have
failed to obtain such agreements from such perdaego administrative oversights or other reasons.

Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual peaty is difficult and costly. Unauthorized useooir intellectual property, such as the

production of counterfeits of our products, andutharized registration and use of our trademarkthivg parties, is a matter of ongoing
concern. The steps we have taken may not prevexithiorized use of our intellectual property. We may
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fail to detect infringements of, or take appro@iateps to enforce, our intellectual property sgliur competitors might independently dev:
similar technology without infringing our intellel property rights. Our inability or failure tofe€tively protect our intellectual property col
reduce the value of our technology and could impairability to compete. Any inability or failure/tus to meaningfully protect our intellecti
property could result in competitors offering prothuthat incorporate our most technologically aceafeatures.

We have initiated and may continue to initiate lgaceedings to enforce our intellectual propeigits. Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff
or a defendant, can be expensive and time-consymag place our intellectual property at risk oirgeinvalidated or narrowed in scope, and
may divert the efforts of our technical staff andrmagerial personnel.

Enforcement of our intellectual property rights abad, particularly in China and South America, isniited.

The intellectual property protection and enforcetiregimes in certain countries outside the UniteteS are generally not as comprehensi

in the United States, and may not adequately protacintellectual property The legal regimes rieigito the recognition and enforcement
intellectual property rights in China and South Aita are particularly limited. Legal proceedingstdorce our intellectual property in these
jurisdictions may progress slowly, during which ¢iimfringement may continue largely unimpeded. Goes that have relatively inefficie
intellectual property protection and enforcemegimes represent a significant portion of the denfandur products. These factors may make
it more challenging for us to enforce our intelledtproperty rights against infringement. The imigment of our intellectual property rights,
particularly in these jurisdictions, may materidiigrm our business in these markets and elsewleaetibcing our sales, and diluting our br

or reputation.

Our contract manufacturers may not respect our ifleetual property, and may produce products thaingpete with ours.

Our contract manufacturers operate in China, wtierg@rosecution of intellectual property infringerhand trade secret theft is more difficult
than in the United States. In the past, our conhtremufacturers, their affiliates, their other cusers or their suppliers have attempted to
participate in efforts to misappropriate our irgetual property and trade secrets to manufactureroducts for themselves or others without
our knowledge. Even if the agreements with our mmtmanufacturers, and applicable laws, prohiigtrt from misusing our intellectual
property and trade secrets, we may be unsuccesshanitoring and enforcing our intellectual profyetights against them. We have in the
past, and continue to discover, counterfeit goadsdisold as our products.

We operate in an industry with extensive intelleatyproperty litigation.

Our commercial success depends in part upon us@ancbmponent suppliers not infringing intellectpabperty rights owned by others, and
being able to resolve intellectual property claimthout major financial expenditures. Our key comeot suppliers are often targets of
intellectual property claims, and we are subjeatléoms as well.

There are numerous patents and patent applicatiaghe United States and other countries relatingommunications technologies. It can be
difficult or impossible to conduct meaningful sdags for patents relating to our technologies, @pproach third parties to seek a license to
their patents. Even extensive searches for patieatsnay be relevant to our products may not uncallgelevant patents and patent
applications. We cannot determine with certaintyethler any existing or future third party intellestproperty rights would require us to alter
our technologies, obtain licenses or cease ceatdinities.

We have received, and may in the future receiamd from third parties asserting intellectual gndyp infringement and other related claims.
As our revenues grow and our profile increasesfrirguency and significance of these claims mayeiase. Whether or not there is merit to a
given claim, it can be time consuming and costlgefend against, and could:

e adversely affect our relationships with our currenfuture users, customers and suppl
» cause delays or stoppages in the shipment of a@gupts

» cause us to modify or redesign our prodt

« divert managemerg’attention and resourc

» subject us to significant damages or settlem

e require us to enter into costly licensing agreesiem

* require us to cease offering certain of our prosloctservice:

The production of counterfeit versions of our prodts may reduce our sales levels and damage our bran

We have in the past and continue to discover cofgiteersions of our products. Although we havestasteps to combat counterfeiting, it is
difficult or impossible to detect or prevent alstances of counterfeiting. Particularly if the qtyabf
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counterfeit products is poor, damage could be domair brand. Combating counterfeiting is difficatid expensive, and may not be succes
especially in countries that have a relatively wiegjal regime for the protection of intellectuabperty.

We use open source software in our products thatyrsabject source code to public release or requiseto re-engineer our products.

We use open source software in certain of our prsland may use more open source software irutheet

There have been claims challenging the ownershipftfvare against companies that use open soufivease in the development of their
products. We could become subject to claims reggrttie ownership of what we believe to be our pedary software.

Usage of open source software can also lead toegneésks than the use of third party commercidtveare, since open source licensors
generally do not provide warranties or controlagin of the software.

Some open source licenses contain requirementsisked make available and license the source coded modifications or derivative works
that they create based upon the open source seftifave combine our proprietary software with opeuirce software we could, in some
circumstances, be required to release our propyistaurce code publicly or license such source ardenfavorable terms or at no cost. That
could significantly diminish the value of some air@roducts and negatively affect our business.

Risks Related to Our Management and Structure

We may lose the services of our founder and chied@utive officer, Robert J. Pera, or other key pensel.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services ofraenagement team, and in particular ou
founder and chief executive officer, Robert J. P&nar future performance may also depend on olityatw retain other key personnel. We do
not maintain any significant key person insuranéé wegard to any of our personnel.

Our business model relies in part on leanly stafifedependent and efficient research and developteams. Our research and development
teams are organized around small groups or indatidontributors for a given platform, and therétige overlap in knowledge and
responsibilities. In the event that we are unablestain the services of any key contributors, vay ime unable to bring our products or product
improvements to market in a timely manner, if tdile to disruption in our development activities.

Our future success also depends on our abilityttad, retain and motivate skilled personnel. &lbur employees work for us on an at will
basis. Competition for personnel is intense inntéivorking equipment industry, particularly for pens with specialized experience in areas
such as antenna design and radio frequency equipiher® are unable to attract and retain the nemgspersonnel our business could be
materially adversely affected.

We may fail to manage our growth effectively andvééop and implement appropriate control systems.

We have substantially expanded our business anatiqes in recent periods, including increasehi@ariumber of our distributors, contract
manufacturers, headcount locations and facilifiésés rapid expansion places a significant straimenmanagerial, administrative, and
operational resources. Our business model refteotslecision to operate with streamlined infradties with lower support and administrative
headcount. That may increase the risks associatadnanaging our growth, and we may not have sifficinternal resources to adapt or
respond to unexpected challenges and complianceregaents.

Our profitability may decline as we expand into ngoduct areas.

We receive a substantial majority of our revenuesifthe sale of outdoor wireless networking equipimas we expand into other products
and services, such as enterprise WLAN, video sllaneie equipment, wireless backhaul and machinedchine communications, we may not
be able to compete effectively with existing maneitticipants and may not be able to realize atipesieturn on the investment we have made
in these products or services. Entering these rntarkay result in increased product developmentscasid our new products may have
extended time to market relative to our currentpts. If our introduction of a new product is satcessful, or if we are not able to achieve
the revenues or margins we expect, our operatisigteemay be harmed and we may not recover oumgtatevelopment and marketing
expenditures.

We may also be required to add a direct sales famdecustomer support personnel to market and stippw or existing products, which

would cause us to experience substantially lowedycet margins or increase our operating expensasing a direct sales force or customer
support personnel could reduce our operating incangemay not be successful.
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Our operating expenses are increasing as we makgeexlitures to enhance and expand our operations.

Over the past several years, we have increaseexpenditure on infrastructure to support our apsitéd growth and as a result of our being a
public company. We are continuing to make signiftdavestments in information systems, hiring madeninistrative personnel, using more
professional services and expanding our operatiatside the United States. We intend to make amfgitiinvestments in systems and
personnel and continue to expand our operatiosggport anticipated growth in our business. Assaltewe expect our operating expenses to
increase.

In addition, we may need in the future to buildrect sales force to market and sell our productsrovide additional resources or cooperative
funds to our distributors. Such changes to ourtiexjsales model would likely result in higher sedl general and administrative expenses as
percentage of our revenues.

We rely on third party software and services to dot our enterprise resource planning, financialghning and analysis, and financial
reporting.

We currently use NetSuite and other software amdc®s to conduct our order management and findpoiesses. The availability of this
service is essential to the management of our besirAs we expand our operations, we expect faeitidditional systems and service
providers that may also be essential to managinduasiness. Although the systems and servicesmbaiequire are typically available from a
number of providers, it is time consuming and goilqualify and implement these relationships.

Our ability to manage our business would suffemi& or more of our providers suffer an interrupiiotheir business, or experience delays,
disruptions or quality control problems in theireogtions, or we have to change or add additiorstegays and services. We may not be able to
control the quality of the systems and servicesageive from third party service providers, whichulel impair our financial reporting amday
negatively impact our operating results and finahcondition.

Our debt levels could adversely affect our abilityraise additional capital to fund our operatiora limit our ability to react to changes in
our industry or the economy.

As of June 30, 2014, our balance outstanding uodeexisting credit facility was $72.3 million . the future we may need to raise additional
capital to fund our growth and operational godlsdditional financing is not available when reggiror on acceptable terms, we may not be
able to expand our business, develop or enhancgroducts, take advantage of business opporturatiesspond to competitive pressures,
which could result in lower revenues and reducectirapetitiveness of our products.

In addition, any potential debt level increasedadave important consequences, including:

e requiring a substantial portion of cash flows froperations to be dedicated to the payment of gral@nd interest on our indebtedne
thereby reducing our ability to use our cash fléavéund our operations and capital expenditured,@mrsue business opportunities;

» increasing our vulnerability to general industryl@tonomic condition
» limiting our ability to make strategic acquisitis or causing us to make nsimategic divestiture

« limiting our ability to obtain additional finamg for working capital, capital expenditures, dsbtvice requirements, acquisitions and
general corporate or other purposes; and

» limiting our ability to adjust to changing matlenditions and placing us at a competitive disaage compared to competitors who
are less highly leveraged or have access to maitata

If we are unable to integrate future acquisitionsiscessfully, our operating results and prospectsiicbbe harmed

We may make acquisitions to improve or expand oodyct offerings. Our future acquisition strategil depend on our ability to identify,
negotiate, complete and integrate acquisitionss@&tansactions involve numerous risks, including:

« difficulties in integrating and managing the og@ns, technologies and products of the compaméacquire, particularly in light of
our lean organizational structure;

» diversion of our managemestttention from normal daily operation of our Imesis
e our inability to maintain the key business relasibips and the brand equity of the businesses wra
e ourinability to retain key personnel of the acqdibusiness, particularly in light of the demandsphace on individual contributo
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* uncertainty of entry into markets in which wevbdimited or no prior experience and in which catifors have stronger market
positions;

« our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and pagméithe companies we acqu

» insufficient revenues to offset our increased egpsrassociated with acquisitic

» our responsibility for the liabilities of the busisses we acquire, including those which we mayntitipate; an

* our inability to maintain internal standards, cotgr procedures and policies, particularly in lighbur lean organizational structt

We may be unable to secure the equity or debt igndecessary to finance future acquisitions ondelrat are acceptable to us. Completing
acquisitions could consume significant amountsashc If we finance acquisitions by issuing equitganvertible debt securities, our existing
stockholders will likely experience dilution, arfdrie finance future acquisitions with debt fundimge will incur interest expense and may h
to comply with covenants and secure that debt abtig with our assets.

Our CEO has control over key decision making asesult of his control of a majority of our voting stk.

Robert Pera, our founder, Chairman, and CEO, is tabéxercise voting rights with respect to a majaf the voting power of our outstand
stock and therefore has the ability to control thicome of matters submitted to our stockholdersafgproval, including the election
directors and any merger, consolidation, or salallodr substantially all of our assets. This cortcated control could delay, defer, or preve
change of control, merger, consolidation, or sdlalloor substantially all of our assets that otlies stockholders support, or conversely
concentrated control could result in the consumonatif such a transaction that our other stockheldernot support. This concentrated col
could also discourage certain potential investomsfacquiring our common stock and might harm thdihg price of our stock. In additic
Mr. Pera has the ability to control the managenagigt major strategic investments of our companyrasuait of his position as our CEO and
ability to control the election or replacement afr airectors. In the event of his death, the shafesur stock that Mr. Pera owns will
transferred to his successors. As a board memloeofficer, Mr. Pera owes a fiduciary duty to ouratholders and must act in good faith
manner he reasonably believes to be in the bestelsts of our stockholders. As a stockholder, evaontrolling stockholder, Mr. Pera
entitled to vote his shares in his own interestictv may not always be in the interests of ourldtotders generally.

Risks Related to Regulatory, Legal and Tax Matters

We are subject to export control and economic s@oes laws in the United States and elsewhere whicluld impair our ability to compete
in international markets and subject us to liab#itif we do not comply with applicable laws.

A substantial majority of our sales are into costioutside of the United States. Sales of ourymrtsdinto certain countries are restricted or
prohibited under U.S. export control and econoraitcsions laws. In addition, certain of our produntrporate encryption components that
are subject to export control regulations.

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeithhe U.S. Commerce Department, Bureau of Inguemtid Security’s (“BIS”) Office of
Export Enforcement (“OEE”) relating a review contketby us regarding certain export transactions f2008 through March 2011 in which
products may have been later sold into Iran bytharties. In June 2011, we also filed a self-disate statement with the U.S. Department of
the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Asset Control (“&EF) regarding these compliance issues. We resatlrednatters described in our self-
disclosures with the BIS and OFAC, and have takgmficant steps towards ensuring our complianciwkport control regulations and
embargoes. It is, however, possible that violatimay occur in the future. If violations should ocauthe future, the response of regulators
may be more severe in light of prior compliancecsons.

In addition to U.S. export regulations, variousestbountries regulate the import of certain endoyptechnology and products, and these laws
could limit our ability to distribute our produads our customers’ ability to implement our productshose countries. Changes in our products
or changes in export and import regulations magterdelays in the introduction of our productstimen countries, prevent our customers with
international operations from deploying our proguat, in some cases, prevent the transfer of mdyuats to certain countries altogether. Any
change in export or import regulations or relatgidlation, shift in approach to the enforcemergampe of existing regulations, or change in
the countries, persons or technologies targeteslibly regulations, could negatively impact our bt sell our products to existing customers
or the ability of our current and potential distribrs, network operators and service providersidaithe United States.

New regulations or changes in existing regulationsated to our products may result in unanticipatédirdens, costs and liabilitie:

Products that involve electromagnetic emissionssabgect to regulation in the United States andother countries in which we do busines:
the United States, various federal agencies inctuthe Center for Devices and Radiological Healtthe
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Food and Drug Administration, the Federal Commuiocas Commission, the Occupational Safety and Headiministration and various state
agencies have promulgated regulations that cortbernse of electromagnetic emissions standards.ddeoountries of the EU and other
countries have enacted similar standards concesieufrical safety and electromagnetic compatibdind emissions standards. If any of our
products becomes subject to new regulations onjifad our products becomes specifically regulatgéddiditional government entities,
compliance with such regulations could become rbardensome, and we may be unable to ship our pteduthey may cost substantially
more to produce, which would reduce our revenuésimrease our cost of revenues.

Government regulations designed to protect persop@vacy may make it difficult for us to sell ourrpducts.

Our products may transmit and store personal indion. The handling of such information is increa$y subject to regulations in numerous
jurisdictions around the world. These regulatiorestgpically intended to protect the privacy andwséy of personal information that
collected, stored and transmitted in or from theegoing jurisdiction. In addition, because varidoieign jurisdictions have different
regulations concerning the storage and transmissgipersonal information, we may face unknown regmients that pose compliance
challenges in new geographic markets that we seekter. Our efforts to protect the privacy of imiation may also fail if our encryption and
security technology is inadequate or fails to ofgees expected. The difficulties in complying wpttivacy and data protection regulations cc
subject us to costs, delayed product launcheslitiab or negative publicity that could impair oability to maintain or expand our operations
into some countries and therefore limit our futgrewth.

Our products rely on the availability of specifimlicensed radio frequency spectrum.

Our products operate in unlicensed radio frequétiRF’) spectrum, which is used by a wide range efides such as cordless phones, baby
monitors, and microwave ovens, and is becomingeaingly crowded. If such spectrum usage contitu@srease through the proliferatior
consumer electronics and products competitive wifts, and others, the resultant higher levelswtal and interference in the bands of
operation our products use could decrease. Ounéssicould be further harmed if currently unlicenR& spectrum becomes subject to
licensing in the United States or elsewhere. Nétvegerators and service providers that use ourymtsdnay be unable to obtain licenses for
RF spectrum at reasonable prices or at all. Evtheifinlicensed spectrum remains unlicensed, egistnd new government regulations may
require we make changes in our products. For ex@nplprovide products for network operators andise providers who utilize unlicensed
RF spectrum, we may be required to limit theirigbtb use our products in licensed RF spectrune djperation of our products by network
operators or service providers in the United Statesewhere in a manner not in compliance wittaldaw could result in fines, operational
disruption, or harm to our reputation. In additidmew spectrums, either licensed or unlicenseeli@ade available by government regulatory
agencies for broadband wireless communicationrttzgt disrupt the competitive landscape of our ingusihd impact our business.

We could be adversely affected by unfavorable resin litigation.

We may be involved, from time to time, in a variefyclaims, lawsuits, investigations, and procegslirelating to contractual disputes,
intellectual property rights, employment matteegulatory compliance matters and other litigaticatters relating to various claims that arise
in the normal course of business and otherwigzaritbe difficult or impossible to predict the outeof legal proceedings with any degree of
certainty, particularly given that laws may be agugius and factual findings can often be the resfuticomplete evidence, opinions, varying
standards or proof, and extraneous factors. Ifasmaore of the legal proceedings to which we magileecome a party are resolved again:
our results of operations and financial conditionld adversely affected.

We may become subject to warranty claims, prodiatility and product recalls.

We have received, and may in the future receiveraméy or product liability claims that may requirs to make significant expenditures to
defend these claims or pay damage awards. In et @f a successful warranty claim, we may alsaricosts if we compensate the affected
network operator or service provider. Such clainay mequire a significant amount of time and expangsesolve and defend against, and ¢
also harm our reputation by calling into questioa guality of our products. We also may incur casid expenses relating to a recall of one ol
more of our products. The process of identifyingatked products that have been widely distributey tme lengthy and require significant
resources and we may incur significant replaceroesits, contract damage claims and harm to ouragpnt

Our customers and the users of our products may entpus to indemnify them against claims for intedteial property infringement, defectiy
products and other losse

Our customers, users and other parties may expdotindemnify them for losses incurred in conr@tivith our products, including as a re:
of intellectual property infringement, defectiveoducts, and security vulnerabilities, even if ogrements with them do not require us to
provide this indemnification. In some instancesmagy decide to defend and
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indemnify them, irrespective of whether we belitvat we have an obligation to do so. The expenssscéated with providing indemnification
can be substantial. We may also reject demandademnification, which may lead to disputes witbustomer or other party and may
negatively impact our relationships with them.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately repmur financial condition or results of
operations.

Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act requires our management to furnish a mepo, and our independent registered public acogrirm to
attest to, the effectiveness of our internal cdraxer financial reporting. The applicable ruleguie us to disclose any material weaknesses i
our internal controls over financial reporting.the event that we disclose a material weaknesariinternal controls over financial reporting,
investor perceptions of our company may be adveefétcted and could cause a decline in the mamke¢ of our stock.

Failure to comply with the FCPA and similar laws atd subject us to penalties and other adverse copsmces.

We face significant risks if we fail to comply withe Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) of tHaited States and other laws that prohibit
improper payments or offers of payment to foreignegnments and their officials and political pasti®y us and other business entities for the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business. In mangign countries, particularly in countries withveloping economies, which represent our
principal markets, it may be a local custom thagibesses operating in such countries engage indssspractices that are prohibited by the
FCPA or other laws and regulations. Although weehiavplemented a company policy requiring our emeésyand consultants to comply with
the FCPA and similar laws, there can be no assartdrat all of our employees, and agents, as weéll@se companies to which we outsource
certain of our business operations, will not tagioas in violation of our policies, for which weawy be ultimately held responsible. Any
violation of FCPA or similar laws could result iav&re criminal or civil sanctions and suspensiodedyarment from U.S. government
contracting, which could have a material and adveffect on our reputation, business, operatinglt®and financial condition.

We may suffer from unfavorable tax law changes, anfavorable government review of our tax returng; changes in our geographic
earnings mix.

We are subject to periodic audits or other revibws$ax authorities in the jurisdictions in which wenduct our activities. Tax authorities could
challenge our assertions with respect to how we ltanducted our business operations as might riesaltlaim for larger tax payments from
us.

In the ordinary course of our business, there @aByninstances where the determination of tax imgiliois is uncertain. Our calculations of
income taxes may be based on our interpretatioaplfcable tax laws in the jurisdictions in whig file. The final determination of our
income tax liabilities may be materially differehtan what is reflected in our income tax provisiansl accruals.

The legislative bodies in many jurisdictions regiyl@onsider proposed legislation that, if adopteulld affect our tax rate in such
jurisdictions, and the carrying value of our dedertax assets or our tax liabilitie

We conduct operations in multiple jurisdictionsdaherefore our effective tax rate is influencedMy amounts of income and expense
attributed to each such jurisdiction. If such antewmere to change so as to increase the amouots afet income subject to taxation in higher
tax jurisdictions, or if we were to increase ouergiions in jurisdictions assessing relatively leigtax rates, our effective tax rate could be
adversely affected.

If we are required to bring cash into the United&és to meet our future funding requirements, we yrtaave to pay high tax rates or se
other available funds.

We hold the substantial majority of our cash arshaaquivalents in accounts of our subsidiariesideitsf the United States, as our business is
largely outside of the United States. Our expeiséise United States could increase faster thaexpect. If our cash held in the United States
became insufficient to meet our future funding iegments in the United States, we may transfer cashthe United States. If we decide to
transfer earnings from our non-U.S. subsidiariehéoUnited States, that could give rise to thedsifjion of potentially significant withholding
taxes by the jurisdictions in which such amountsenearned, and we may incur substantial tax ligslin the United States. In addition, we
may not receive the benefit of offsetting tax ctgdivhich also could adversely impact our effectaserate.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in San Gadiégrnia consisting of approximately 64,512 sguieet of space, which we lease through
June 30, 2017. Additionally, we lease approxima@3y000 square feet gpace in Suzhou, China, which is being leased girdune 16, 201t
These facilities would house our proposed manufagacility in China.

In addition, we also lease facilities around theldiand within the facilities of certain supplids use as research and development facilities,
business development and support offices, warelsarse logistics centers and test facilities. Tze aind location of these properties change
from time to time based on business requirememtso&r research and development and business gewefd and support personnel, we also
have leased offices in Taiwan, China, Lithuaniaylaa Poland, and various locations within the ©diStates of America. We believe that our
existing properties are in good condition and &lédor the conduct of our business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information with respect to this item may be foundNote 8 in the Notes Consolidated Financial $tetiets included under Part IV, Item 15 of
this report.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market Information

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NASDA®Dal Select Market under the symbol “UBNT.” Tielowing table shows, for the
periods indicated, the high and low intra-day gadees for our common stock on the NASDAQ GlobdeSeMarket.

Year Ended June 30, 2014

High Low
First Quarter $ 37.4( $ 17.15
Second Quarter $ 46.8¢ % 33.61
Third Quarter $ 56.8¢ $ 37.5(
Fourth Quarter $ 479: % 30.5(
Year Ended June 30, 2013
High Low
First Quarter $ 15.2¢ $ 7.8(
Second Quarter $ 13.1¢ $ 9.97
Third Quarter $ 16.6¢€ $ 11.3¢
Fourth Quarter $ 20.8¢ $ 12.81]

As of August 18, 2014 , the number of record had#rour common stock was 13. Because most oftwanes are held by brokers and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are uaab estimate the total number of beneficial statélers represented by these record holders

27




Table of Contents

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares, for the period betw@etober 14, 2011 (the date of our initial puloiifering) and June 30, 2014 , the
cumulative total stockholder return for our comnstock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQrpater Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on October 14,ia@lr common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index tr@elNASDAQ Computer Index
and assumes reinvestment of any dividends. Thé& giooe performance on the following graph is netessarily indicative of future stock
price performance. This performance graph shalbeadeemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 &f 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), or incorporated bgnence into any of our filings under the Secusittet of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly sét fiyrtspecific reference in such filing.

COMPARISON OF 32 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., the NASDAQ Compositelex, and the NASDAQ Computer Index
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*$100 invested on 10/14/11in stock or 9/30/11 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30.

Dividends

On December 14, 2012, the Company announced shBbdrd of Directors had authorized a special dagbend of $0.18 per share for each
share of common stock outstanding on December@.2The aggregate dividend payment of $15.7 miNias paid on December 28, 201
stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Atyréudetermination with respect to the declaratind payment of dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Information regarding the securities authorizedigsuance under our equity compensation plans edound under Iltem 12 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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Unregistered Securities Sold During fiscal 2014
We did not sell any unregistered securities dufiscal 2014 .

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated statement of operatiatesfdr the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 , 26832012 and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are déroracbur audited consolidated financial statemémtkided elsewhere in this report. The
selected consolidated statement of operations amgpihensive income data for the fiscal years eddad 30, 2011 and 2010 and the
consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30,, 22 and 201@re derived from our audited consolidated finansiatements which are |
included in this report. Historical results are netessarily indicative of future results and stidad read in conjunction with the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” and the cadatdd financial statements, related
notes, and other financial information includedtiis report.

Years Ended June 30,

In thousands, except per share data 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive
Income Data:
Revenues $ 572,46  $ 320,82 % 35351 % 197,87  $ 136,95:
Cost of revenue® 318,99° 185,48¢ 202,51+ 117,06: 82,40:
Gross profit 253,46 135,33 151,00¢ 80,81: 54,54¢
Operating expenses:
Research and developm® 33,96 20,95¢ 16,69¢ 11,37¢ 31,70«
Sales, general and administratD@® 23,56( 21,77t 9,01z 7,35¢ 18,16:

Total operating expenses 57,52. 42,73( 25,71: 18,73. 49,86¢
Income from operations 195,94! 92,60 125,29: 62,08 4,68:
Interest income (expense) and other, net (1,339 (857) (1,269 79 581
Income before provision for income taxes 194,61 91,75: 124,02; 62,15¢ 5,26¢
Provision for income taxes 17,67: 11,26¢ 21,43 12,43: 10,71¢
Net income and comprehensive income (loss) 176,93 80,49( 102,58t 49,72; (5,456)
Preferred stock cumulative dividend and accretiorost of
preferred stock — — (112,43) (42,06¢) (1,43¢)
Less allocation of net income to participating pregd
stockholders = — — (2,784 —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhrstdebasic 176,93 80,49( (9,847) 4,87¢ (6,892)
Undistributed earnings re-allocated to common dtolders _ — _ 10z _
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhigddediluted $ 176,93 $ 80,49( $ (9,849 $ 4,97¢ $ (6,897)
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic $ 2.0z $ 0.91 $ 01y % 0.0¢ $ (0.0¢)

Diluted $ 1.97 $ 0.8¢ $ 012 $ 0.07 $ (0.0¢)

Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢ss) per
share of common stock:

Basic 87,77: 88,31« 83,46( 63,092 88,97
Diluted 89,71¢ 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90 88,97:
Cash dividends declared per common share $ — $ 0.1¢ $ — $ — $ —
@ Includes stoc-based compensation as follov
Cost of revenues $ 59C $ 44¢ $ 117 $ 30 $ 12¢
Research and development 2,427 1,437 547 28k 26,22°
Sales, general and administrative 1,897 1,497 834 637 9,81«
Total stock-based compensation $ 4906 $ 337 % 1,49: $ 95: $ 36,15¢
@ Includes a charge for (gain on reversal of chéogean export
compliance matter as follows: $ 112y $ — $ — $ — $ 1,62¢
® Includes gain from a trademark coexistence agratase
follows: $ — $ — $ 1500 $ — $ —
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June 30,

In thousands 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 347,09  $ 227,82t $ 122,060 $ 76,36.  $ 28,41
Working capital 413,40¢ 224,05: 155,46: 90,30: 55,00
Total assets 476,15: 292,34( 213,73 131,671 82,09(
Debt — long-term 72,25 71,11¢ 22,62 — —
Redeemable convertible preferred stock — — _ 145,84 106,78:
Common stock and additional paid-in capital 145,96( 135,06 129,07: 60€ 2,057
Treasury stock (123,869 (123,869 (69,519 (69,519 (62,269
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 335,26¢ 147,43 130,95: (53,879) (52,83Y)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvimgktechnology for service providers and entergrisdur technology platforms focus on
delivering highly-advanced and easily deployabletians that appeal to a global customer base derserved and underpenetrated markets.
Our differentiated business model has enabled bseimk down traditional barriers such as high pevdnd network deployment costs and ¢
solutions with disruptive price-performance chagéstics. This differentiated business model, caradiwith our innovative proprietary
technologies, has resulted in an attractive alter@ao traditional high touch, higbest providers, allowing us to advance the marepton o
our platforms for ubiquitous connectivity.

We offer a broad and expanding portfolio of netviregkproducts and solutions for service providerd enterprises. Our service provider
product platforms provide carrier-class networkasfructure for fixed wireless broadband, wireleaskhaul systems and routing. Our
enterprise product platforms provide wireless LA astructure, video surveillance products, andhireeto-machine communication
components. We believe that our products are hidiflgrentiated due to our proprietary softwaretpool innovation, firmware expertise, and
hardware design capabilities. This differentiatadlows our portfolio to meet the demanding perfanggrequirements of video, voice and dat:
applications at prices that are a fraction of thaféered by our competitors.

As a core part of our strategy, we have developdifferentiated business model for marketing aritingehigh volumes of carrier and
enterprise-class communications platforms. Ourrtassi model is driven by a large, growing and higingaged community of service
providers, distributors, value added resellersiesys integrators and corporate IT professionalschwive refer to as the Ubiquiti Community.
The Ubiquiti Community is a critical element of dusiness strategy as it enables us to drive:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetamt.We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.sOlutions benefit from the active engagement beintbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produatldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption af products. This approach significantly reducesdayelopment costs and time to
market.

* Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&éts far more efficiently and cost-effectivéian is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saidsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

* Selfsustaining product supportThe engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community henabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.

By reducing the cost of development, sales, margeind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.
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For the years ended June 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2irZevenue was $572.5 million , $320.8 milliord&853.5 million , respectively. In the
same periods, we generated a net income of $178i8mm $80.5 million and $102.6 million , respeatly. In this Annual Report on Form 10-
K we refer to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2@DA3 and 2012 as fiscal 2014 , fiscal 2013 aschfi2012 , respectively.

Key Components of Our Results of Operations and Fencial Condition
Revenue:

Our revenues are derived principally from the sdleetworking hardware and management tools. litiatd while we do not sell maintenan
and support separately, because we have histgrioallded it free of charge in many of our arramgeats, we attribute a portion of our
systems revenues to this implied post-contracioecost support (“PCS”).

We classify our revenues into two primary prodwategories, Service Provider Technology and EnteepFechnology.

» Service Provider Technologyincludes our airMAX, EdgeMAX and airFiber platfornas well as embedded radio products and othe
802.11 standard products including base stati@u$os, backhaul equipment and Customer PremisgBwuit (“CPE”).Additionally,
Service Provider Technology includes antennas #mer @roducts in the 2.0 to 6.0GHz spectrum anaeliEneous products such as
mounting brackets, cables and power over Ethedegitars.

» Enterprise Technologyincludes the Company's UniFi, mFi and UniFi Viddatfprms

We sell our products and solutions globally to &erproviders and enterprises primarily through extensive network of distributors, and, 1
lesser extent, original equipment manufacturerBMs, and direct customers. Sales to distribtaoc®unted for 99% , 98% and 98% of our
revenues in the years ended June 30, 2014 , 2@il3H? , respectively. Other channel partners, ssatesellers and OEMSs, largely accounte
for the balance of our revenues. We sell our prisdwithout any right of return.

Cost of Revenues

Our cost of revenues is comprised primarily of¢bsts of procuring finished goods from our contraenufacturers and chipsets that we
consign to certain of our contract manufactureraddition, cost of revenues includes tooling, fedood other costs associated with enginee
testing and quality assurance, warranty costskdtased compensation, logistics related fees anessxand obsolete inventory.

In addition to utilizing contract manufacturers, agsource our logistics warehousing and ordeillfuént functions, which are located
primarily in China, and to a lesser extent, Taiwafe also evaluate and utilize other vendors foiouer portions of our supply chain from time
to time. Our operations organization consists opleyees and consultants engaged in the managereunt contract manufacturers, new
product introduction activities, logistical suppartd engineering.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit has been, and may in the futurérifilenced by several factors including changegroduct mix, target end markets for our
products, pricing due to competitive pressure, petidn costs, foreign exchange rates and globabdenfor electronic components. Although
we procure and sell our products in U.S. dollaws,amntract manufacturers incur many costs, incgdbor costs, in other currencies. To the
extent that the exchange rates move unfavorablgdocontract manufacturers, they may try to phsse additional costs on to us, which c«
have a material impact on our future average sefitces and unit costs.

Operating Expenses
We classify our operating expenses as researcdearelopment and sales, general and administratipenses.

* Research and development expeiconsist primarily of salary and benefit expensesluiding stocksased compensation, for employ
and costs for contractors engaged in researcigmasid development activities, as well as costprfototypes, facilities and travel.
Over time, we expect our research and developnuests ¢o increase as we continue making signifisarg@stments in developing new
products and developing new versions of our exjgspiroducts.
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e Sales, general and administrative expensekide salary and benefit expenses, includingkstsed compensation, for employees anc
costs for contractors engaged in sales, marketidgganeral and administrative activities, as wellree costs of legal expenses, trade
shows, marketing programs, promotional materiasl, tlebt expense, professional services, faciligieseral liability insurance and
travel. As our product portfolio and targeted méslexpand, we may need to employ different saledefspsuch as building a direct
sales force. These sales models would likely irseaur costs. Over time, we expect our sales, geard administrative expenses to
increase in absolute dollars due to continued drowheadcount, expansion of our efforts to regiatel defend trademarks and patent:
and to support our business and operations.

Deferred Revenues and Cos

In the event that collectability of a receivablerfr products we have shipped is not probable, wasiflathose amounts as deferred revenues ¢
our balance sheet until such time as we receivenpayof the accounts receivable. We classify ttst abproducts associated with these
deferred revenues as deferred costs of revenuesf. Ase 30, 2014 and 2013, $2.1 million and $2ilfon of revenue was deferred for
transactions where we lacked evidence that cobiditiaof the receivables recorded was reasonabbueed, respectively. The related deferred
cost of revenues balance was $1.3 million and #ili®n as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 , respectively

Also included in our deferred revenues is a portelated to PCS obligations that we estimate wepeitform in the future. As afune 30, 201
and 2013, we had deferred revenues of $2.8 miflimh $1.0 million , respectively, related to thebégations.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemendésaordance with accounting principles generalgepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). In many cases, the accounting treatmdrd particular transaction is specifically dictalsdGAAP and does not require
management’s judgment in its application. In otteses, management’s judgment is required in setpathong available alternative
accounting standards that provide for differenpacting treatment for similar transactions. Thepgration of consolidated financial statem
also requires us to make estimates and assumpiianaffect the amounts we report as assets, itiabjlrevenues, costs and expenses and
the related disclosures. We base our estimatesstoribal experience and other assumptions thételieve are reasonable under the
circumstances. In many instances, we could rea$puoab different accounting estimates, and in sorsgnces changes in the accounting
estimates are reasonably likely to occur from metoperiod. Accordingly, our actual results codiffer significantly from the estimates made
by our management. To the extent that there aferdifces between our estimates and actual result§yture financial statement presentation
financial condition, results of operations and cielvs will be affected. We believe that the acciingp policies discussed below are critical to
understanding our historical and future performaasahese policies relate to the more signifieaeas involving managemesjudgments ar
estimates.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eihardware and management tools, as well aztated implied PCS. We recognize
revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangeisig, delivery has occurred, the sales pri¢eésl or determinable and the collectabi
of the resulting receivable is reasonably assuredases where we lack evidence that collectallitthe resulting receivable is reasonably
assured, we defer recognition of revenue untiréoeipt of cash.

For our sales, evidence of the arrangement corwdists order from a customer. We consider deliteryave occurred once our products have
been shipped and title and risk of loss have beasterred. For our sales, these criteria are ttbeaime the products are transferred to the
customer's shipping agent. Our arrangements wittooers do not include provisions for cancellatietuyrns, inventory swaps or refunds that
would significantly impact recognized revenues.

We record amounts billed to distributors for shigpand handling costs as revenues. We classifpsig@and handling costs incurred by us as
cost of revenues. Deposit payments received fratniblitors in advance of recognition of revenuesiacluded in current liabilities on our
balance sheet and are recognized as revenues Witen exiteria for recognition of revenues are met

Our multi-element arrangements generally include deliverables. The first deliverable is the hambavand software essential to the
functionality of the hardware device deliveredhat time of sale. The second deliverable is theigdpight to PCS included with the purchase
of certain products. PCS is the right to receiveaavhen and if available basis, future unspeciigftivare upgrades and features relating tc
product’s essential software as well as bug firesail and telephone support.
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We use a hierarchy to determine the allocatioreeénues to the deliverables. The hierarchy is l&mfs: (i) vendorspecific objective evidens
of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) third-party evidence selling price (“TPE”), and (iii) best estimate thie selling price (‘BESP”).

(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally we do not sell the delivégalseparately and, as such, do not have VSOE.

(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining tieethat other parties sell similar or substahtisimilar offerings. We do not believe that
there is accessible TPE evidence for similar dedibles.

(iii) BESP reflects our best estimates of what the gefiiices of elements would be if they were soldifady on a stand-alone basis. We
believe that BESP is the most appropriate methagolor determining the allocation of revenues amtirggmultiple elements.

We have allocated revenues between these two dalhiles using the relative selling price method Wh&cbased on the BESP for all
deliverables. Revenues allocated to the deliveegdviiare and the related essential software argynézed at the time of sale provided the o
conditions for recognition of revenues have beeh Revenues allocated to the PCS are deferredesmugjnized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated life of each of these devices whighently is two years. All costs of revenues, inlthg estimated warranty costs, are recogn
at the time of sale. Costs for research and dewatop and sales and marketing are expensed asedclirthe estimated life of the hardware
product should change, the future rate of amoitinaif the revenues allocated to PCS would alsoagba

Our process for determining BESP for deliverabfe®ives multiple factors that may vary dependingrughe unique facts and circumstances
related to each deliverable. For PCS, we believenetwork operators and service providers woulddhgctant to pay for such services
separately. This view is primarily based on the that unspecified upgrade rights do not obligat¢ouprovide upgrades at a particular time or
at all, and do not specify to network operators senice providers which upgrades or featuresheltelivered. We believe that the relatively
low prices of our products and our network opergtand service providers’ price sensitivity woutttido their reluctance to pay for PCS.
Therefore, we have concluded that if we were tbR€E on a stand-alone basis, the selling pricddvoe relatively low.

Key factors considered by us in developing the BEBRPCS include reviewing the activities of specédmployees engaged in support and
software development to determine the amount of timat is allocated to the development of the unededd elements, determining the cost of
this development effort, and then adding an appatptevel of gross profit to these costs.

Inventory and Inventory Valuatior

Our inventories are primarily finished goods amdatesser extent, raw materials, which we havsigoed to our contract manufacturers. Our
inventories are stated at the lower of actual (@snputed on a first-in, first-out basis), or markalue. Market value is based upon an
estimated average selling price reduced by thenattd costs of disposal. The determination of ntarikie involves numerous judgments
including estimating average selling prices baggmhuecent sales, industry trends, existing custarders, and seasonal factors. Should a
market conditions differ from our estimates, ouufe results of operations could be materially @fd. We reduce the value of our inventory
for estimated obsolescence or lack of marketaliltyhe difference between the cost of the affestedntory and the estimated market value.
Write-downs are not reversed until the related imegy has been subsequently sold or scrapped.

The valuation of inventory also requires us tomate excess and obsolete inventory. The deterramafiexcess or obsolete inventory is
estimated based on a comparison of the quantitycastdof inventory on hand to our forecast of costodemand. Customer demand is
dependent on many factors and requires us to ga#isant judgment in our forecasting process. e aake assumptions regarding the rate
at which new products will be accepted in the mgolkee and at which customers will transition frolder products to newer products. If
actual market conditions are less favorable thardlprojected by management, additional inventoitevdowns may be required, which
would have a negative impact on our gross marginelultimately sell inventory that we have prewsguwritten down, our gross margins in
future periods will be positively impacted.

Product Warranties

We offer warranties on certain products and reedidbility for the estimated future costs assamawith potential warranty claims. These
warranty costs are reflected in our consolidatatestent of operations and comprehensive incomengthst of revenues. Our warranties are
in effect for 12 months from the distributors’ phase date of the product. Our estimates of futaeamty costs are largely based on historica
experience of product failure rates, material usagkservice delivery costs
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incurred in correcting product failures. Our opergtresults could be materially and adversely a#fedf future warranty claims exceed
historical experiences and we are not able to recowests from our contract manufacturers.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts feinested probable losses on uncollectible accowsivable. In estimating the allowance,
management considers, among other factors, thg afitne accounts receivable, our historical woitis, the credit worthiness of each
distributor based on payment history and genem@@mic conditions.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes by recognizing defetagdhssets and liabilities for the expected futakeconsequences of events that have bee
included in our financial statements or tax retuBwferred tax assets and liabilities are deterchiveesed on the temporary difference between
the financial statement carrying amounts of exgstinsets and liabilities and their respective tseb. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to &pfayable income in the years in which those tenayodifferences are expected to be
recovered or settled. We establish valuation alfeea when necessary to reduce deferred tax aggbes amount we expect to realize. The
assessment of whether or not a valuation allowaneequired often requires significant judgmentuding current operating results, the
forecast of future taxable income and ongoing pntided feasible tax planning initiatives.

In addition, our calculation of our tax liabiliti@svolves dealing with uncertainties in the appiica of complex tax regulations. We may be
subject to income tax audits in each of the jucigdns in which we operate and, as a result, mastassess exposures to any potential issues
arising from current or future audits of currentigmior years’ tax returns. Accordingly, we mussess such potential exposures and, where
necessary, provide a reserve to cover any expéatedTo the extent that we establish a reservepmmvision for income taxes would be
increased. We review our potential liabilities pelically and, if necessary, record an additionalrgk in our provision for taxes in the perioc
which we determine that tax liability is greateamhour original estimate. If we ultimately determihat payment of these amounts is
unnecessary, we reverse the liability and recogaitex benefit during the period in which we detemrthat the liability is no longer necess:

Stoclk-based Compensation

We record stock-based awards at fair value aseofithnt date and recognize expense, net of forésitwatably on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period, which is generally thetivey term of the awards. We estimate the fair @aiistock option awards on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Tk&dmination of the fair value of a stock-basedravem the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model is affected by ourcktprice on the date of grant as well as assumptiegarding a number of complex and
subjective variables. These variables include apeeted stock price volatility over the expecteuntef the award, actual and projected
employee stock option exercise behaviors, thefrisi-interest rate for the expected term of therdvaad expected dividends. Restricted stock
units are valued based on the fair value of ourmmomstock on the date of grant. Since our initi#dljz offering on October 14, 2011, the fair
value of our common stock is determined using thsieg market price of our common stock as of taeaf grant.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
(In thousands, except percentages)
Revenues $ 572,46¢ 100% $ 320,82: 10C%
Cost of revenue® 318,99° 56% 185,48 58%
Gross profit 253,46° 44% 135,33: 42%
Operating expenses:
Research and developmént 33,96: 6% 20,95¢ 6%
Sales, general and administratiV@ 23,56( 4% 21,77¢ 7%
Total operating expenses 57,52: 10% 42,73( 13%
Income from operations 195,94! 34% 92,60 29%
Interest expense and other, net (1,339 * (857) *
Income before provision for income taxes 194,61: 34% 91,75: 29%
Provision for income taxes 17,67 3% 11,26: 4%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 176,93 31% $ 80,49( 25%
* Less than 1%
(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows
Cost of revenues $ 59(C $ 44¢
Research and development 2,42: 1,43
Sales, general and administrative 1,89z 1,497
Total stock-based compensation $ 4,90¢ $ 3,37¢
(2) Includes gain on reversal of charge for an expammiance matter $ (1,123 $ —

Revenues

Revenues increased $251.6 million , or 78% , fr&2088 million in fiscal 2013 to $572.5 million irs€al 2014 . We believe the overall
increase in revenues in fiscal 2014 was primarilyeth by increased adoption of our service provated enterprise technologies. Additionally,
during fiscal 2013 we believe we experienced lagsdue to the proliferation of counterfeit vensi@f our products, which also created
customer uncertainty regarding the authenticitthefr potential purchases. We believe these facionsributed to a buildup in channel
inventory with our distributors, further impactingr revenues during our fiscal 2013 .

In both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, Flytec Conepsitinc. represented 13% of our revenues. No dlisetbutor or customer represented more
than 10% of our revenues in fiscal 2014 or fiscHl2.

Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
(in thousands, except percentages)
Service provider technology $  450,66: 7% $  285,39( 89%
Enterprise technology 121,80: 21% 35,43: 11%
Total revenues $ 572,46¢ 10% $ 320,82: 10(%

Service Provider Technology revenues increased.3X@8lion , or 58% , primarily due to continuedpansion of core infrastructure buitdits
in our wireless markets. Additionally, we believe experienced significant lost sales during fi@Hl3 due to the proliferation of counterfeit
versions of our products as discussed above, vdigthcreated customer uncertainty regarding thieeatitity of their potential purchases.
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Enterprise Technology revenues increased $86.4omillprimarily due to product expansion and furthéoption of our UniFi technology
platform.

Revenues by Geograp

We have determined the geographical distributioowfproduct revenues based on our customerstslupstinations. A majority of our sales
are to distributors who in turn sell to resellerglmectly to end customers, which may be differemtntries than the initial ship-to destination.
Additionally, during fiscal 2013 we believe we experienced lost sales due torhiéfgration of counterfeit versions of our prodsicivhich alsi
created customer uncertainty regarding the auttigntf their potential purchases. The following @ur revenues by geography for fis2alL 4
and fiscal 2013 (in thousands, except percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
North America(1) $ 142,43t 25% $ 84,82( 26%
South America 109,58« 19% 65,76¢ 21%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 247,00¢ 43% 127,86( 40%
Asia Pacific 73,43: 13% 42,37¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 572,46: 10(% $ 320,82: 100%

(1) Revenue for the United States v$136.6 million and $80.6 million in fiscal 2014 afistal 2013, respectively

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues increased $133.5 million , or 728ém $185.5 million in fiscal 2013 to $319.0 ol in fiscal 2014 . The increase in cost of
revenues in fiscal 2014 was primarily due to inseshrevenues and to a lesser extent, changesdaginmix.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue increaséd% in fiscal 2014 compared to 42% in fiscal 20i&flecting increasing economies of
scale, a one-time benefit from a rebate prograrh wite of our vendors, and changes in product naikjglly offset by an increase in our
provision for inventory obsolescence.

Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $ill&f nor 62% , from $21.0 million in fiscal 2018 $34.0 million in fiscal 2014 . As a
percentage of revenues, research and developmeenses remained flat at 6% in both fiscal 20142018 . The increase in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars was ptntare to increases in headcount as we broadenerkeearch and development activities
to introduce new products and new versions of exjgiroducts. Over time, we expect our researchdawelopment costs to increase in
absolute dollars as we continue making signifigamstments in developing new products and devetppew versions of our existing
products.

Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses inae¢ks8 million , or 8% , from $21.8 million in fiat2013 to $23.6 million in fiscal 2014 . As
a percentage of revenues, sales, general and atiraiivie expenses decreased from 7% in fiscal 280436 in fiscal 2014 . Sales, general and
administrative expenses increased in fiscal 20dpewed to fiscal 2013 primarily due to increasedkeigng activity, increased professional
fees, primarily related to the ancillary supporteftain management functions, and overall incieeasbeadcount to further expand our
marketing and administrative functions to suppait @venue growth, partially offset by decreasdggal fees from reduced spending on anti-
counterfeiting efforts, decreases to our allowdoceoubtful accounts and the partial reversalwfaccrual relating to the settlement
agreement with OFAC in March 2014. As a percentdgevenues, sales, general and administrativerssgsedecreased primarily due to our
overall revenue increase. Over time, we expecsalas, general and administrative expenses toaseri@ absolute dollars due to continued
efforts to protect our intellectual property andwth in headcount to support the growth in busirsssoperations.
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Interest Expense and Other, N

Interest expense and other, net was $1.3 milliofi$oal 2014 , representing an increase of $4&Bffm $851,000 for fiscal 2013 . The
increase in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2048 primarily due a loss on extinguishment of d#t%458,000 associated with the retiremen
of our debt with East West Bank.

Provision for Income Taxe:!

Our provision for income taxes increased $6.4 omllj or 57% , from $11.3 million for fiscal 2013%47.7 million for fiscal 2014 . Our
effective tax rate decreased to 9% for fiscal 2844ompared to 12% fiscal 2013 . The lower effectax rate in fiscal 2014 was primarily due
to a larger percentage of our overall profitabibitycurring in foreign jurisdictions with lower inoe tax rates.

Comparison of Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
(In thousands, except percentages)

Revenues $ 320,82: 10% $ 353,51° 10C%
Cost of revenue® 185,48¢ 58% 202,51« 57%
Gross profit 135,33 42% 151,00: 43%
Operating expenses:

Research and developmént 20,95¢ 6% 16,69¢ 5%

Sales, general and administratiV@ 21,77¢ 7% 9,012 3%

Total operating expenses 42,73( 13% 25,71 8%

Income from operations 92,60: 29% 125,29:. 35%
Interest expense and other, net (851) * (1,269 *
Income before provision for income taxes 91,75:¢ 29% 124,02: 35%
Provision for income taxes 11,26: 4% 21,43 6%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 80,49( 25% $ 102,58¢ 28%
* Less than 1%
(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows

Cost of revenues $ 44€ $ 117

Research and development 1,43% 547

Sales, general and administrative 1,497 834

Total stock-based compensation $ 3,37¢ $ 1,49¢

(2) Includes a gain from a trademark coexisteagreement as follows: $ _ $ (1,500)
Revenue

Revenues decreased $32.7 million, or 9%, from $368llion in fiscal 2012 to $320.8 million in fist2013. We believe the overall decreas
revenues in fiscal 2013 was primarily driven byt lssles, predominantly during the first nine morghfiscal 2013 due to the proliferation of
counterfeit versions of our products, which alseated customer uncertainty regarding the auth@nti€itheir potential purchases. We believe
these factors contributed to a buildup in chanmedmntory with our distributors, further impactingraevenues during the first nine months of
fiscal 2013. This has had the most significant iotma our airMAX platform which decreased $21.1lionl in fiscal 2013 compared to

fiscal 2012.

In fiscal 2013, revenues from Flytec representeéd 8 our revenues. In fiscal 2012, revenues froptdel and Streakwave
represented 16% and 10% of our revenues, resplgctive other distributor or customer representedeartban 10% of our revenues in
fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012.
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Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
(in thousands, except percentages)
Service provider technology $ 285,39 89% $ 321,64t 91%
Enterprise technology 35,43: 11% 31,86¢ 9%
Total revenues $ 320,82 10(% $ 353,51 10C%

Service Provider Technology revenues decrease@® $8ilion , or 11% , from $321.6 million in fisc2012 to $285.4 million in fiscal 2013 .
We believe we experienced significant lost saletduiscal 2013 due to the proliferation of coufiét versions of our products as discussed
above, which also created customer uncertaintyrdégathe authenticity of their potential purchases

Enterprise Technology revenues increased $3.6amillior 11% , from $31.9 million in fiscal 2012%85.4 million in fiscal 2013 The increas
in Enterprise Technology revenues in fiscal 2013 yamarily due to further adoption of our UniFckmology platform.

Revenues by Geograp

We generally forward products directly from our matturers to our customers via logistics distitauhubs in Asia. Beginning in the qual
ended December 31, 2012, our products were predamthjrrouted through a third party logistics praidn China and prior to the quarter
ended December 31, 2012, our products were precuariiyndelivered to our customers through distribaithubs in Hong Kong. Our logistics
provider, in turn, ships to other locations throoghthe world. We have determined the geograpldiisadibution of our product revenues basec
on our customers' ship-to destinations. A majasftpur sales are to distributors who in turn seltésellers or directly to end customers. We
believe the decline in revenues in all regions, medt significantly in South America, during thedal year ended June 30, 2013 as comparec
to June 30, 2012 was primarily driven by the peshtion of counterfeit versions of our productsjchithas also created customer uncertainty
regarding the authenticity of their potential puases. The following are our revenues by geographfiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 (in
thousands, except percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
North America(1) $ 84,82( 26% $ 88,30¢ 25%
South America 65,76 21% 88,32¢ 25%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 127,86( 4C% 130,49 37%
Asia Pacific 42,37¢ 13% 46,38¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 320,82: 10% $ 353,51° 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States was $80.6 million%8#d3 million in fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012, respvely.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues decreased $17.0 million, or 8&m$202.5 million in fiscal 2012 to $185.5 milliamfiscal 2013. The decreases in cost of
revenues in fiscal 2013 was primarily due to desedaevenues and to a lesser extent, changesdoginmix.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreasitht in fiscal 2013 compared to 43% in fiscal 20Ml2e decrease in gross profit percentag
in the fiscal 2013 reflects increases in varialgerating costs and changes in product mix.

Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $HoBnoir 25%, from $16.7 million in fiscal 2012 &21.0 million in fiscal 2013. As a
percentage of revenues, research and developmeenses increased from 5% in fiscal 2012 to 6%sicefi2013. The increase in research an
development expenses in absolute dollars was ladyed to increases in headcount and facilities
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related costs as we broadened our research antbdeent activities to new product areas. As a paege of revenues, research and
development expenses increased in both periodsapghnadue to our overall decrease in revenues.

Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses inaes28 million, or 142%, from $9.0 million in figk2012 to $21.8 million in fiscal 2013. As
a percentage of revenues, sales, general and athaiivie expenses increased from 3% in fiscal 201224 in fiscal 2013. Sales, general and
administrative expenses increased in absoluterdadiad as a percentage of revenue due largelgteased legal expenses of $4.3 million,
primarily associated with our anti-counterfeitintigiation, increased professional fees of $2.0iomll primarily related to the ancillary support
of certain management functions, increases in lreadand related salaries of $1.0 million. Additdly, in fiscal 2012 we recorded a gain of
$1.5 million from a trademark coexistence agreemsétitin sales, general and administrative expenses.

Interest Expense and Other, N

Interest expense and other, net was $851,000stalfR013, representing a decrease of $418,0008dotmillion for fiscal 2012. The decrei
in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012 was priigndue to the additional interest coupon on comertible subordinated promissory notes
issued as part of the repurchase of Series A ctibleepreferred stock from entities affiliated wiummit Partners, L.P. in July 2011. The
convertible subordinated promissory notes wereideipaull in October 2011. Interest expense duffisgal 2013 consisted primarily of inter
related to our term loan and credit facility boriogs with East West Bank.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our provision for income taxes decreased $10.4anillor 47%, from $21.4 million for fiscal 2012 $4.1.3 million for fiscal 2013. Our
effective tax rate decreased to 12% for fiscal 284 8ompared to 17% fiscal 2012. The decreaserinftactive tax rate was primarily due to a
larger percentage of our overall profitability ooiog in foreign jurisdictions with lower incomextaates. Additionally, on January 2, 2013, the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 ("the Act") svsigned into law. One of the provisions of the pi@vides a retroactive extension of the
research and experimentation tax credit ("R&D df¢diarough December 31, 2013, which had expiredenember 31, 2011. We recogniz¢
tax benefit of $539,000 during the third quartefiefal 2013 as a result of the retroactive examsif the R&D credit.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Cash

Since inception, our operations primarily have biewled through cash generated by operations. We#&sh and cash equivalents of $347.1
million , $227.8 million and $122.1 million at JuB8, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Consolidated Cash Flow Data
The following table sets forth the major componeafteur consolidated statements of cash flows ftatthe periods presented:

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 121,327 % 131,89 $ 81,78¢
Net cash used in investing activities (4,045 (5,369 (3,310
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,98¢ (20,76:) (32,779
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 119,27 % 105,76t % 45,69¢

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in tleedil2014 consisted primarily of net income of $176.4iom partially offset by net changes in
operating assets and liabilities that resultedeincash outflows of $62.9 million . These changesststed primarily of a $33.8 million increase
in inventory due to our efforts to build warehogseck levels and ultimately decrease lead time&§1&13 million increase in accounts
receivable due to our overall increase in reveau®9.6 million increase in prepaid expenses andrathirrent assets due to timing of deposit
payments with our suppliers, a $6.9 million decegasaccounts payable and accrued liabilities dube timing of payments with our vendors,
a $3.9 million net increase in taxes
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payable and prepaid income taxes due the timirfgdgral tax payments, and a $1.9 million increasdeferred revenues and related costs.

Additionally, our net income included non-cash atijuents due to stock-based compensation, depacitid amortization, increases to our
provision for doubtful accounts and write-downsiforentory obsolescence and an excess tax berafit $tockbased awards. The net of th

non-cash adjustments resulted in an increase afeturash provided by operating activities of $7iBion .

Net cash provided by operating activities in ttsedi 2013 consisted primarily of net income of $8@illion and net changes in operat

assets and liabilities that resulted in net cafibws of $45.9 million. These changes consistechprily of a $38.7 million decrease in accounts
receivable due to improved cash collections, aZfllion increase in accounts payable and acchadities due to the timing of payments
with our vendors, a $9.0 million increase in ima@gtdue to increased inventory on hand as a re$alttransition to a third-party logistics
provider during December 2012, a $6.6 million ira® in taxes payable due the timing of federaptgments, a $1.9 million increase in
prepaid expenses and other current assets dueroraase in overall business activity and a $lilkam increase in deferred revenues and
related costs. Additionally, our net income inclda®n-cash adjustments due to stock-based compmmsde¢preciation and amortization,
increases to our provision for doubtful accountd amite-downs for inventory obsolescence and argxtax benefit from stock-based awards
The net of these non-cash adjustments resulted imcaease of our net cash provided by operatitigities of $5.5 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fis2al2 consisted primarily of net income of $102i8iom offset by changes in operating ass
and liabilities. These changes consisted primarfilg $36.6 million increase in accounts receivahie to our overall revenue growth and
slower payment patterns from our customers, a $b@lBn increase in accounts payable and accrigdgiities due to increased overall
business activity, a $9.5 million increase in tagagable due to our higher profitability, a $3.7liom decrease in prepaid expenses and other
current assets due primarily to decreased depeihwur vendors and a $2.3 million increase ineintories related to increases in our overall
business activity. Additionally, our net incomeluged non-cash adjustments due to stock-based ctafen, depreciation and amortization,
adjustments to our provisions for doubtful accowmd inventory obsolescence and an excess taxiboef stock-based awards. The net of
these non-cash adjustments resulted in a reduatioar net cash provided by operating activitie$d1.6 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our investing activities consist solely of capeapenditures and purchases of intangible assepstaCaxpenditures for fiscal 2014 , fis@01:
and fiscal 2012 were $3.8 million , $4.1 millionda$3.3 million, respectively. Additionally, we hadsh outflows related to intangible assets o
$219,000 and $1.2 million during fiscal 2014 arstél 2013 , respectively, consisting primarily@dal costs associated with the trademark
applications.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

We had $2.0 million of cash provided by financimgiaties during fiscal 2014 . On May 5, 2014, weered into a credit agreement, or the
Credit Agreement, with Wells Fargo Bank, NationakAciation, or Wells Fargo, the financial instims named as lenders therein, and Wells
Fargo as administrative agent for the lenders,ghatides for a $150 million senior secured revadveredit facility, with an option to request
an increase in the amount of the credit facilityupyto an additional $50 million (any such incretsbe in each lender’s sole discretion). We
initially borrowed $72.3 million under the Credigfeement, which was used to repay obligations uadet.oan Agreement with East West
Bank and to pay transaction fees and costs.

On May 29, 2014, we announced that our Board afédars had authorized us to repurchase up to $lliemf our common stock. The share
repurchase program commenced on June 2, 2014.témdahares have been repurchased under the progra

We used $20.8 million of cash in financing actedtiduring fiscal 2013. On August 7, 2012, we enténto a Loan and Security Agreement
Loan Agreement, with U.S. Bank, as syndication agamd East West Bank, as administrative agernthfotenders party to the Loan
Agreement. The Loan Agreement replaced the EWB lAgneement discussed below. The Loan Agreementgedvior (i) a $50.0 million
revolving credit facility, with a $5.0 million sulohit for the issuance of letters of credit and a0&&illion sublimit for the making of swingline
loan advances, or the Revolving Credit Facilityd &) a $50.0 million term loan facility, or theefm Loan Facility. We borrowed $20.8
million of term loans under the Term Loan Facilityinging the total borrowed to $50.0 million, tarpally fund our common stock repurchase
program. No borrowings remain available under teenTLoan Facility. On November 21, 2012, we borrd®&0.0 million under the
Revolving Credit Facility. On December 20, 2012, eerowed an additional $20.0 million under the &eing Credit Facility to fund our
special cash dividend.
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On August 9, 2012, we announced that our Boardi@dibrs authorized us to repurchase up to $10@dl@mof our common stock. The share
repurchase program commenced August 13, 2012 aickdone year later. During fiscal 2013 we repasgd 5,159,056hares for a total cc
of $54.4 million.

On December 14, 2012, we announced that our Bddbitectors had authorized a special cash dividefi0.18 per share for each share of
common stock outstanding on December 24, 2012 agjeegate dividend payment of $15.7 million wasigai December 28, 2012 to
stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Wead@nticipate paying any cash dividends in thedeeable future.

We used $32.8 million of cash in financing actedtiduring fiscal 2012. In July 2011, we repurchasedggregate of 12,041,700 shares of oul
Series A preferred stock from entities affiliatedhwSummit Partners, L.P., one of our major stod#trs, at a price of $8.97 per share for an
aggregate consideration of $108.0 million. Of tggragate purchase price, $40.0 million was paithsh at the time of closing and the balanc
of the shares were paid for through the issuancem¥ertible subordinated promissory notes in tgregate principal amount of $68.0 milli
On September 15, 2011, $34.0 million was paid ajaire notes reducing the aggregate principal atmutstanding to $34.0 million.

On September 15, 2011, we entered into a Loan aodrBy Agreement with East West Bank, or the EWdih Agreement. The EWB Loan
Agreement consisted of a $35.0 million term loagilifg and a $5.0 million revolving line of credacility. The term loan was scheduled to
mature on September 15, 2016 with principal aner@st to be repaid in 60 monthly installments. Bgithe three months ended September 3
2011, we used $34.0 million of the term loan tcesep portion of our outstanding convertible submatied promissory notes held by entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P. The EWB Agmant was replaced by the Loan Agreement on Augud®¥2 as discussed above.

Liquidity

We believe our existing cash and cash equivaleats) provided by operations and the availabilitpaditional funds under our loan
agreements will be sufficient to meet our workimgital and capital expenditure needs for at ldeseshext twelve months. However, this
estimate is based on a number of assumptions #mapnove to be wrong and we could exhaust our ablkgilcash and cash equivalents earlier
than presently anticipated. Our future capital meguents may vary materially from those currentnmed and will depend on many factors,
including our rate of revenue growth, the timingl @xtent of spending to support development effdines timing of new product introductions,
market acceptance of our products and overall engnoonditions. As of June 30, 2014 , we held $80illion of our $347.1 million of cash
and cash equivalents in accounts of our subsidiai#side of the United States and we will incgngicant tax liabilities if we decide to
repatriate those amounts.

On June 18, 2013, we completed a secondary offerfifgd31,464 shares of common stock at an offguimce of $16.00 per share, which
included 531,464 shares sold in connection withpmtial exercise of the option to purchase additichares granted to the underwriters. All
of the shares sold in the offering were sold byexisting stockholders, including entities affigdtwith Summit Partners, L.P., and our chief
executive officer, Robert J. Pera. We did not arll shares in the offering, and as such, we didewive any proceeds from the offering.

We believe that the combination of our existing tddiStates cash and cash equivalent balances tamd Einited States operating cash flows
are sufficient to meet our ongoing United Statesraping expenses and debt repayment obligatiorat fieast the next twelve months.

We earn a significant amount of our operating ineantside the United States, which is deemed iodefinitely reinvested in foreign
jurisdictions. As a result, a significant portiohowur cash and she-term investments are held by foreign subsidiaiés.currently do not

intend nor foresee a need to repatriate these fldsexpect existing domestic cash and short-tam@stments and cash flows from operation:
to continue to be sufficient to fund our domesfierating activities and cash commitments for inmgsand financing activities, such as regi
quarterly dividends, debt repayment, and capitpkexitures, for at least the next 12 months anck#iter for the foreseeable future.

If we should require more capital in the Unitedt&sahan is generated by our domestic operationgxample to fund significant discretionary
activities such as business acquisitions and gearechases, we could elect to repatriate futuneirgs from foreign jurisdictions or raise
capital in the United States through debt or eqgigsgyances. These alternatives could result inenigffective tax rates, increased interest
expense, or dilution of our earnings. We have wedfunds domestically and continue to believe aeetthe ability to do so at reasonable
interest rates.
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arragements

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgiions as of June 30, 2014 :

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 years Over 5 years Total
(In thousands)
Operating leases $ 2947 % 4,561 $ 39t % — 9 7,90z
Debt payment obligations — — 72,25¢ — 72,25¢
Interest payments on debt payment obligati 1,01z 2,02t 1,86¢ — 4,90¢
Total $ 3,95¢ $ 6,58¢ $ 7451¢ % — 3 85,06:

We lease our headquarters in San Jose, Califondiater locations worldwide under non-cancelalplerating leases that expire at various
dates through fiscal 2019.

On May 5, 2014, we entered into a credit agreerfitme Credit Agreement") with Wells Fargo Bank, Natl Association, or Wells Fargo, t
financial institutions named as lenders therein, Afells Fargo as administrative agent for the lesdhat provides for a $150 million senior
secured revolving credit facility, with an optiomrequest an increase in the amount of the cradility by up to an additional $50 million (any
such increase to be in each lender’s sole diseretie initially borrowed $72.3 million under theedit Agreement, which was used to repay
obligations under our Loan Agreement with East VBBzstk and to pay transaction fees and costs.

We subcontract with other companies to manufaaturgroducts. During the normal course of businesscontract manufacturers procure
components based upon orders placed by us. If neetall or part of the orders, we may still béoleato the contract manufacturers for the
of the components purchased by the subcontractemahufacture our products. We periodically revibespotential liability and to date no
significant liabilities for cancellations have baegorded. Our consolidated financial position egglilts of operations could be negatively
impacted if we were required to compensate theraonimanufacturers for any unrecorded liabilitiesuirred. We had $20.9 million in non-
cancelable purchase commitments as of June 3@,,20% related expenses of which are expected todurred in future periods.

As of June 30, 2014 , we had gross unrecognizeldagfits of $14.5 million and an additional $6¥®dor gross interest classified as
noncurrent liabilities. At this time, we are unatdemake a reasonably reliable estimate of thentinoif payments in individual years in
connection with these tax liabilities; thereforecls amounts are not included in the above contahctiiigation table.

Commitments and Contingencies

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeiththe U.S. Commerce Department, Bureau of Ingumtd Security’s (“BIS”) Office of
Export Enforcement (“OEE”") relating a review contketby us regarding certain export transactions 2008 through March 2011 in which
products may have been later resold into Iran g frarties. In June 2011, we also filed a skdiclosure statement with the U.S. Departme
the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Asset Control (“8&F") regarding these compliance issues. In Aug@dt12 we received a warning letter from
OEE stating that OEE had not referred the findiofgsur review for criminal or administrative proséion and closed the investigation of us
without penalty. Based upon its review of the nratB=AC identified certain apparent violations (‘#fgrent Violations”) of the Iranian
Transactions and Sanctions Regulations by us dtimgeriod of in or about March 2008 through irabout February 2011. On March 4,
2014, we entered into a settlement agreement wiA®resolving this administrative matter. Pursuarthe terms of the settlement agreenr
we agreed to make a one-time payment to the U.Bairaent of the Treasury in the amount of $504 ja6Gfbnsideration of OFAC agreeing to
release and forever discharge us from any andwllliability in connection with the Apparent Viations. We previously accrued a reserve of
$1.6 million relating to this matter in fiscal 20&0d, accordingly, reversed the excess of the atofi$1.1 million as of the effective date of
the settlement agreement.

Warranties and Indemnifications

Our products are generally accompanied by a 12 meatranty, which covers both parts and labor. Gahethe distributor is responsible for
the freight costs associated with warranty retuansl, we absorb the freight costs of replacing itanter warranty. In accordance with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB’sR;counting Standards Codification (“ASC”), 450-2@ss Contingencies, we record an
accrual when we believe it is estimable and prabhbked upon historicakperience. We record a provision for estimatedréutvarranty wor
in cost of goods sold upon recognition of reverares we review the resulting accrual regularly aedqalically adjust it to reflect changes in
warranty estimates.
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We may in the future enter into standard indematifan agreements with many of our distributors @ftMs, as well as certain other business
partners in the ordinary course of business. Thgseements may include provisions for indemnifytimg distributor, OEM or other business
partner against any claim brought by a third ptotthe extent any such claim alleges that a Ukiiguitduct infringes a patent, copyright or
trademark or violates any other proprietary rigiftthat third party. The maximum amount of poterfiigure indemnification is unlimited. The
maximum potential amount of future payments we ddod required to make under these indemnificatgre@ments is not estimable.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain limits, w
such persons are or were serving at our requesicin capacity. We may terminate the indemnificatigreements with these persons upon th
termination of their services with us but termipativill not affect claims for indemnification reéat to events occurring prior to the effective
date of termination. The maximum amount of potéifititure indemnification is unlimited. We have ar&itors and Officers insurance policy
that limits our potential exposure. We believe fdievalue of these indemnification agreements iisimmal. We had not recorded any liabilities
for these agreements as of June 30, 2014 or 2013 .

Based upon our historical experience and informaitimown as of the date of this report, we do ndiele it is likely that we will have
significant liability for the above indemnities.atne 30, 2014 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, we had no off-ba&laheet arrangements other than those indemnificareements described above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@cor FASB, issued a new accounting standardtegmarevenue from contracts with
customers. The core principle of the guidanceas &m entity should recognize revenue to depictrdresfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xeheange for those goods or services. To
achieve that core principle, an entity should appéy/following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in ¢tbatract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the penénce obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the erdiisfies a performance obligation.

An entity should disclose sufficient informationgnable users of financial statements to undergtendature, amount, timing, and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contractl wiistomers. Qualitative and quantitative infoliorats required about contracts with
customers, significant judgments and any assetgynézed from the costs to obtain or fulfill a catt. The guidance will be effective for us
beginning July 1, 2017. We are currently assedsiagmpact of this new guidance.

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new accountingdstachupdate on the financial statement presentafiomrecognized tax benefits. The new
guidance provides that a liability related to amewognized tax benefit would be presented as actiethuof a deferred tax asset for a new
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossdax credit carryforward if such settlement isuieed or expected in the event the uncertair
position is disallowed. The new guidance will beeagffective for us on July 1, 2014 and it shouldapplied prospectively to unrecognized
benefits that exist as of the effective date wéttnaspective application permitted. We have assesgeimpact of this new guidance, however
we do not expect adoption to have a significantaotn our consolidated financial statements.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Regulation G, conditions for use of Non-Generalbc@pted Accounting Principles (“Non-GAAP”) finankmaeasures, and other SEC
regulations define and prescribe the conditionsufa of certain Non-GAAP financial information. $opplement our consolidated financial
results presented in accordance with GAAP, we wmeGAAP financial measures which are adjusted ftoenmost directly comparable
GAAP financial measures to exclude certain iteragjescribed below. Management believes that these®RAP financial measures reflect
an additional and useful way of viewing aspectewfoperations that, when viewed in conjunctiorhvaitir GAAP results, provide a more
comprehensive understanding of the various faendstrends affecting our business and operatioos-GIAAP financial measures used by us
include net income or loss and diluted net incomiss per share.
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Our Non-GAAP measures primarily exclude stdidsed compensation, net of taxes and other sprEages and credits. Additionally, in fise
2014 we had a gain on the reversal of a chargarf@xport compliance matter and in fiscal 2012 & 4 gain of $1.5 million from a
trademark coexistence agreement. Management belibgee Non-GAAP financial measures provide medniisgpplemental information
regarding our strategic and business decision rgakiternal budgeting, forecasting and resouragcation processes. In addition, these Non-
GAAP financial measures facilitate managementsrimal comparisons to our historical operating tssathd comparisons to competitors’
operating results.

We use each of these NGAAP financial measures for internal manageriabpges, when providing our financial results andr®ss outlool

to the public and to facilitate period-to-periodrgmarisons. Management believes that these Non-GiA#&sures provide meaningful
supplemental information regarding our operatiamal financial performance of current and historieallts. Management uses these Non-
GAAP measures for strategic and business decisaking, internal budgeting, forecasting and resoatlmeation processes. In addition, these
Non-GAAP financial measures facilitate managementerimal comparisons to our historical operating ltesand comparisons to competitors’
operating results.

The following table shows our Non-GAAP financial aseres:

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 179,20¢ $ 82,51 % 102,58!
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commoglsto $ 20C % 091 % 1.0¢

We believe that providing these Non-GAAP financr@asures, in addition to the GAAP financial resuts useful to investors because they
allow investors to see our results “through theséyé management as these Non-GAAP financial messtaflect our internal measurement
processes. Management believes that these Non-GidARcial measures enable investors to better astesges in each key element of our
operating results across different reporting pexiod a consistent basis and provides investorsamitither method for assessing our operating
results in a manner that is focused on the perfoomaf our ongoing operations.

The following table shows a reconciliation of GAABt income and comprehensive income to non-GAARMeeme and comprehensive
income:

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

Net income and comprehensive income $ 176,93 $ 80,49( $ 102,58¢
Stock-based compensation:

Cost of revenues 59C 44¢ 117

Research and development 2,42z 1,43: 542

Sales, general and administrative 1,89: 1,49 834
Gain from a trademark coexistence agreement — — (1,500
Gain on reversal of charge for an export complianegter (1,127 — —
Tax effect of non-GAAP adjustments (1,519 (1,35 3
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 179,20t $ 82,51 $ 102,58!
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commonlstd $ 20C $ 091 % 1.0¢

Weighted-average shares used in computing non-Géilsied net income per share
of common stock) 89,71t 90,25¢ 93,76

(1) Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of common stedalculated using non-GAAP net income and comgmsive income excluding stock-based
compensation and a gain from a trademark coexistagreement, net of taxes and weighted-averagesshatstanding as if Series A preferred stock is
treated as common stock for the periods presented.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of weigif-average shares used in computing net incoras) (f®r share of common stock-diluted
to weighted-average shares used in computing noAfdiluted net income per share of common stock:

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrsshare of common stock-

diluted 89,71¢ 90,25¢ 83,46(
Weighted average dilutive effect of stock optiond aestricted stock units — — 2,69¢
Weighted average shares of Series A preferred stotstanding — — 7,601
Weighted-average shares used in computing non-GdiluRed income per share
of common stock 89,715 90,25$ 93,76:

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Interest Rate Sensitivit

We have interest rate risk from the LIBOR index ikaused to determine the interest rates on oediCAgreement with Wells Fargo.
Revolving loans bear interest, at our option, tiezi(i) a floating rate per annum equal to theelrase plus a margin of between 0.250% and
1.000%, depending on our leverage ratio as of thet mecently ended fiscal quarter or (ii) a perianmate equal to the applicable LIBOR rate
for a specified period, plus a margin of betwe&b0% and 2.000%, depending on our leverage ratid #ee most recently ended fiscal
guarter. Swingline loans will bear interest ataafing rate per annum equal to the base rate phrgin of between 0.250% and 1.000%,
depending on our leverage ratio as of the mosnticended fiscal quarter. Base rate is definethagreatest of (A) Wells Fargo’s prime rate,
(B) the federal funds rate plus 0.500% or (C) agrerum rate equal to the rate at which dollar diepase offered in the London interbank
market for a period of one month plus 1.000%. Aadéfinterest rate shall apply on all obligationsidg a payment event of default under the
Credit Agreement at a rate per annum equal to 2:08Bove the applicable interest rate. Based onsitadty analysis, as of June 30, 2014n
instantaneous and sustained 200-basis-point ireiadsterest rates affecting our floating ratetdsiligations, and assuming that we take no
counteractive measures, would result in a chargeitancome before income taxes of approximately $illion over the next 12 months.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $347.1 mili@h$227.8 million as of June 30, 2014 and 20&3pectively. These amounts were held
primarily in cash deposit accounts. The fair vadfieur cash equivalents would not be significaafigcted by either a 10% increase or
decrease in interest rates due mainly to the ghort-nature of these instruments.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dolkang, therefore, our revenues are not currently stlbgesignificant foreign currency risk. Our
operating expenses are denominated in the cursentitbe countries in which our operations aretiedaand may be subject to fluctuations

to changes in foreign currency exchange ratesicpéatly changes in the Chinese Yuan, Lithuaniaia kind Taiwan Dollar. Cash balances are
primarily held in U.S. Dollars, and therefore amd subject to significant currency risk. During figzal year ended June 30, 2014 , a 10%
appreciation or depreciation in the value of th&.Ulollar relative to the other currencies in whicit expenses are denominated would not
had a material impact on our financial positiomasults of operations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The response to this Item is submitted as a sepsaeation of this Form 10-K. See Item 15.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management, with the participation of our Cliigécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officexaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June@®Q@ 2The term “disclosure controls and proceduies,
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defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeBtwmurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&hge Act”), means controls and
other procedures of a company that are designeddore that information required to be disclosed lbpmpany in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, precessimmarized and reported, within the time perggkcified in the SEC's rules and
forms. Disclosure controls and procedures includéhout limitation, controls and procedures desiji®ensure that information required tc
disclosed by a company in the reports that it flesubmits under the Exchange Act is accumulateldcammunicated to the company’s
management, including its principal executive aridgipal financial officers, as appropriate to alltimely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Management recognizes that any cordaralprocedures, no matter how well designed andatgd, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives and managenecessarily applies its judgment in evaluattiregcost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures. Based on the evaluationodlisclosure controls and procedures as of 30n2014, our Chief Executive Officer ar
Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of sdelte, our disclosure controls and procedures wzetiwe at the reasonable assurance level.

Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Manag@mwith the participation of our principal exdgetofficer and principal financial
officer, has conducted an evaluation of the effectess of our internal control over financial rejpgr based on the framework set forth

in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (19923 by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiorth@fTreadway Commission. Based
on our evaluation under the framework set fortmbernal Control—ntegrated Framework, our management concludedtivainternal contrc
over financial reporting was effective as of JufeZ014 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of June 30, 2014 has been alibitePricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

There were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting that occurred during the quaeteded June 30, 2014 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contro

Control systems, no matter how well conceived grerated, are designed to provide a reasonabl@&dbain absolute, level of assurance that
the objectives of the control system are met. Furttihe design of a control system must reflecfaéloethat there are resource constraints, and
the benefits of controls must be considered redativtheir costs. Because of the inherent limiteim all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that attalissues and instances of fraud, if any, haaentdetected. Because of the inherent
limitations in any control system, misstatements ttuerror or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Gowance

The information required by this Item 10 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for ftl2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2014 fiscal yerad) under the headings “Election of
Directors — Executive Officers and Directors,” “@orate Governance,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficiah@rship Reporting Compliance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for ftel2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2014 fiscal yead) under the headings “Executive
Compensation,” “Election of Directors—Directors’ @pensation” and “Election of Directors—Compensat@mmmittee Interlocks and
Insider Participation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item 12 with resp® security ownership of certain beneficial onmand management is incorporated by
reference to our Proxy Statement for the 28h#ual Meeting of Stockholders (to be filed wittketS8ecurities and Exchange Commission wi
120 days of our June 30, 2014 fiscal year end) utideheadings “Security Ownership of Certain BanafOwners and Management Related
Stockholder Matters.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for ftel2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2014 fiscal yead) under the headings “Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” &tection of Directors—Committees of the Board ofdaiors.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Iltem 14 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for ftl2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2014 fiscal yeadf) under the headings “Ratification of

the Appointment of Independent Registered Publicodating Firm—Audit and Non-Audit Fees” and “—Audibmmittee Pre-Approval
Policies.”

47




Table of Contents

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(& 1. Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this repee identified in the Index to Consolidated Ficial Statements on page 52 of this Form 10-

K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(c) below.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieth the Securities and Exchange

Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing

copies) upon request.

Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed

3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011
Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpi
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgfrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
Company and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011

between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.



48




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by

Description Reference from Form

Incorporated by
Reference from
Exhibit Number

Date Filed

10.7#

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11t

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

211

Employment Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2012,
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou.

Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, datexf as
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Grébliunas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jimyo
Ji Investment Co., Ltd.

Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.

Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, amal
Atheros Communications, Inc.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Septef)
2011, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and East West
Bank.

Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intericaual
Limited, Taiwan Branch.

Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 and
executed on December 22, 2011, by and between
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, ICL

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 7,
2012, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., theders
from time to time party thereto, U.S. Bank, as
Syndication Agent, and East West Bank, as
Administrative Agent

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2014, by and
among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Ubiquiti
International Holding Company Limited, as Borrowers
the Lenders referred to therein, as Lenders andsWel
Fargo Bank, National Associate, as Administration
Agent

Aircraft Lease Agreement between Ubiquiti Networks,
Inc. and RJP Manageco LLP, dated November 13, 2013

Release of Claims Agreement between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou

Offer Letter between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., and\id
Hsieh

List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, In

10-K

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

10-Q

10-Q/A

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.2

September 28, 2012

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

September 16, 2011

November 14, 2011

March 20, 2012

August 13, 2012

May 9, 2014

February 7, 2014

October 18, 2013

November 8, 2013



23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting
firm

24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature page
this Form 10-K)
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Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Reged

Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reged
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjtaf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. §1350.

101.INS(*) XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH(*) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document
101.CAL(*)  XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF(*) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document

101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE(*) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

# Management contracts or compensation plangangements in which directors or executive offi@eseligible to participate.

T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstmiain order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-479i86) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatmirDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,désifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete ar
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will nod&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amg§lunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant speciical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imfation is furnished and not filed or a part of gisgation statement or prospectus for purposes of
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 193%raended, is deemed not filed for purposes of @edi8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedules not listed above have been omitted betheayg are not applicable or required, or the imi@tion required to be set forth therein is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statementdaies thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: August 22, 2014

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Craig L. Foster

Craig L. Foster
Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persornoat signature appears below constitutes and aggdeotiert J. Pera and Craig
L. Foster and each of them, his true and lawfarattys-in-fact and agents, each with full poweswstitution and resubstitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacto sign any and all amendments to this AnRegdort on Form 10-K, and to file the same
with exhibits thereto and other documents in cotinedherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@ission granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power auldagity to do and perform each and every act aimjtrequisite and necessary to be di
as fully to all intents and purposes as he mightoad do in person, hereby ratifying and confirghall that each of said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, or his substitute or substitutes may ldyfld or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signature Title Date
/sl _Robert J. Pera Chief Executive Officer and Director
Robert J. Pera (Principal Executive Officer) August 22, 2014
[s/ _Craig L. Foster Chief Financial Officer and Director
Craig L. Foster (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) dust 22, 2014

[s/__Steven R. Altman
Steven R. Altman Director August 22, 2014

/sl _Ronald A. Sege
Ronald A. Sege Director August 22, 2014

[s/ _Rafael Torres
Rafael Torres Director August 22, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenmfeopei@ations and comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows pradairly, in all material respects, the finangialsition of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 20@3harresults of their operations and their cagglfor each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2014 in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United StafeSnoerica. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting asJane 30, 2014, based on criteria establi

in Internal Control Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Commifegponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comiois(COSO)
The Company's management is responsible for thesecial statements, for maintaining effective ingd control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in M@manent's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Ogpamsibility is to express opinions on these fif@gtatements and on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting basedaam audits (which were integrated audits in 201d 2013). We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compacypunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsendards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurdomet avhether the financial statements are freeatenal misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audits of tharicial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts actbdiges in the financial statements, assessingdbeunting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. Our aufiibt@rnal control over financial reportil
included obtaining an understanding of internaltcmrover financial reporting, assessing the risktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary girthenstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
August 22, 2014
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fetounts of $1,395 and $2,200,

respectively

Inventories

Current deferred tax assets
Prepaid income taxes

UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Long-term deferred tax assets
Other long—term assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Deferred revenues - short-term
Income taxes payable
Debt - short-term
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term taxes payable
Debt - long-term
Deferred revenues - long-term
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock—$0.001 par value; 50,000,000 stear#wrized; none issued
Common stock—$0.001 par value; 500,000,000 sharboazed:
88,179,448 and 87,213,803 outstanding at June(@} &nd June 30, 2013,

respectively
Additional paid—in capital

Treasury stock—44,238,960 shares held in treagulyree 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013

Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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June 30,
2014 2013
347,09 $ 227,82t
54,87 35,88¢
46,34¢ 15,88(
884 733
3,25¢ —
13,26° 3,151
465,72: 283,47:
7,26( 5,97¢
1,25¢ 4
1,917 2,88¢
476,15: $ 292,341
33,93 $ 36,18°
1,83¢ 5,12
4,21¢ 691
2,49¢ 1,25
— 5,01z
9,83( 11,15(
52,31t 59,42:
15,34¢ 11,857
72,25¢ 71,11¢
97z 2,51(
140,88 144,90«
88 87
145,87. 134,98.
(123,864 (123,864
313,16¢ 136,23:
335,26 147,43t
476,15: $ 292,341
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales, general and administrative
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense and other, net
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income and comprehensive income

Preferred stock cumulative dividend and accretibcost of preferred stock

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhdde
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per share of common stock:

Basic
Diluted
Cash dividends declared per common share

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
$ 57246: $ 320,820 $ 35351
318,99° 185,48¢ 202,51
253,46° 135,33« 151,00:
33,96: 20,95¢ 16,69¢
23,56( 21,77 9,01-
57,52: 42,73( 25,71
195,94! 92,60« 125,29;
(1,339 (851) (1,269
194,61 91,75: 124,02:
17,67+ 11,26: 21,43
$ 17693 $ 8049 $ 102,58
— — (112,43)
$ 17693 $ 8049 $ (9,842
$ 2.0z $ 091 $ (0.12)
$ 1.97 $ 08¢ $ (0.12)
87,77 88,31« 83,46(
89,71 90,25¢ 83,46(
$ — 3 0.1 $ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)
In thousands, except share data

Additional |
Convertible Paid-In Lcr)ltal der
Preferred Stock Common Stock Capital Treasury Stock _ Stockholders
Retained Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount  Earnings (Deficit)

Balances at June 30, 2011 36,034,63 14584  62,685,95 63 545 (39,079,91) (69,515 15,03t (53,872
Net income and comprehensive income _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 102,58t 102,58t
Accretion of costs of Series A convertible
preferred stock — 111,53 — — (65,637) — — (45,907 (111,53)
Repurchase of Series A convertible preferred
stock (12,041,70)  (108,00() — — — — — — —
Preferred stock cumulative dividend _ 89€ _ _ (56€) _ _ (329) (896)
Conversion of preferred stock into common
stock in conjunction with initial public offering (23,992,92) (150,27 23,992,92 24 150,25 — — — 150,27¢
Issuance of common stock pursuant to initial
public offering, net of offering expenses — — 2,395,32 2 30,45( — — — 30,45:
Stock options exercised _ _ 2,885,47 3 80€ _ _ _ 811
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 90,29¢ — (1,390 — — — (1,390
Stock-based compensation expense _ — — — 1,497 — — — 1,497
Tax impact of employee stock transactions — — — — 13,02; — — — 13,02:
Balances at June 30, 2012 = —  92,049,97 92 128,98, (39,079,91) (69,51 71,39 130,95:
Net income and comprehensive income _ — — _ _ — _ 80,49( 80,49(
Stock options exercised _ _ 266,55¢ _ 63E _ _ _ 63E
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 56,31" — (219 — — — (219
Common stock repurchased — —  (5,159,05) 5) —  (5159,05) (54,349 — (54,359
Dividends paid on common stock _ _ _ _ _ _ _ (15,65:) (15,657)
Stock-based compensation expense _ — — _ 3,37¢ — _ — 3,37¢
Tax impact of employee stock transactions _ — — — 2,20¢ — — — 2,20¢
Balances at June 30, 2013 = — 87,213,80 87  134,98. (44,238,96) (123,86) 136,23 147,43
Net income and comprehensive income _ — — — — — — 176,93 176,93
Stock options exercised _ _ 849,63! 1 2,08¢ _ _ _ 2,09(
Restricted stock units issued, net of tax
withholdings — — 116,01( — (2,01%) — — — (2,019
Stock-based compensation expense — — — — 4,90¢ — — — 4,90¢
Tax impact of employee stock transactions — — — — 5,90¢ — — — 5,90¢
Balances at June 30, 2014 — — 88,179,44 $ 88 $145,87. (44,238,96) $(123,86) $313,16( $ 335,26«

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income and comprehensive income $ 176,93 $ 80,49( $ 102,58¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,81¢ 1,96% 602
Provision for inventory obsolescence 3,29t 85C 19t
Deferred taxes 2,087 377 (897)
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards (5,90¢) (2,329 (13,799
Stock-based compensation 4,90¢ 3,37¢ 1,497
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 45 15C —
Write-off of intangible assets 22¢ — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt 45¢
Provision for doubtful accounts (65¢) 1,09¢ 81t
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (18,329 38,66¢ (36,649
Inventories (33,769 (8,996 (2,266
Deferred cost of revenues (94) (1,185 881
Prepaid income taxes (3,25¢) — —
Prepaid expenses and other assets (9,644) (1,85¢) 3,66(
Accounts payable (2,326 9,72t 11,69:
Taxes payable 7,15( 6,64¢ 9,53¢
Deferred revenues 1,98¢ 2,39¢ (929)
Accrued liabilities and other (4,609 521 4,85¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 121,32 131,89: 81,78¢
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and other leng-assets (4,048 (5,369) (3,310
Net cash used in investing activities (4,045) (5,369 (3,310
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings under credit agreement 72,25¢ _ _
Proceeds from term loan, net — 20,83 34,81
Repayments on term loan balance (46,25() (4,339 (5,25(0)
Repayments on credit facility balance (30,000 — —
Proceeds from credit facility = 30,00( —
Repurchases of common stock and outstanding awards _ (54,354 _
Payment of special common stock dividend —_ (15,652 —
Repurchase of Series A convertible preferred stock — — (108,000
Issuance of convertible subordinated promissorgsot — — 68,00(
Payment of convertible subordinated promissory siote — — (68,000
Proceeds from shares issued in initial public affrnet of offering costs _ _ 32 44:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,09( 63E 811
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards 5,90¢ 2,32: 13,79:
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtesiricted stock units (2,019 (214 (1,390
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,98¢ (20,762 (32,779
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 119,27: 105,76t 45,69¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 227,82t 122,06( 76,36
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 347,09° $ 227,82t $ 122,06(

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

IncAama Taveg nai - PR - PR - A



Interest paid $ 1,65( $ 1,69¢ $ 68¢
Conversion of preferred stock into common stockdnjunction with initial public offering _ $ — $ 150,27¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business— Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. was incorporated in th&at® of California in 2003 as Pera Networks, Imc2005 the Company changed
its name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and commendsdurrent operations. In June 2010, the Comparsyreséncorporated in Delaware.

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its wholly owned sulisides (collectively, “Ubiquiti” or the “Company’is a product driven company that
leverages innovative proprietary technologies fivdenetworking solutions to both startup and bkshed network operators and service
providers.

On October 13, 2011, the Company entered into demnriting agreement for its initial public offegrof common stock at $15.00 per share.
The Company's initial public offering closed on @axtr 19, 2011. Immediately prior to the closinghef initial public offering, all outstanding
shares of the Company’s preferred stock convedemimon stock on a one for one basis.

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfaring of 7,031,464 shares of common stock abféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchadditional shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgiuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's chief execufifieeo, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCiiapany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier

The Company operates on a fiscal year ending Jonk 3hese notes, Ubiquiti refers to the fiscadngeended June 30, 2014 , 2013 and 2012
fiscal 2014 , fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 , respety.

Basis of Presentation— The Companys consolidated financial statements and accompgmgies are prepared in accordance with accot
principles generally accepted in the United Stafedmerica (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of dbiti and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
The Company has wholly owned subsidiaries in LithaaHong Kong, China and Poland. The Company’sg#ong subsidiary also operates
a branch office in Taiwan. All intercompany trartsats and balances have been eliminated.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimabesjudgments that affect the repol
amounts of assets and liabilities and the discsiicontingent assets and liabilities at the datae financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqririod. On an ongoing basis, the Company eweduthese estimates, including those
related to allowance for doubtful accounts, invept@luation, warranty costs, stock-based comp@nrsand income taxes, among others. The
Company bases estimates on historical experierdt@mrarious other assumptions that are believée teeasonable under the circumstances
Actual results may differ materially from theseimsttes.

Segment:

Management has determined that it operates asepoetable and operating segment as it only refiimascial information on an aggregate
consolidated basis to its chief executive offizenp is the Company’s chief operating decision ma&ee Note 13.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eéhardware and management tools, as well aethted implied post contract customer
support (“PCS”)The Company recognizes revenues when persuasidersd of an arrangement exists, delivery has cedutine sales price
fixed or determinable and the collectability of tiesulting receivable is reasonably assured. laxadere the Company lacks evidence that
collectability of the resulting receivable is reaably assured, it defers recognition of revenud the receipt of cash.

For the Company'’s sales, evidence of the arrangecoesists of an order from a customer. The Compgamgiders delivery to have occurred
once its products have been shipped and title iskdf loss have been transferred. For the Compasafes, these criteria are met at the time
the products are transferred to the customer. Tmepany’s arrangements with customers do
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not, in most cases, include provisions for cantelta returns, inventory swaps or refunds that wiaignificantly impact recognized revenues.

The Company records amounts billed to distributorshipping and handling costs as revenues. Thep@ay classifies shipping and handling
costs incurred by it as cost of revenues.

Deposit payments received from distributors in ambeaof recognition of revenues are included inenirfiabilities on the Company’s balance
sheet and are recognized as revenues when allitbeacfor recognition of revenues are met.

The Company’s multi-element arrangements geneiradlyde two deliverables. The first deliverablétie hardware and software essential to
the functionality of the hardware device deliveaedhe time of sale. The second deliverable igrtipied right to PCS included with the
purchase of certain products. PCS is this rigmeteive, on a when and if available basis, futurgpecified software upgrades and features
relating to the product’s essential software ad agbug fixes, email and telephone support.

The Company uses a hierarchy to determine theaditotof revenues to the deliverables. The hiesarglas follows: (i) vendor-specific
objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) thi-party evidence of selling price (“TPE"), and)(bhest estimate of the selling price
("BESP”).
(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally the Company does not selldtliverables separately and, as such, does net\ffaOE.
(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining theegghat other parties sell similar or substahtiaimilar offerings. The Company does not
believe that there is accessible TPE evidenceifiuiftes deliverables.
(iiiy BESP reflects the Company'’s best estimates of wigaselling prices of elements would be if theyeveold regularly on a stand-alone
basis. The Company believes that BESP is the nppsbpriate methodology for determining the allogatof revenue among the
multiple elements.

The Company allocates revenues between these twemdbles using the relative selling price metiddch is based on the estimated selling
price for all deliverables. Revenues allocatechtodelivered hardware and the related essentialaa are recognized at the time of sale
provided the other conditions for recognition ofeeues have been met. Revenues allocated to thefeGigferred and recognized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated life of eafcthese devices, which currently is two yeardl cAst of revenues, including estimated
warranty costs, are recognized at the time of €&dsts for research and development and sales arigting are expensed as incurred. If the
estimated life of the hardware product should cleattge future rate of amortization of the reveralxcated to PCS would also change.

The Company’s process for determining BESP fovéedibles involves multiple factors that may varpeteding upon the unique facts and
circumstances related to each deliverable. For B&SCompany believes its network operators andceproviders would be reluctant to pay
for such services separately. This view is prinydvdsed on the fact that unspecified upgrade rigbtsot obligate the Company to provide
upgrades at a particular time or at all, and dospectify to network operators and service providérih upgrades or features will be delive
The Company believes that the relatively low priokis products and its network operators’ andriserproviders’ price sensitivity would add
to their reluctance to pay for PCS. Therefore,Gbenpany has concluded that if it were to sell P@% standalone basis, the selling price
would be relatively low.

Key factors considered by the Company in developfiegBESP for PCS include reviewing the activitéspecific employees engaged in
support and software development to determine iin@uat of time that is allocated to the developn@#rthe undelivered elements, determin
the cost of this development effort, and then agl@din appropriate level of gross profit to thesdscos

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments purchased withtarity period of three months or less at the dafgurchase to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost whmioximates fair value. The Company deposits aashcash equivalents with financial
institutions that management believes are of higdit quality. The Company’s cash and cash equnisleonsist primarily of cash deposited in
U.S. dollar denominated interest-bearing deposivawots.

Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consistash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company limits its exposure by prity placing its cash in interest-bearing depasitounts with high credit quality financial
institutions.
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The Company derives its accounts receivable froramaes earned from customers located worldwide . Qdrapany bases credit decisions
primarily upon a customer’s past credit historyeT®ompany’s standard credit terms are net 30 wa§8.

The Company subcontracts with other companies twifaature most of its products. The Company ralieghe ability of these contract
manufacturers to produce the products sold toistsiblutors and original equipment manufacture@EMs”). A significant portion of the
Company’s products are manufactured by a few contnanufacturers.

Inventory and Inventory Valuatior

The Company's inventories are primarily finisheddmpand, to a lesser extent, raw materials, whéste lbeen consigned to the Company's
contract manufacturers. Inventories are statedealower of actual cost (computed on a first-irstfout basis), or market value. Market valu
based upon an estimated average selling price edducthe estimated costs of disposal. The detatinimof market value involves numerous
judgments including estimating average sellinggsibased up recent sales, industry trends, existisipmer orders, and seasonal fact
Should actual market conditions differ from the Qxamy's estimates, future results of operationsccbalmaterially affected. The Company
reduces the value of its inventory for estimatesiobddscence or lack of marketability by the differemetween the cost of the affected inven
and the estimated market value. Write-downs areewarsed until the related inventory has beenexently sold or scrapped.

The valuation of inventory also requires the Conypanestimate excess and obsolete inventory. Tterm@ation of excess or obsolete
inventory is estimated based on a comparison ofjtiaatity and cost of inventory on hand to the Canys forecast of customer demand.
Customer demand is dependent on many factors guites the Company to use significant judgmentinforecasting process. The Company
also makes assumptions regarding the rate at wigishproducts will be accepted in the marketplackatrwhich customers will transition

from older products to newer products. If actuatkeaconditions are less favorable than those ptejeby management, additional inventory
write-downs may be required, which would have aatigg impact on the Company's gross margin. [fGberpany ultimately sells inventory
that has been previously written down, the Comsagsdss margins in future periods will be positviehpacted.

Deferred Cost of Revenue

Deferred cost of revenues consist of the cost@dpet shipped to distributors for which the rigatsl obligations of ownership have passed to
the distributor but revenues have not yet beengmized primarily because the collectability criberifor revenue recognition has not been
fulfilled. The Company classifies these amountdeferred cost of revenues. All deferred costs vémees are stated at cost. The Company
periodically assesses the recoverability of deteoest of revenues and writes down the deferretiafagvenues balances to establish a new
cost basis when recovery of deferred cost of regeminot reasonably assured. The Company evalemiegerability based on various factors
including the length of time the product has beeld lat the distributor’s site and the financialbiidy of the distributor.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties on certain prodggaegrally for a period of one year , and recortiatality for the estimated future costs
associated with potential warranty claims. The waty costs are reflected in the Company’s consiitiatatement of operations and
comprehensive income within cost of revenues. Thgamties are typically in effect for 12 monthsnfrthe distributor’s purchase date of the
product. The Company'’s estimate of future warrausts is largely based on historical experiencefadncluding product failure rates,
material usage, and service delivery cost incuimembrrecting product failures. In certain circuargtes, the Company may have recourse fror
its contract manufacturers for replacement costedéctive products, which it also factors intovitsrranty liability assessment.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company records an allowance for doubtful actfor estimated probable losses on uncollecéibiunts receivable. In estimating the
allowance, management considers, among other fagtbthe aging of the accounts receivable, (i® €Company’s historical write offs, (iii) the
credit worthiness of each distributor based on paytrhistory and (iv) general economic conditiomscases where the Company is aware of
circumstances that may impair a specific distribstability to meet its obligations to the Compatiye Company records a specific allowance
against amounts due from the distributor, and thereduces the net recognized receivable to theiatadt reasonably believes will be
collected.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts activity wasalews (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 2,20C $ 1,266 $ 59¢
Charged to (released from) expenses (65¢) 1,09¢ 81t
Bad debt write-offs (147) (162) (14%)
Ending Balance $ 1,39 ¢ 2,20C % 1,26¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s cash equivalemtcounts receivable, accounts payable and cotinemt liabilities approximate fair value
due to their short maturities. The fair value af tbompany's cash equivalents and debt are discio$éate 3.

Long Lived Asset:

The Company evaluates its long lived assets inotugroperty and equipment for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of these asseismabe recoverable. An impairment loss is recpeghiwhen the net book value of such asset
exceeds the estimated future undiscounted casls tttibutable to the assets or asset group. laimpent is indicated, the asset is written
down to its estimated fair value. The Company ditirecognize any impairment losses for fiscal 202@13 and 2012 .

Property and Equipmen

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are recordedat.dThe Company computes depreciation or amaidizaising the straight line method over
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Testing equipment 3to 5years

Computer and other equipment 3to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of lease term or useful |

Upon retirement or disposition, the asset costratated accumulated depreciation are removed wighgain or loss recognized in the
statement of operations. Expenditures for mainte@amd repairs are charged to operations as imturre

Intangible Asset:

The Company’s intangible assets consist primafilegal costs associated with application for aggistration of the Company’s trademarks.
The Company amortizes all acquisiticglated intangible assets that are subject to araticn over the estimated useful life based omeontc
benefit, which is generally 5 years.

Leases

The Company leases its facilities under cancelabtenoncancelable operating leases. For leasesahtatin rent escalation or rent concess
provisions, the Company records the total rent egpaluring the lease term on a straight line laas the term of the lease. The Company
records the difference between the rent paid aadtitaight line rent as a deferred rent liabilitthe accompanying consolidated balance st

Advertising Cost:
The Company expenses all advertising costs asreatur
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires recognitd deferred tax assets and liabilit
for the expected future tax consequences of evkat$ave been included in its financial statementsix returns. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the temporé#fgrénce between the financial statement carrgingunts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aasetfiabilities are measured using enacted ta@sraxpected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are eepleto be recovered or settled. The Company ésftiisl valuation allowances wh
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to theruih@xpects to realize. The assessment of whetheot a valuation allowance is required
often requires significant judgment including cutreperating results, the forecast of future tagahtome and ongoing prudent and feasible
tax planning initiatives. In addition, the Compasgalculation of its tax liabilities involves deadi with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations. The Company may be suljeicicome tax audits in all of the jurisdictiomswhich it operates and, as a result, must
also assess exposures to any potential issuesgafiein current or future audits of current andpyiears’ tax returns. Accordingly, the
Company must assess such potential exposures et wecessary, provide a reserve to cover anycegss. To the extent that the
Company establishes a reserve, its provision f@orite taxes would be increased. If the Company atgfg determines that payment of these
amounts is unnecessary, it reverses the liabilityr@cognizes a tax benefit during the period iictvit determines that the liability is no lon
necessary. The Company records an additional claitgeprovision for taxes in the period in whithiletermines that tax liability is greater
than its original estimate.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The Company records stock-based awards at faie\adwof the grant date and recognize expensef fafeitures, ratably on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period, whicheisegally the vesting term of the awards. The Comgetimates the fair value of stock option
awards on the grant date using the Black-Schol@sropricing model. The determination of the faslwe of a stoclbased award on the date
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mddeilffected by the Company's stock price on the dagrant as well as assumptions
regarding a number of complex and subjective vigglThese variables include the Company's expeattett price volatility over the expec
term of the award, actual and projected employeekstption exercise behaviors, the risk-free irgerate for the expected term of the award
and expected dividends. Restricted stock unitvalieed based on the fair value of the Company'sntomstock on the date of grant. Since the
Company's initial public offering on October 14,120the fair value of our common stock is determinsing the closing market price of the
Company's common stock as of the date of grant.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company periodically evaluates all pendinchoedtened contingencies and any commitments, ifthay are reasonably likely to have a
material adverse effect on its results of operatidinancial position or cash flows. The Compargeases the probability of an adverse outc
and determines if it is remote, reasonably possiblerobable. If information available prior to tissuance of the Company’s financial
statements indicates that it is probable that aatdsad been impaired or a liability had been ireziat the date of the Company’s financial
statements, and the amount of the loss, or thesrahgrobable loss can be reasonably estimated siheh loss is accrued and charged to
operating expenses. If no accrual is made for @adostingency because one or both of the condifoinsuant to the accounting guidance are
not met, but the probability of an adverse outcisret least reasonably possible, the Company disslthe nature of the contingency and
provides an estimate of the possible loss or rafidess, or states that such an estimate cannotdake.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company and its &liasges is the U.S. dollar. For foreign operatigiesal currency denominated assets and
liabilities are remeasured at the period end exgbaates, and revenues, costs and expenses amsigatetat the average exchange rates ¢
the fiscal year. Foreign exchange gains and Idsaes been immaterial to the Company’s results efajons to date.

Deferred Offering Cost:

Deferred offering costs, consisting of legal, asctmg and other fees and costs relating to the Gmyig initial public offering were
capitalized. Deferred offering costs of $3.1 mitlwere offset against initial public offering procseagpbon the closing of the offering in Octo
2011.
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Research and Development Costs and Capitalizedvgo® Development Cos

Research and development expenses are expenseniaed. Research and development expenses assbwitlh software development are
expensed as incurred as our software is typicalBased to end customers immediately after tecgigalbfeasibility has been established.

Earnings Per Share

The Company applies the two-class method for cating and presenting earnings per share (“EPS"ledthe two-class method, net income
is allocated between shares of common stock aret p#rticipating securities based on their parétig rights. Participating securities are
defined as securities that participate in dividewith common stock according to a pre-determinethfda or a contractual obligation to share
in the income of the entity. Basic EPS is computedlividing net income available to common stockieos by the weighted average numb
shares of common stock outstanding during the gebBduted EPS is computed by dividing the amoumet income available to common
stockholders outstanding plus income allocableattigipating securities, to the extent they aratdik, by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and potential dilutive shatgstanding during the period if the effect isitille. The Company’s potentially dilutive
common securities include outstanding stock opticestricted stock units and preferred stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&cor FASB, issued a new accounting standardtapmtarevenue from contracts with
customers. The core principle of the guidanceas &m entity should recognize revenue to depictrdmesfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xelenge for those goods or services. To
achieve that core principle, an entity should appé/following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in ¢tbatract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the penfnce obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the erdiisfies a performance obligation.

An entity should disclose sufficient informationgnable users of financial statements to undergtandature, amount, timing, and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contractl wiistomers. Qualitative and quantitative infoliorais required about contracts with
customers, significant judgments and any assetgyrézed from the costs to obtain or fulfill a ca@utr. The guidance will be effective for the
Company beginning July 1, 2017. The Company isetiily assessing the impact of this new guidance.

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new accountingdstachupdate on the financial statement presentafiomrecognized tax benefits. The new
guidance provides that a liability related to amewognized tax benefit would be presented as actiethuof a deferred tax asset for a new
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss.¢ax credit carryforward if such settlement isuieed or expected in the event the uncertair
position is disallowed. The new guidance will beeoeffective for the Company on July 1, 2014 arshduld be applied prospectively to
unrecognized tax benefits that exist as of thecéffe date with retrospective application permiti€tde Company has assessed the impact of
this new guidance, however the Company does naatguloption to have a significant impact on itssaidated financial statements.

NOTE 3—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Pursuant to the accounting guidance for fair vah@gasurements and its subsequent updates, fair igadieéined as the price that would be
received from selling an asset or paid to tranafi@bility in an orderly transaction between mansarticipants at the measurement date. As
such, fair value is a market-based measuremensliivaid be determined based on assumptions th&eirzarticipants would use in pricing an
asset or liability. The accounting guidance esshigls a three-tier fair value hierarchy that reguine Company to use observable market data
when available, and to minimize the use of unolegesinputs when determining fair value. The failue hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into
three levels that may be used in measuring fairevak follows:

Level 1—observable inputs which include quoted pricesctiva markets for identical assets of liabilities.

Level 2—inputs which include observable inputs other thawel 1, such as quoted prices for similar asselisloilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matkéhat are not active, or other inputs that areokable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of Heset or liability.

Level 3—inputs which include unobservable inputs thatsangported by little or no market activity and the¢ significant to the fair value of
the underlying asset or liability. Level 3 assetd Aabilities include those whose fair value measwents are
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determined using pricing models, discounted cashli fhethodologies or similar valuation techniqueswall as significant management
judgment or estimatior

For certain of the Comparg/financial instruments, including cash, accoueteivable and accounts payable, the carrying ama@pgroximat

fair value due to their short maturities, and &eréfore excluded from the fair value tables belddditionally, as of June 30, 2014 , we held
$307.6 million of our $347.1 million of cash andshaequivalents in accounts of our subsidiariesideitsf the United States and we will incur
significant tax liabilities if we were to repatrathose amounts.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Company had debtiassd with its Loan and Security Agreements witkIM/Fargo Bank and East West
Bank, respectively (See Note 7). The fair valuthefCompany’s debt was estimated based on thentuates offered to the Company for debt
with similar terms and remaining maturities and Wwesel 2 measurement.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value hibrafor the Company’s financial liabilities wasfafiows (in thousands):

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Fair Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabilities:
Debt® $ 7225 $ — $ 7225 % — $ 76,12¢ $ — $ 76,12¢ $ —

(1) Debt is carried at historical cost on the Cony@consolidated balance sheet.

NOTE 4—EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share for the periatisated (in thousands, except per share
data):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhide $ 176,93 $ 80,49( % (9,847)
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used in computing basiaocmne (loss) per share 87,77 88,31 83,46(
Add—dilutive potential common shares:

Stock options 1,69¢ 1,80: —

Restricted stock units 247 14z —
Weighted-average shares used in computing diluééthnome (loss) per share 89,71¢ 90,25¢ 83,46(
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:

Basic $ 20z % 091 % (0.12)

Diluted $ 1.97 $ 08¢ $ (0.12)

The following table summarizes the total poterdizres of common stock that were excluded frondilaéed per share calculation, because f
include them would have been anti-dilutive for gregiod (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Stock options — 65¢€ 3,34¢
Restricted stock units 36 364 454
36 1,022 3,80z
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NOTE 5—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

June 30,
2014 2013
Finished goods $ 4588. $ 15,61¢
Raw materials 46¢ 262
$ 46,34¢ $ 15,88(
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Ass
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consfdteglfollowing (in thousands):
June 30,
2014 2013
Vendor deposits $ 8,04: $ —
Non-trade receivables 29z 2,20:
Other current assets 4,93: 94¢
$ 13,267 $ 3,157
Property and Equipment, Ne
Property and equipment, net consisted of the fatigwin thousands):
June 30,
2014 2013
Testing equipment $ 3,78  $ 3,30¢
Computer and other equipment 1,01¢ 841
Tooling equipment 2,89¢ 1,735
Furniture and fixtures 973 652
Leasehold improvements 3,17: 1,85¢
Software 521 24t
12,36¢ 8,64
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,109 (2,66€)
$ 7,26C % 5,97¢
Depreciation expense was $2.6 million and $1.8iomilin fiscal 2014 and 2013 , respectively.
Other Long-term Assets
Other long-term assets consisted of the followingtlousands):
June 30,
2014 2013
Intangible assets, net $ 79¢ % 1,02¢
Long-term deferred cost of revenues — 1,18t
Other long-term assets 1,115 672
$ 191: % 2,88¢

The Company's intangible assets consist primafilggal costs associated with the application fudt eegistration of the Company’s
trademarks. The Company recorded $270,000 and @200f amortization of intangible assets duringdi2014 and 2013 , respectively.
During fiscal 2014, the Company wrote off $229,@d@ntangible assets. The balance of accumulateattiration was $450,000 and $200,000
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Estinfatede amortization related to
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trademark registration fees is $237,000 , $251,3#»9,000 , $68,000 and $14,000 for fiscal ye@db22016, 2017, 2018, and thereafter,
respectively.

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

June 30,
2014 2013

Accrued compensation and benefits $ 3432 $ 2,712

Accrued accounts payable 10 322

Accrual for an export compliance matter — 1,62t

Warranty accrual 2,85( 2,91:

Other accruals 3,63¢ 3,571

$ 983C $ 11,15(

NOTE 6—ACCRUED WARRANTY

Warranty obligations, included in other currenbliies, were as follows (in thousands):

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 1,381
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 4,07¢
Settlements made during the period (2,547

Balance at June 30, 2013 2,91:
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 4,157
Settlements made during the period (4,220

Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 2,85(

NOTE 7—DEBT

In July 2011, the Company repurchased an aggreddt2,041,700 shares of the Company’s Series A edite preferred stock from entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P., one of then@pbany’s major stockholders, at a price of $8.97spare for an aggregate consideration of
$108.0 million . Of the aggregate purchase prid®.@ millionwas paid in cash at the time of closing and tharxa of the shares were paid
through the issuance of convertible subordinated@sory notes in the aggregate principal amou®68t0 million . On September 15, 2011,
$34.0 million was paid against the notes and waanited through the Company's EWB Loan Agreemerfu(tieer described below) reducing
the aggregate principal amount outstanding to $84liilon . The remainder of the notes were retire@®ctober 2011 with the proceeds of the
Company’s initial public offering and existing cashlances. The interest rate on the notes startg¥h aper annum and increased by two
percentage points every three months until it wdwade reached 9% in January 2012. The notes wepayable without penalty prior to

April 21, 2012, and were required to be paid indgkient of the Compang’initial public offering or third party financingyior to April 21, 2012
The notes mature on July 21, 2021. The unpaid ip@hon the notes was convertible into shares oS\ preferred stock at $8.97 per share
at any point after July 21, 2012. The differencemeen the repurchase price and the carrying vdltleearepurchased preferred stock on
June 30, 2011 was $59.0 million . The differences d@bited to available retained earnings with #émeaining amount debited to additional
paid-in capital and reduced the net income attributtdigommon stock shareholders resulting in a rednaf basic and diluted net income
share.

On September 15, 2011, the Company entered inttaa And Security Agreement with East West Bank, ‘{#WB Loan Agreement”), which
was replaced by the Loan Agreement as discussedb€he credit facilities available under the EW8an Agreement consisted of a $35.0
million term loan facility and a $5.0 million rewahg line of credit facility. The term loan wouldihe matured on September 15, 2016 with
principal and interest to be repaid in 60 monthistallments. The Company used $34.0 million oftdmen loan to repay a portion of the
outstanding convertible subordinated promissorgsbield by entities affiliated with Summit Partndr$ leaving $1.0 million available for
borrowing under the term loan facility.

On August 7, 2012, the Company entered into a laoahSecurity Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) Witls. Bank, as syndication agent,
and East West Bank, as administrative agent folethgers party to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agrent replaced the EWB Loan
Agreement discussed above. The Loan Agreementgedvor (i) a $50.0 million revolving credit fadili with a $5.0 million sublimit for the
issuance of letters of credit and a $5.0 milliohlsuit for the making of swingline loan advanceseg(fRevolving Credit Facility”), and (ii) a
$50.0 million term loan facility (the “Term
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Loan Facility”). The Company could request borroggrunder the Revolving Credit Facility until Augdst2015. On August 7, 2012, the
Company borrowed $20.8 million under the Term L&aility, and ndorrowings remained available for borrowing therem On Novembe
21, 2012, the Company borrowed $10.0 million unitierRevolving Credit Facility. On December 20, 20th2 Company borrowed an
additional $20.0 million under the Revolving Crefécility, and $20.0 million remained available mnrrowing thereunder.

On May 5, 2014, the Company and certain of its islidn$es entered into a credit agreement (the “@rkgreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association“Wells Fargo”), the financial institutions namedlaaders therein, and Wells Fargo as administratgent for the

lenders, that provides for a $150 million seniansed revolving credit facility, with an option tequest an increase in the amount of the cred
facility by up to an additional $50 million (anyduincrease to be in each lender’s sole discretiim@ Company may borrow up to $110
million of the facility as a U.S. sublimit. The @etamount of the facility is available to Ubiquiititernational Holding Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company organizedarrthe laws of the Cayman Islands. The creditifadgncludes a sub-limit of $5 million
for letters of credit and a sub-limit of $15 miltidor swingline loans. In connection with the extimo of the Credit Agreement, the Company
terminated the $50 million line of credit faciligpnder the Loan Agreement with East West Bank desdrabove. Under the Credit Agreement,
revolving loans and swingline loans may be borrgwegdaid and reborrowed until May 5, 2019, at whiofe all amounts borrowed must be
repaid. Additionally, $72.3 million is currently tatanding under the Credit Agreement, which wasdweed by the Company to repay
obligations under the Loan Agreement and to paystation fees and costs. Revolving loans beardsteat the Company’s option, at either (i)
a floating rate per annum equal to the base ragimargin of between 0.250% and 1.000% , depgmirthe Company’s leverage ratio as of
the most recently ended fiscal quarter or (ii) agreum rate equal to the applicable LIBOR rateafepecified period, plus a margin of betw
1.250% and 2.000% , depending on the Company’sdgeeratio as of the most recently ended fiscattguaSwingline loans will bear interest
at a floating rate per annum equal to the baseptatea margin of between 0.250% and 1.000% , déipgron the Company’s leverage ratio as
of the most recently ended fiscal quarter. Baseigatlefined as the greatest of (A) Wells Fargo'se rate, (B) the federal funds rate plus
0.500% or (C) a per annum rate equal to the ranhieth dollar deposits are offered in the Londaeibank market for a period of one month
plus 1.000% . A default interest rate shall appiyatl obligations during a payment event of defauidler the Credit Agreement at a rate per
annum equal to 2.000% above the applicable inteaést The Company will pay to each lender a facfée on a quarterly basis based on the
unused amount of each lender’'s commitment to madaes, of between 0.200% and 0.350% , dependingeo@ompany’s leverage ratio as of
the most recently ended fiscal quarter. Revolvoank and swingline loans may be prepaid at anywitt®ut penalty. The Company is also
obligated to pay Wells Fargo, as agent, fees cuamtpior a credit facility of this size and type.

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to miairstanaximum leverage ratio and a minimum intecestrage ratio during the term of
the credit facility. In addition, the Credit Agreent contains customary affirmative and negativeecawts, including covenants that limit or
restrict the ability of the Company and its sulesidis to, among other things, grant liens or einteragreements restricting their ability to gr
liens on property, enter into mergers, disposeseéts, change their accounting or reporting paljabange their business and incur subsidian
indebtedness, in each case subject to customaeptans for a credit facility of this size and tygéne Credit Agreement includes customary
events of default that, include among other thimgs-payment of principal, interest or fees, inaacy of representations and warranties,
violation of covenants, cross default to certaimeotindebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency everdterial judgments, change of control and
certain ERISA events. The occurrence of an evedetdult could result in the acceleration of thégations under the Credit Agreement. The
credit facility under the Credit Agreement expikéay 5, 2019.

The obligations of the Company and its subsidianieder the Credit Agreement are collateralizeduiystantially all assets (excluding
intellectual property) of the Company and its sdizsies.

Wells Fargo and the lenders party to the Credite&grent, and certain of their respective affiliakesje provided, and in the future may
provide, financial, banking and related servicethh®Company. These parties have received, argeifuture may receive, compensation from
the Company for these services.

During the fiscal years 2014 and 2013 , the Compaagie aggregate payments of $5.0 million and $4ll®&m, respectively, against the Loan
Agreement. At the time the Loan Agreement waseadtin May 2014, the Company paid the remainingggpi balance of $71.3 million . No
payments were made for borrowings under the Chgglieement with Wells Fargo in fiscal 2014 . As ohé 30, 2014 , the Company has
classified $72.3 million as long-term debt on imsolidated balance sheet related to the Crediéégent.
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The following table summarizes our estimated debtiaterest payment obligations as of June 30, Zbilthousands):

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total

Debt payment obligations $ — % — % — 3 — $ 7225 % —  $ 72,25

Interest payments on debt payment

obligations 1,01% 1,01 1,012 1,012 857 — 4,90¢
Total $ 101z $ 101 $ 1012 $ 1,01z $ 7311 % — $ 77,16(

NOTE 8—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

The Company leases its headquarters in San Joseraa and other locations worldwide under nomecalable operating leases that expire at
various dates through 2019 .

At June 30, 2014 , future minimum annual paymentieu operating leases are as follows (in thousands)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total
Operating leases $ 2947 $ 295 $ 1611 $ 342 $ 52 $ — $ 7,90¢

Rent expense under operating leases was $2.3mijlfia.7 million and $1.6 million for fiscal 2014iscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 , respectively.

Purchase Commitment

The Company subcontracts with other companies twufaature its products. During the normal coursbusiness, the Company’s contract
manufacturers procure components based upon gtiesd by the Company. If the Company cancelsrglbot of the orders, it may still be
liable to the contract manufacturers for the céshe components purchased by them to manufadter€bmpany’s products. The Company
periodically reviews the potential liability and date no significant accruals have been recorded.Company had $20.9 million in non-
cancelable purchase commitments as of June 3@,,20# related expenses of which are expected todurred in future periods.

Indemnification Obligations

The Company enters into standard indemnificatioe@ments with many of its business partners irotb@ary course of business. These
agreements include provisions for indemnifying blnsiness partner against any claim brought byrd fiarty to the extent any such claim
alleges that a Company product infringes a patemyright or trademark, or violates any other pietary rights of that third party. The
maximum potential amount of future payments the gamy could be required to make under these indératidn agreements is not estimable
and the Company has not incurred any material ¢ostefend lawsuits or settle claims related ta¢h@demnification agreements to date.

Legal Matters

The Company may be involved, from time to timeaiwariety of claims, lawsuits, investigations, gndceedings relating to contractual
disputes, intellectual property rights, employmeatiters, regulatory compliance matters and otkigation matters relating to various claims
that arise in the normal course of business. Thafgamy determines whether an estimated loss froomtingency should be accrued by
assessing whether a loss is deemed probable arzba@asonably estimated. The Company assesgegdtttial liability by analyzing specific
litigation and regulatory matters using availaliformation. The Company develops its views on et losses in consultation with inside
and outside counsel, which involves a subjectivayais of potential results and outcomes, assuwémgus combinations of appropriate
litigation and settlement strategies. Taking althef above factors into account, the Company recandamount where it is probable that the
Company will incur a loss and where that loss aandasonably estimated. However, the Company'siagts may be incorrect and the
Company could ultimately incur more or less thamadimounts initially recorded. The Company may aisar significant legal fees, which are
expensed as incurred, in defending against thesal

Export Compliance Matter:

In May 2011, the Company filed a self-disclosuegesnent with the U.S. Commerce Department, Burédndoistry and Security's (“BIS”)
Office of Export Enforcement (“OEE”) relating ta@view conducted by the Company regarding certguoe transactions from 2008 through
March 2011 in which products may have been laolceinto Iran by third parties. In
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June 2011, the Company also filed a self-disclostament with the U.S. Department of the Treds@ffice of Foreign Asset Control
(“OFAC”) regarding these compliance issues. In Agtd2011, the Company received a warning letter f@IBE stating that OEE had not
referred the findings of the Company’s review fdminal or administrative prosecution and closesl itiwvestigation of the Company without
penalty. Based upon its review of the matter, OFdéhtified certain apparent violations (“Apparenbhtions”) of the Iranian Transactions
and Sanctions Regulations by the Company duringéhied of in or about March 2008 through in or atieebruary 2011. On March 4, 2014,
the Company entered into a settlement agreemeht@HAC resolving this administrative matter. Purdua the terms of the settlement
agreement, the Company agreed to make a one-tiymegue to the U.S. Department of the Treasury inaiim@unt of $504,000 in consideration
of OFAC agreeing to release and forever dischdrge&Company from any and all civil liability in coaetion with the Apparent Violations. The
Company previously accrued a reserve of $1.6 millelating to this matter in fiscal 2010 and, adaugly, reversed the excess of the accrual
of $1.1 million as of the effective date of thetlsshent agreement.

Shareholder Class Action Lawsui

Beginning on September 7, 2012, two class actiasués were filed in the United States District @dor the Northern District of California
against Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Company”)r@n of its officers and directors, and the undéews of its initial public offering, alleging
claims under U.S. securities laws. On January 803 2the plaintiffs filed an amended consolidatethplaint. The Company filed a motion to
dismiss the complaint, and on March 26, 2014, thetdssued an order granting the motion to dismwigls leave to amend the complaint.
Following the plaintiffs’ decision not to file amended complaint, on April 16, 2014 the court oedethe dismissal of the shareholder class
action lawsuit with prejudice, and entered judgmerivor of the Company and the other defendarid,against the plaintiffs. On May 15,
2014, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal frdne judgment of the court. There can be no assardrat the Company will prevail in the apy
proceeding. The Company cannot currently estinfetgbssible loss it may experience in connectidh this litigation.

NOTE 9—PREFERRED STOCK

In July 2011, the Company repurchased an aggreddt2,041,700 shares of the Company’s Series A edite preferred stock from entities
affiliated with Summit Partners, L.P., one of then@pbany’s major stockholders, at a price of $8.97spare for an aggregate consideration of
$108.0 million . Of the aggregate purchase prid®.@ millionwas paid in cash at the time of closing and tharxa of the shares were paid
through the issuance of convertible subordinated@sory notes in the aggregate principal amou®68t0 million . The $68.0 million was
paid down primarily using proceeds from the EWB h@greement and the remaining balance was substygpan down by funds raised
upon the completion of the Company’s initial puliitering on October 19, 2011 and the Company’stexg cash balances as discussed in
Note 7.

NOTE 10—COMMON STOCK AND TREASURY STOCK

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the authorized @agithe Company included 500,000,000 shares wingon stock. As of June 30, 2014 ,
132,418,408 shares of common stock were issue@&id9,448 were outstanding. As of June 30, 2013,452,763 shares of common stock
were issued and 87,213,803 were outstanding.

Common Stock Repurchases

On August 9, 2012, the Board of Directors authatitee Company to repurchase up to $100 milliortso€ommon stock. The share repurchas
program commenced on August 13, 2012 and expiredugist 12, 2013. The share repurchase progranbaes funded from proceeds from
the Loan Agreement as discussed in Note 7 and éxisting cash on hand. The Company repurchase®B3® shares at an average share
price of $10.52 per share under this plan. All repased shares are recorded as treasury stocktat co

On May 29, 2014, the Board of Directors authoriteelCompany to repurchase up to an additional $f®mof its common stock. The share
repurchase program commenced on June 2, 2014 direkpire on May 10, 2015. The share repurchasgrarao was been funded from
proceeds from the Credit Agreement as discussBibia 8 and from existing cash on hand. As of JUhe&814 the Company has not
repurchased any of its common stock under this. plan

Special Dividend

On December 14, 2012, the Board of Directors authdra special cash dividend of $0.18 per sharedoh share of common stock
outstanding on December 24, 2012. The aggregaigedist payment of $15.7 million was paid on Decen#t&r2012 to
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stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Thieleld payment was funded using proceeds from tdamlAgreement as discussed in Note
8.

Common Stock Offering

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfanng of 7,031,464 shares of common stock atféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchadditaonal shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgtuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's chief execufiiegeo, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCimapany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier

NOTE 11—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Stock-Based Compensation Plans
2010 Equity Incentive Plan

In March 2010, the Company'’s board of directors stodkholders approved the 2010 Equity IncentianRithe “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan
replaced the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2B0#n”), and no further awards will be granted parguo the 2005 Plan. Under the terms of
the 2010 Plan, nonstatutory stock options, stogkepation rights, restricted stock, and restrigtmtk units (“RSUs”) may be granted to
employees or non-employee service providers. Imngestock options may be granted only to employees.

The maximum aggregate number of shares that mayvheded under the 2010 Plan as of June 30, 2018@&6,000 shares, plus any shares
subject to stock options or similar awards granteder the 2005 Plan that expire or otherwise teateinvithout having been exercised in full
and shares issued pursuant to awards granted thed2005 Plan that are forfeited to (but not repased by) the Company.

The 2010 Plan is administered by the board of thremr a committee of the Company’s board of dimex Subject to the terms and conditions
of the 2010 Plan, the administrator has the authtwiselect the persons to whom awards are todmento determine the number of shares to
be subject to awards and the terms and conditibawards, and to make all other determinationstartdke all other actions necessary or
advisable for the administration of the 2010 PiEme administrator is also authorized to adopt, ahwnrescind rules relating to administration
of the 2010 Plan. Options and RSUs generally vest a four year period from the date of grant aadegally expire five to ten years from the
date of grant. The terms of the 2010 Plan providé &n option price shall not be less than 100%aiofmarket value on the date of grant.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

With the adoption of the 2010 Plan, no additionededs may be granted under the 2005 Plan. In FepA@®5, the Company’s board of
directors and the stockholders approved the 2086, Rthich was amended and restated in March 20062005 Plan provided for the issua
of stock options, restricted stock and stock bostisemployees, consultants, advisors, directaisofficers of the Company. The terms of the
options granted under the 2005 Plan were deternah#te time of grant. The Company made use ofudifft vesting schedules through fiscal
2009, but subsequent new grants generally vestal2&) on the first anniversary of the date ohggend monthly thereafter over the next
three years and generally have a term of 10 yeans the date of grant.

As of June 30, 2014 , the Company had 9,918,18%aued shares available for future issuance ualief its stock incentive plans.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The following table shows total stock-based comp#or expense included in the Consolidated StatesradrOperations and Comprehensive
Income for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 (in thousand

Years Ended Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

Cost of sales $ 50C % 44€  $ 117

Research and development 2,42: 1,43: 542

Sales, general and administrative 1,89: 1,497 834
$ 4,90€¢ $ 3,37¢  $ 1,49:
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Stock Options

The following is a summary of option activity fdre Company’s stock incentive plans for fiscal 202813 and 2012 :

Balance, June 30, 2011
Granted

Exercised

Forfeitures and cancellations
Balance, June 30, 2012
Granted

Exercised

Forfeitures and cancellations
Balance, June 30, 2013
Exercised

Forfeitures and cancellations
Balance, June 30, 2014
Vested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2014

Vested and exercisable as of June 30, 2014

Common Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Price Life (Years) Value
(In thousands)
6,171,70 $ 0.7z 6.44 $ 43,13t
161,00( 10.4¢
(2,885,471 0.2¢
(99,797 4.71
3,347,44! $ 1.4t 6.62 $ 42,92(
683,50( 11.2¢
(266,55¢) 2.3¢
(150,12) 5.6¢
3,614,26: $ 3.07 6.17 $ 52,33(
(849,63Y) 2.4¢
(107,489 10.5¢
2,657,14  § 2.9¢€ 511 $ 112,21
2,63559" 2.8¢ 509 $ 111,48:
2,23353  $ 1.6C 456 $ 97,36:

Additional information regarding options outstarglas of June 30, 2014 is as follows (in thousaexisgpt weighted average exercise price

amounts and contractual life):

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Life (Years) Price Options Price
$0.01 - $0.04 75,27( 317 % 0.01 7527C  $ 0.01
$0.05 - $0.39 1,594,89 3.78 0.0t 1,594,89 0.0t
$0.40 - $5.11 370,22 6.28 3.07 319,02 2.9¢
$5.12 - $10.76 124,81 6.98 6.9t 74,88t 7.0C
$10.77 - $11.74 321,50( 8.37 10.77 107,53 10.77
$11.75 - $18.48 163,26 8.41 13.3( 58,10¢ 13.3¢€
$18.49 - $18.70 2,907 7.51 18.4¢ 1,40¢ 18.4¢
$18.71 - $19.98 1,00( 7.36 18.71 64t 18.71
$19.99 - $26.28 3,271 7.48 21.4:% 1,767 21.15
$0.01 - $26.28 2,657,14. 511 $ 2 9¢ 2,233,53 ¢ 1.6¢

During fiscal 2014 and 2013 and 2012 , the aggecigatinsic value of options exercised under thenfany’s stock incentive plans was $30.5
million , $3.4 million , and $48.6 million , respeely, as determined as of the date of option eser

As of June 30, 2014 , the Company had unrecogriaetpensation cost of $2.0 million related to stopkons which the Company expects to
recognize over a weighted-average period of 2.2sy€aiture option grants will increase the amodiiomnpensation expense to be recorded il

these periods.
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The Company estimates the fair value of employeeksbptions using the Black-Scholes option priaimgdel. The fair value of employee
stock options is being amortized on a straight-basis over the requisite service period of therdszarhe Company did not grant any stock
options during fiscal 2014 . For fiscal 2013 and 2the fair value of employee stock options wasreded using the following weighted
average assumptions:

Years Ended Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Expected term 6.1 year 6.1 year
Expected volatility 52% 49%
Risk-free interest rate 0.9% 1.€%
Expected dividend yield — —
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 557 $ 5.0t

Expected tern Expected term represents the period that the Coypatock-based awards are expected to be outatanis the Company
has limited historical option exercise data, thpested term of the stock options granted to em@syeas calculated based on the simplified
method. Under the simplified method, the expeatehtis equal to the average of an option’s weiglateetage vesting period and its
contractual term. The Company is permitted to caiusing the simplified method until sufficientdmation regarding exercise behavior,
such as historical exercise data or exercise irdtion from external sources, becomes available.

Expected volatility The expected volatility was based on the histbstack volatilities of a group of publicly listesbmparable companies o
a period equal to the expected terms of the optimmthe Company does not have any trading hisbonge the volatility of its common stock.

Expected dividend yieli Although the Company paid a special cash dividdumihg fiscal 2013, the Company does not currepitiy to pay
dividends on its common stock.

Risk-free interest rate.The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8agury yield curve in effect at the time of griomtzero coupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately eqodhe option’s expected term.

Fair value of common stoc The Company’s common stock began trading on th&DAQ Global Select Market on October 14, 2011, upon
its initial public offering. The fair value of tHéompany’s common stock is determined using the atgrkice of the Company’s common stock
as of the date of grant. Prior to October 14, 2@4 fair value of the shares of common stock ugitgy the stock options has historically been
the responsibility of and determined by the Compmbgard of directors. Because there had been hlicomarket for the Company’s common
stock, its board of directors has determined falug of the common stock at the time of grant efdption by considering a number of
objective and subjective factors including indeperidhird-party valuations of its common stock, repieg and financial performance, the lack
of liquidity of capital stock and general and inttyspecific economic outlook, amongst other fagtor

Forfeiture rate. The Company estimates its forfeiture rate baseanoanalysis of its actual forfeitures and will tone to evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on actuéifare experience, analysis of employee turnoedralvior and other factors. The impact from
a forfeiture rate adjustment will be recognizedutin the period of adjustment, and if the actnamber of future forfeitures differs from that
estimated, the Company may be required to recqusstdents to stock-based compensation expenséurefperiods.

Cash received from stock option exercises duriedittal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $2.1 million,56860 and $811,000 , respectively.
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Restricted Stock Unit¥RSUSs")
The following table summarizes the activity of fREUs made by the Company:

Weighted

Average Grant

Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2011 488,38! $ 2.6¢€
RSUs granted 169,71( 22.3:¢
RSUs vested (146,475 2.37
RSUs canceled (58,000 8.04
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2012 453,62( $ 9.42
RSUs granted 656,50( 14.11
RSUs vested (70,517 14.1¢4
RSUs canceled (294,70) 5.2¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2013 744,90t $ 14.7¢
RSUs granted 209,03: 37.8i
RSUs vested (170,19) 15.5¢
RSUs canceled (234,039 16.1¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2014 549,70. g 22 .6t

The intrinsic value of RSUs vested in fiscal 202013 and 2012 was $6.1 million , $1.0 million &&5 million , respectively. The total
intrinsic value of all outstanding RSUs was $24i8iom as of June 30, 2014 .

As of June 30, 2014 , there was unrecognized cosapiem costs related to RSUs of $9.6 million whioch Company expects to recognize ovel
a weighted average period of 3.2 years.

NOTE 12—INCOME TAXES

For financial reporting purposes, the componenia@ime before provision for income taxes wereodlsws (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Domestic $ 4455. % 17,86( $ 41,49(
Foreign 150,06( 73,89: 82,53:
$ 194,61: $ 91,75 $ 124,02:

The components of the Company’s provision for inedaxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Current
Foreign $ 2,451 % 1,79C $ 2,04(
Federal 16,51¢ 8,51¢ 17,43"
State 10¢ 581 2,85¢
Current tax expense 19,07¢ 10,88¢ 22,33
Deferred
Foreign — — —
Federal (1,507 (130) (217)
State 10t 507 (680)
Deferred tax expense (1,407 377 (897)

Provision for income taxes $ 17,67¢ $ 11,26 % 21,43
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Significant components of the Company’s deferredassets and liabilities consisted of the follow{imgthousands):

June 30,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 20C % 337
Stock-based compensation 1,03¢ 83:
Accrued expenses 45E 191
Research and development credits 34t —
State tax 57C —
Other 358 328

Total deferred tax assets 2,961 1,68¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Basis difference for fixed assets (477 (829
Other — (11¢)

Total deferred tax liabilities (477 (947)
Valuation allowance (345) —
Net deferred tax assets $ 2,13¢ % 737

As of June 30, 2014 , the Company had Californégaiech tax credit carry-forwards, net of ASC 74Q4fiecognized tax benefits, of
approximately $1.1 million . The California resdaaredits can be carried forward indefinitely.

Management assesses the available positive antiveegaidence to estimate if sufficient future thlaincome will be generated to use the
existing deferred tax assets. In the fourth quartdiscal 2014, the Company determined that ihare likely than not that our deferred tax a
for California research credits will not be reatizzs for the foreseeable future the Company isaipeto generate credits in excess of its
ability to use such attributes. As a result, thenpany established a valuation allowance of $345f60¢he amount of California deferred tax
assets that may not be realized as of June 30,.2014

As a result of certain realization requirement&8fC 718,Compensation - Stock Compensatjoine table of deferred tax assets and liabilities
shown above does not include certain deferreddagta as of June 30, 2014 , that arose directty (oo the use of which was postponed by)
tax deductions related to equity compensationdahagreater than the compensation recognizedrfanéial reporting. Equity will be increased
by approximately $541,000and when such deferred tax assets are ultimagglljzed. The Company uses ASC 740 ordering wleggrichining
when excess tax benefits have been realized.

The effective tax rate differs from the applicablé. statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Stock-based compensation 0.4 0.8 —
State tax expense — 0.7 1.C
Tax rate differential, foreign income (25.9) (24.2 (23.0
Federal research and development credits 0.3 (0.4 —
Other permanent items (0.7) 0.4 4.2
Effective tax rate 9.1% 12.2% 17.2%

The Company had increased foreign operations ¢alfid014 as compared to fiscal 2013 and in fisBaB2as compared to fiscal 2012 , which
resulted in the generation more income on a contigargear over year basis in foreign jurisdictidhat have lower tax rates than the U.S.

It is the practice and intention of the Companydiovest the earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiarighose operations. As of June 30, 2014 , the
Company has not made a provision for U.S. or amikti foreign withholding taxes on approximately $®million of the excess of the amol
for financial reporting over the tax basis of intresnts in foreign subsidiaries that are essentgdlynanent in duration. Generally, such
amounts become subject to U.S. taxation upon tinéteence of
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dividends and under certain other circumstances.not practicable to estimate the amount of detetax liability related to investments in
these foreign subsidiaries.

While management believes that the Company hasuatkdy provided for all tax positions, amounts aggkby tax authorities could be greatel
or less than the recorded position. Accordinglg, @ompany's provisions on federal, state and foreig-related matters to be recorded in the
future may change as revised estimates are matie onderlying matters are settled or otherwiselvesl.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmof the unrecognized tax benefits during thesyeaded June 30, 2014 2013 and 2012
consists of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Unrecognized benefit—beginning of period $ 11,458 $ 7,828 % 2,02(
Gross increases—current year tax positions 3,871 3,80¢ 4,69
Gross increases (decreases)—prior year tax position (213 (17¢) 1,10¢
Gross Decreases - prior year tax positions dutataeslapse $ (299
Unrecognized benefit—end of period $ 1491: $ 11,45 $ 7,82

Included in the gross unrecognized tax benefitard as of June 30, 2014 are $14.5 million of @sitipns which would affect income tax
expense if recognized. The Company recognizesaisitand penalties related to unrecognized tax liemgthin the income tax expense line in
the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Op&imaod Comprehensive Income. Accrued interest andlfes are included within the
related tax liability line in the Consolidated Ba¢e Sheet. As of June 30, 2014 , the Company h@8l,@B0accrued interest related to uncer
tax matters. The Company does not expect its ugreped tax benefits as of June 30, 2014 will matgrchange within the next 12 months.
The Company files income tax returns in the UnBéakes, various states and certain foreign jutigeiis. Tax years 2011 through 2014 are
subject to examination by the U.S. federal tax auitles. Tax years 2010 through 2014 are subjeek#mmination by the state tax authorities.
Tax year 2014 is subject to examination by theifpréax authorities. There are no income tax exations currently in process.

NOTE 13—SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHY AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Management has determined that the Company opesi@se reportable and operating segment as itrepbyts financial information on an
aggregate and consolidated basis to its chief ¢ixecofficer, who is the Company’s chief operatiterision maker.

Revenue
Revenues by product type were as follows (in thodsaexcept percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

Service provider technology $ 450,66: 7% $ 285,39 89% $ 321,64 91%
Enterprise technology 121,80: 21% 35,43: 11% 31,86¢ 9%
Total revenues $ 572,46 10% $ 320,82: 10(% $ 353,51 10C%
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Revenues by geography based on customer’s shipstindtions were as follows (in thousands, exceptgmtages):

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

North America(1) $ 142,43t 25% $ 84,82( 2€% $ 88,30¢ 25%
South America 109,58« 19% 65,76« 21% 88,32¢ 25%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 247,00¢ 43% 127,86( 4C% 130,49« 37%
Asia Pacific 73,43: 13% 42,37¢ 13% 46,38¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 572,46: 10C% $ 320,82: 10(% $ 353,51 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States \v$136.6 million , $80.6 million and $84.3 milliorr fiiscal 2014 , 2013 and 201 2espectively

Customers with an accounts receivable balance %f di0greater of total accounts receivable and oosts with net revenues of 1086 greate
of total revenues are presented below for the geriledicated:

Percentage of Revenues Percentage of Accounts Receivable

Years Ended June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013
Flytec Computers, Inc. 13% 13% 16% 13% 12%
Streakwave Wireless, Inc. * * 10% 12% 15%
P.W. Batna Magdalena Mucha * * * 12% 11%

* denotes less than 10%

NOTE 14—SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the Company’s unadditensolidated statements of operations data fdr ehthe eight quarters during fiscal
2014 and 2013 . In management’s opinion, this infdion has been presented on the same basis asdited consolidated financial
statements included in a separate section of ¢jpisrt, and all necessary adjustments, consistiiygadmormal recurring adjustments, have
been included in the amounts below to state faliyunaudited quarterly results when read in cartjon with the audited consolidated
financial statements and related notes. The operatisults for any quarter should not be reliednup® necessarily indicative of results for any
future period.

Fiscal 2014

First Second Third Fourth

In thousands, except per share data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net revenue 129,68 138,43¢ 148,33: 156,00°
Gross profit 58,02! 60,97 65,61: 68,86
Income from operations 45,89¢ 47,12( 50,13t 52,79
Net income and comprehensive income 40,52¢ 41,79 45,19¢ 49,41¢

Net income per share of common stock:
Basic 0.4¢ 0.4¢ 0.51 0.5¢
Diluted 0.4t 0.47 0.5C 0.5t
Fiscal 2013

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net revenue 61,53: 74,90: 83,15¢ 101,23.
Gross profit 25,02( 30,48t 35,46 44,36¢
Income from operations 15,77¢ 20,11¢ 23,50: 33,20"
Net income and comprehensive income 13,17¢ 17,80: 20,66" 28,84

Net income per share of common stock:

Basic 0.14 0.2C 0.24 0.3t
Diluted 0.14 0.2C 0.2: 0.32

76






Table of Contents

Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfiéth the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing
copies) upon request.

Incorporated by Incorporated by
Exhibit Reference from Reference from
Number Description Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011

Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpik)
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgfrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thiare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
Company and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.

10.7# Employment Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2012, 10-K 10.8 September 28, 2012
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou.

10.8 Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, datexf as S-1 10.9 June 17, 2011
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Gréblitnas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

10.9 Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar S-1 10.10 June 17, 2011
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jimyo
Ji Investment Co., Ltd.

10.10 Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti S-1 10.11 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.



10.11% Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of S-1 10.12 June 17, 2011
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, amal
Atheros Communications, Inc.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

Incorporated by
Reference from
Form

Incorporated by
Reference from
Exhibit Number

Date Filed

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

211

23.1

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1~

101 INIKQ/(*)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Septefy
2011, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and East West
Bank.

Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intermeial
Limited, Taiwan Branch.

Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 and
executed on December 22, 2011, by and between
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, ICL

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 7,
2012, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., theders
from time to time party thereto, U.S. Bank, as
Syndication Agent, and East West Bank, as
Administrative Agent

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2014, by and
among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Ubiquiti
International Holding Company Limited, as Borrowers
the Lenders referred to therein, as Lenders andsWel
Fargo Bank, National Associate, as Administration
Agent

Aircraft Lease Agreement between Ubiquiti Networks,

S-1

10-Q

10-Q/A

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

Inc. and RJP Manageco LLP, dated November 13, 2013

Release of Claims Agreement between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and Jessica Zhou

Offer Letter between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., and\id
Hsieh

List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

Consent of independent registered public accounting
firm

Power of Attorney (contained in the sighature ptage
this Form 10-K)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Reged
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reged
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjaf

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18

U.S.C. §1350.

¥ RRI Inetanra Dnriimar

8-K

10-Q

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.2

September 16, 2011

November 14, 2011

March 20, 2012

August 13, 2012

May 9, 2014

February 7, 2014

October 18, 2013

November 8, 2013



101.SCH(*)

101.CAL(*)

101.DEF(*)

XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document
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Incorporated by Incorporated by
Exhibit Reference from Reference from
Number Description Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE(*) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

# Management contracts or compensation plangangements in which directors or executive offi@eseligible to participate.

T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstmian order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-479i86) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatmiDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,désifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete ar
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will notd&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgglunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant specijical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imfation is furnished and not filed or a part of gisgation statement or prospectus for purposes of

Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 193%ragnded, is deemed not filed for purposes of @ed8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.*

Ubiquiti Networks International Limited

Hong Kong

Ubiquiti International Holding Company Limited

Cayman Islands

*Pursuant to Iltem 601(b)(21)(ii) of Regulation $-kKe names of other subsidiaries of Ubiquiti N&teg, Inc. are omitted because, considere
in the aggregate, they would not constitute a §icant subsidiary as of the end of the year covénethis report.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by refeeemthe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (N8-837310, No. 333-185958 and No. 333

193793) of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. of our reporttdd August 22, 2014 relating to the consolidatedricial statements, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
August 22, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aednat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

August 22, 2014

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Craig L. Foster, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) omantiial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Ralgs—15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

August 22, 2014

/sl Craig L. Foster

Craig L. Foster
Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PR INCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.&xtidn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@tteabarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 fullyjnpties with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the firiahcondition and results of operations of UbigiNgtworks, Inc.

Date: August 22, 2014

By: /sl Robert J. Pera
Name: Robert J. Pera
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

I, Craig L. Foster, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 96dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 fullyjnpdies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the finahcondition and results of operations of Ubiqilgtworks, Inc.

Date: August 22, 2014

By: /sl Craig L. Foster
Name: Craig L. Foster
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Director

(Principal Financial Officer)



